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RBI at a glance

Raiffeisen Bank International (RBI) regards Central and
Eastern Europe (including Austria) as its home market.

In Central and Eastern Europe (CEE), it operates as a
universal bank through a closely knit network of subsidiary
banks, leasing companies and numerous specialized
financial service providers.

In CEE, approximately 52,000 employees in around
2,900 business outlets serve some 14.8 million customers.
In Austria, RBI is one of the top corporate and investment banks.

All'in all, RBI employs about 55,000 staff and has total
assets of approximately € 122 billion.
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Overview

Raiffeisen Bank International Group

Monetary values in € million 2014 Change 2013 2012
Income statement 1/1-31/12 1/1-31/12 1/1-31/12
Net interest income 3,789 1.6% 3,729 3,472
Net provisioning for impairment losses (1,716) 49.3% (1,149) (1,009)
Net fee and commission income 1,586 (2.5)% 1,626 1,516
Net frading income (30) = 321 215
General administrative expenses (3,024) (9.5)% (3,340) (3,258)
Profit/loss before tax 23 (97.3)% 835 1,037
Profit/loss after tax (463) - 603 752
Consolidated profit/loss (493) - 557 730
Statement of financial position 31/12 31/12 31/12
Loans and advances to banks 15,573 (30.0)% 22,243 22,323
Loans and advances to customers 77925 (3.4)% 80,635 83,343
Deposits from banks 22,408 (25.6)% 30,105 30,186
Deposits from customers 66,094 (0.5)% 66,437 66,297
Equity 8,302 (199)% 10,364 10,873
Total assets 121,624 (69)% 130,640 136,116
Key ratios 1/1-31/12 11-31/12 11-31/12
Return on equity before tax 0.2% (7.6) PP 7.8% Q7%
Cost/income ratio 56.5% (1.8) PP 58.3% 61.5%
Return on assets before tax 0.02% (0.61) PP 0.63% 0.73%
Net interest margin

(average interest-bearing assets) 3.24% 0.13 PP 3.11% 2.66%
Provisioning ratio

(average loans and advances to custfomers| 2.13% 0.73 PP 1.39% 1.21%
Bank-specific information 31/12 31/12 31/12
NPL ratio 11.3% 0.6 PP 10.7% Q.8%
Risk-weighted assefs (fotal RWA) 68,721 (14.0)% 79,897 82,822
Total capital requirement 5,498 (14.0)% 6,392 6,626
Total capital 11,003 (13.3)% 12,686 12,885
Common equity fier 1 rafio (fransitional) 109% 0.2 PP 10.7% 10.7%
Common equity fier 1 rafio (fully loaded) 10.0% - - -
Total capital ratio (transitional) 16.0% 0.1 PP 159% 15.6%
Total capital rafio (fully loaded) 15.2% - - -
ok dlele 1/1-31/12 1/1-31/12 1/1-31/12
Earnings per share in € (1.73) - 1.83 2.72
Closing price in € (31/12) 12.54 (51.1)% 25.62 31.46
High (closing prices) in € 31.27 (69)% 33.59 33.36
Low (closing prices) in € 11.51 (42.3)% 1996 18.64
Number of shares in million (31/12) 29298 499% 195.51 195.51
Market capitalization in € million (31/12) 3,672 (26.7)% 5,009 6,150
Dividend per share in € - - 1.02 1.17
Resources 31/12 31/12 31/12
Employees as at reporting date

(full-ime equivalents) 54,730 (5.5)% 57901 60,084
Business outlets 2,866 (5.3)% 3,025 3,106
Customers in million 14.8 1.6% 14.6 14.2

In this report, Raiffeisen Bank International (RBI) refers to the RBI Group, and RBI AG is used wherever statements refer solely to
Raiffeisen Bank International AG. The same applies to RZB and RZB AG.
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"Well on the way to
pecoming a more
focused universal bank”

Interview with CEO Karl Sevelda

RBI posted a net loss in 2014. What were the reasons?

The 493 million euro loss was the first negative consolidated result in RBI's history. On the one hand, this was owing fo loan loss
provisions of more than 1.7 billion euros, which were considerably higher than the previous year's level due to the geopolitical
crisis in Ukraine and defaults of individual large corporate customers in Asia. On the other, we had to book significant one-off
effects amounting to approximately 750 million euros. The largest item among these was goodwill impairments totaling 306 million
euros in Russia, Poland and Albania. Moreover, the hostile banking legislation in Hungary lowered our result by 251 million euros.
The write-down of deferred tax assefs cost us around 200 million euros. In this connection, | want to emphasize that, apart from
the costs resulting from the Hungarian legislation, these write-downs have not had a negative impact on our regulatory capital.
Without the aforementioned one-off charges, we would have reported a significantly positive net profit.

Why did you announce, just one month after publishing your half-year results for 2014, that you expected a net loss for
the full year - was this not foreseeable a few weeks earlier?

When our half-year results were published, we were unable 1o foresee the impact of the events that made it necessary to adjust
our outlook. It was only in the weeks that followed that the Ukrainian army lost confrol again over the eastern parts of the country
fo the separatfists. The increased fighting not only stopped us from reopening many of our branches there, but of course also
greatly exacerbated the economic situation. Ultimately, in mid-September, the Ukrainian parliament decided that the Donbass
region should become partially autonomous. This had serious consequences for our branches there. Today, we have permanently
shut down most of our 80 business outlets in the region. Then in Hungary, we had initially hoped to win the legal battle with the
government conceming the refrospective reduction of interest and fees for private loans. When we lost the case some weeks
later, we had to make corresponding provisions. However, with regard to Hungary | would like to state that in the meantime the
government has promised to put an end to the burdens on banks.

You announced a strategic review in February 2015. What prompted you to take this step?

The conditions in which we operate have changed massively in the past year. The crisis in Ukraine, along with its implications such
as sanctions and currency devaluations, has affected not only our income statement but also our share price. Additionally, the
Russian economy is suffering from the oil price collapse. Moreover, a new normality has developed in the banking industry and
we will have to adapt fo it. We are being confronted with ever stricter regulations that entail high capital requirements as well as
with weaker economic growth in a low interest rate environment. In order to be able to still grow in promising markets, we have
decided on measures that will give us a generous capital buffer and help us to meet our target of a common equity tier 1 ratio
(CET1 ratio, fully loaded) of 12 per cent. To achieve this, we will reduce risk-weighted assets, i.e. the part of our business that is
backed by equity, by a gross amount of around 16 billion euros by the end of 2017. This is in addition fo the approximately

10 billion euro reductions already undertaken in the fourth quarter of 2014. The reduction will be partly offset by growth in other
business areas. Ultimately, RBI will not only be better capitalized but will also be more efficient, less complex and less subject to
risk. We are therefore well on the way to becoming a more focused universal bank, which will secure our profitability in the long
term. The positive reaction of our share price and bond prices upon the announcement of our plans indicates that the capital
markefs are convinced by this change of strategy.

Can you describe the strategic review in more detail?

We will sell our units in Poland and Slovenia in order to improve our capital position - both are markets that are in or are facing
a resource-intensive period of consolidation. Moreover, the significance of our network banks in Poland and Slovenia for the
Group as a whole is regrettably limited, with regard to earnings synergies and strategy. Without further investment, our direct
bank Zuno will also be unable to achieve the size needed for long-term success and so we have decided fo dispose of it. In
Russia, where we cannot ignore the deterioration in the macroeconomic situation despite good profits, we intend fo reduce

our risk-weighted assets by around 20 per cent by the end of 2017. To take the country's political risk into account, we will

also continue to tighten our lending criteria, cut our exposure to cyclical sectors, reduce maturities and increase collateral. The
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difficult situation in neighboring Ukraine restricts our business
opportunities to a great extent. For this reason, we plan to
reduce our risk-weighted assefs by approximately 30 per
centin the same period. In Hungary - another market that is
too important to leave - our bank will be restructured due to
the aforementioned situation. Given the intention to focus on
Central and Eastern Europe, our operations in Asia and the
USA will be considerably rescaled or exited by the end of
2017 and end of 2016 respectively.

So, you are cutting risk-weighted assets by about a fifth in
Russia, which has been your cash cow in the past. Where
will your earnings come from in the future?

A profit before tax of 436 million euros in Russia for the 2014
financial year shows that it remains to be an important market
for us. However, we are also successful in other countries.

For example, in the last financial year we generated a very
respectable profit before tax of 145 million euros in Slovakia.
In the Czech Republic, where the economy turned around in
2014, we earned 94 million euros before tax as number five in
the market. Another positive example is Romania, with a profit
before tax of 119 million euros and a refurn on equity before
tax of 18.6 per cent. The fact that the Romanian economy, in
which we have the fourth largest bank of the country, offers
good growth prospects as a result of radical structural reforms
makes me optimistic. We expect the country’s economy to
grow 3 per centin 2015, compared fo 1.2 per cent for the
eurozone. In neighboring Serbia, where we rank among the
five largest banks, our business is also performing well. In the
reporting period, we eamed a profit before tax of 48 million
euros despite a negative GDP trend.

Despite the planned exit from single markets, do you still support the expansion into Central and Eastern Europe?
Absolutely! Diversification across a good dozen markets enables us 1o offset temporary weaknesses in one country with the
strengths in another and forms part of our formula for success. Despite the huge challenges in individual markets, | am firmly
convinced that, overall, we are operating in the right markets. One only has to consider the following success story: RBI reported
the largest profit among Austrian banks for four years in a row. Even in the crisis years from 2009 to 2013, we posted profit before
tax amounting to approximately 5.3 billion euros. Our shareholders also profited from that performance. Therefore, | firmly believe
that our expansion into Central and Eastern Europe made sense. After all, these are markets in which - in contrast to Western
Europe with its high banking density - good profits can be earned with conventional services.

Will there be a dividend for the 2014 financial year?

No dividend will be paid for the 2014 financial year. Regardless of the results, which were impaired by one-off effects, we are
cutting costs. Our aim is to reduce costs by 2016 to a level lower than that of 2012. This will entail huge efforts on our part, as

we will not only have fo cut costs in real terms but will also have to compensate for inflation in some countries. Assuming constant
prices and exchange rates, cosfs are expected o be around 20 per cent lower than the 2014 level after the Group restructuring in
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2017, as already outlined. In order to remain a leading universal bank in Central and Eastern Europe in the future, we have drawn
up cosf-cutting and efficiency enhancement programs - and we are well on the way to achieving our ambitious goals. In the past
year, we have already significantly cut our general administrative expenses while revenues remained largely stable. However, as
we also profited from currency devaluations, we are aware that we must not relax our efforts. Instead, we will have to continue to
work hard on our costs and efficiency. To achieve this, we are constantly evaluating and optimizing our organizational structure
and processes.

2014 was a rather difficult year for banks, especially for those with links to Central and Eastern Europe. Looking back,
does anything positive come to mind?

Last year, we were indeed confronted with challenges, but of course we were also able to report some successes. At the start

of the year, we received a vote of confidence from the capital market in the form of an around 2.72 billion euro net capital
increase. This enabled us to bolster our capital base and repay participation capital totaling 2.5 billion euros held by state and
private investors in the course of the year. In this context, | would like to express my sincere thanks to all our owners - RZB as core
shareholder, our insfitutional investors and private shareholders - for the trust they have placed in RBI. A further considerable
achievement was that RZB, whose results are significantly influenced by RBI as its largest strategic investment, clearly passed

the ECB stress test. Although the scenarios for our domestic market Central and Eastern Europe were especially strict compared
fo other European regions, we clearly surpassed the required capital rafios. At the end of 2014, we had a total capital ratio of
16 per cent and a CET1 ratio (fully loaded) of 10 per cent, which was far higher than the regulatory requirements. At this point,
however, | would like to emphasize the personnel resources that the review tied up in our bank. Numerous employees spent a
great deal of time and energy on the project over a long period. Overall, the ECB review cost us about 18,000 man days. |
would like to express my thanks, also on behalf of my colleagues on the Management Board, for the exceptional hard work of
those involved. Similarly, we also want to express our sincerest gratitude fo all our other employees for their unfailing commitment!
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Report of the
Supervisory Board

in the 2014 financial year, RBI carried out a capital increase with gross proceeds of € 2.78 billion. RZB participated in the capital
increase, in addition fo numerous institutional and private investors, and remained the majority shareholder of RBI. The capital
increase was a very imporfant milestone for RBI, as it enabled it to fully repay the participation capital and significantly improve its
tier 1 ratio (according o Basel ll).

The second half of the year was mainly impacted by political and financial events in Ukraine and Russia, with the geopolitical crisis
in Ukraine resulting in a sharp increase in RBI's risk costs. Furthermore, the hostile banking legislation in Hungary gave rise to higher
costs. The development of some currencies, notably the depreciation of the rouble and of the Ukrainian hryvnia, as well as the
appreciation of the US dollar, had a detrimental effect on the company’s capital ratios.

Activity in 2014

In fiscal year 2014, members of the Supervisory Board and its committees were fully informed by the Management Board about
all relevant business developments of the bank and subsidiaries during regular meetings in a timely and comprehensive manner.
Information was provided verbally as well as in writing. At the Supervisory Board meetings, the Management Board were given
tasks and asked to report on the results af subsequent meetings. The Supervisory Board made several requests to the Management
Board for up-to-date reports on various matters that had already been decided on and dealt with. These included regular status
reports on the Group's own funds or on the developments in Ukraine and in Russia. The Management Board also provided

several reports on the development of Raiffeisenbank Ungarn Zrt., especially with regard fo the effects of Hungarian foreign
currency legislation on the subsidiary bank. The Management Board reported to the Supervisory Board on developments in the
various business areas and explained risk developments af the meetings. In addition to the regular meetings, the Chairman of the
Supervisory Board also held numerous discussions with the Management Board. The decision-making and informal dialog of the
Supervisory Board and Management Board were based on open discussions conducted in a spirif of mutual trust. At the meetings,
as well as at other fimes, Supervisory Board members were able to discuss topics directly with the responsible area managers and
experts. The members of the Supervisory Board made considerable use of this opportunity. Overall, the members of the Supervisory
Board thus conscientiously fulfilled their supervisory duties and took all decisions in a reasoned manner.

The Chairmen of the Working, Audit, Remuneration, Personnel, Risk and Nomination Committees regularly reported to the
Supervisory Board on the respective committee’s work.

Two Supervisory Board committees commenced their work in 2014:

The Nomination Committee handled the tasks and matters as specified in its rules of procedure and according to Section 29

of the Austrian Banking Act (BWG], such as the evaluation of the knowledge, skills and experience of both the members of the
Management Board and of the individual members of the Supervisory Board |(fit and proper review). Furthermore, the Nomination
Commiftee set a target rafio for the under-represented sex.

The Risk Committee dealt with risk strategy, risk drivers and risk orientation in detail. This committee also reported on the
Comprehensive Assessment [Asset Quality Review and stress test] which were conducted by the European Central Bank and the
European Banking Authority. Moreover, it reviewed the implementation of the risk strafegy.

Further information on the committees’ composition and type, as well as on the contents of their fields of activity can be found in
the corporate governance report. At its meeting on 21 January 2014, the Supervisory Board established a temporary Project
Committee to take further decisions on matters relating to RBI's capital increase. It comprised of Walter Rothensteiner, Erwin
Hameseder, Heinrich Schaller, Johannes Schuster, Martin Prater and Rudolf Kortenhof. The Project Committee was authorized,
in particular, to decide on the final extent of the capital increase, the subscription ratio, as well as the subscription and offer price,
and to decide on corresponding adjustments to the Articles of Association. The committee’s work ended on 10 February 2014
after the corresponding decisions had been taken.

Between December 2014 and January 2015, there were a string of developments which negatively affected several of RBI's

markets and share price. These were, in particular, the intensification of the conflict in Ukraine, the sharp oil price fall, as well as the
abandoning of the fixed exchange rate between the euro and Swiss franc. Against this backdrop, the Management Board presented
various strategic scenarios and a resulting package of measures to the Suspervisory Board, with an aim to better the risk position and
raise the capital buffer, during an extraordinary meeting on 28 January 2015.
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New appointments

Martin Schaller, CEO of Raiffeisen-Landesbank Steiermark
AG, and Bettina Selden, former member of the management
board of OeKB EH Beteiligungs- und Management AG

and PRISMA Kreditversicherungs-AG, were elected fo the
Supervisory Board for the first time at the Annual General
Meeting on 4 June 2014. They succeeded Markus Mair, who
resigned with effect from 4 June 2014, and Stewart Gager,
whose period of office ended on the same day. Kurt Geiger,
whose term in office ended on 4 June 2014, was reelected

fo RBI's Supervisory Board by the Annual General Meeting.
The term of office ends at the Annual General Meeting that
decides on the discharge from liability for the 2018 fiscal year.
Christian Teufl resigned from his position as Supervisory Board
member with effect from 31 December 2014. On behalf of the
Supervisory Board, | would like to thank the aforementioned
gentlemen for their valuable contribution and commitment to
the company over the past years.

Annual financial statements and
consolidated financial statements

The consolidated financial statements (income statement,
statement of financial position, statement of changes in equity,
cash flow statement and notes) as well as the annual financial
statemenfs of RBI AG have been audited by KPMG Austria
GmbH Wirtschaftsprifungs- und Steuerberatungsgesellschatft.
Representatives of the auditing company presented the results

of their audit af the respective meefing of the Audit Committee
and Supervisory Board which dealt with the financial statements.

The audit revealed no reason for objections. All legislative provisions were fully satisfied and the unqualified auditor's report was
thus issued.

The consistency check of the corporate governance report according to Section 243b of the Austrian Commercial Code (UGB
was performed by KPMG Austria GmbH Wirtschaftsprifungs- und Steuerberatungsgesellschaft. Its final report gave no reason for
objections.

Following an extensive audit and discussion of the consolidated financial statements, as well as of the annual financial statements,
in the Supervisory Board and in the preceding Audit Committee, the Supervisory Board approved the annual financial statements
of RBI' AG. The annual financial statements have thus been adopted in accordance with Section 96 (4) of the Austrian Stock
Corporation Act. The consolidated financial statements were noted by the Supervisory Board.

In conclusion, on behalf of the Supervisory Board, | would like to express our gratitude to the Management Board, the Works
Council and all employees for their high level of commitment during this past challenging year.

On behalf of the Supervisory Board

Walter Rothensteiner, Chairman
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RBI at a glance

A leading bank in CEE as well as Austria

Raiffeisen Bank Infernational AG regards Central and Eastern Europe (including Austria) as its home market. For over 25 years,
RBI has been operating in Central and Eastern Europe [CEE), where today it maintains a closely knit network of subsidiary banks,
leasing companies and numerous specialized financial service providers. As a universal bank, RBI ranks among the top five
banks in several countries. This role is supported by the Raiffeisen brand, which is one of the most widely recognized brands in
the region. RBI has positioned itself in CEE as a fully integrated corporate and retail banking group with a comprehensive product
offering. At the end of 2014, around 52,000 RBI employees served approximately 14.8 million customers in around 2,900
business outlets in CEE.

In Austria, RBI is one of the top corporate and investment banks. It primarily serves Austrian custfomers, but also international

customers and major multinational clients operating in CEE. All'in all, RBI employs about 55,000 staff and has tofal assets of
approximately € 122 billion.

RBI’s markets

Total assets

2014 in € million Change' Business outlets  Number of staff
Czech Republic 8,794 10.1% 127 2,720
Hungary 6,936 11.3% 114 2,298
Poland 13,729 6.6% 351 5,462
Slovakia 10,215 2.1% 178 3,816
Slovenia 1,146 (14.6)% 14 230
Reconciliation (48) - - -
CE segment 40,771 6.1% 784 14,526
Albania 1976 (5.2)% Q2 1,326
Bosnia and Herzegovina 1944 (39)% Q6 1,434
Bulgaria 3,223 0.6% 156 2,751
Croatia 4,647 (2.1)% 77 2,127
Kosovo 778 11.2% 52 705
Romania 6,920 6.0% 529 5,292
Serbia 1,885 0.5% 85 1,581
Reconciliation (1) = = =
SEE segment 21,371 1.0% 1,087 15,216
Russia segment 12,457 (19.9)% 212 8,252
Belarus 1,536 6.2% Q7 2,176
Kazakhstan 28 (24.8)% 1 Q
Ukraine 2,481 42.7)% 671 11,478
Reconciliation (1) - - -
CEE Other segment 4,043 (30.4)% 769 13,663
Group Corporates segment 18,618 (10.5)%

Group Markets segment 17,635 (13.0)% 5 3,073 |
Corporate Center segment 31,095 (10.4)% 1 |
Reconciliation (24,366) = = =
Total 121,624 (6.9)% 2,866 54,730

! Change of total assets versus figures from 31 December 2013 expressed in local currencies varies due fo fluctuations in euro exchange rates
? Allocation of staff to Group Corporates, Group Markets and Corporate Center is not possible
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Long-term success story

RZB was founded in 1927 as "Genossenschafiliche Zentralbank”. The RZB founded is first subsidiary bank in Central and Eastern
Europe already back in 1987. Since then, further own subsidiaries have been established. From 2000 onward, Raiffeisen’s
expansion info CEE countries has mainly been achieved by acquiring existing banks. These were subsequently combined into a
holding company that operated under the name Raiffeisen International from 2003. In April 2005, Raiffeisen International was
listed on the stock exchange in order to finance its future growth efficiently. Today’s RBI was established in 2010 through the
merger of Raiffeisen International with the principal business areas of Raiffeisen Zentralbank Osterreich AG (RZB).

RBI has been listed on the Vienna stock exchange since 25 April 2005 (as Raiffeisen International up until 12 October 2010). RZB,
which functions as the central institution of the Austrian Raiffeisen Banking Group (RBG), remained the majority shareholder
following the merger. As at year-end 2014, RZB held approximately 60.7 per cent of RBI's stock, with the remaining shares in
free float.

With total assefs of € 285.9 billion as at 31 December 2014, RBG is Austria’s largest banking group. As at this reporfing date,
RBG managed € 92.8 billion in domestic customer deposits (excluding building society savings), of which € 49.4 billion were
held in savings deposits. RBG has thus maintained its market share of around 30 per cent and, once more, its role as market
leader among Austria’s banks. RBG's strong market position was achieved through healthy organic growth.

RBI's strategy

Creating long-term value as primary objective

RBI's primary strategic objective is the creation of long-term value for its shareholders, who include Raiffeisen Zentralbank
Osterreich AG (RZB) as strong core shareholder and central insfitution of the Austrian Raiffeisen Banking Group, in addition fo free
float shareholders. RBI sees itself as an infernational bank for corporate customers, a leading financial services provider for retail
customers as well as a business partner for select institutional clients. Proprietary trading activities serve to support its customer
business. RBI provides comprehensive services to customers and strives fo build sustainable customer relafionships. Its customers
mainly have a direct link to the CEE region (incl. Austria). A well-balanced portfolio and risk spread avoids concentration risks

(e.g. customers, countries) while protecting owners and creditors.

To further strengthen RBI's position as a leading financial services provider, reliance is placed on the following core competencies:
B RBI positions itself as a diversified universal banking group with distinct central control elements.

B RBI maintains and develops a strong and reliable brand that serves as the basis for its business model.

m RBI offers its customers comprehensive and high-quality financial services.

B RBI disfinguishes itself by its strong local anchoring and customer-centric focus.

The challenges in the business environment (e.g. bank-specific taxes, continued subdued economic momentum, tighter supervisory
requirements and geopolitical developments in Ukraine| call for ongoing business model adjustments and flexibility within the
organization. Stringent, Group-wide capital management is the key criterion for success. Therefore, RBI decided o undertake

structural changes in order to strengthen its capital base and to reduce risk. The following package of measures will create
capacity for growth in RBI's most promising markets:
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B Launch of the selling process for the Polish unit: Poland is an atfractive and rapidly growing market for banks. Following
the successful integration of Polbank, RBI has a top-eight bank in a rapidly consolidating market. Substantial capital
resources would be required in order to participate in this market consolidation. Poland also plays a relatively minor role
for cross-border business within RBI.

B Reduction in the number of branches in the US [by the end of 2016 and in Asia (by the end of 2017): In order to focus on
European markets and fo reduce complexity within the Group, units will be either exited or significantly reduced. Cross-
border US dollar refinancing will thereby also be considerably reduced.

B An around 20 per cenf reduction in risk-weighted assets (fotal RWA) of the Russian unit by the end of 2017: In Russia, RBI
has a profitable bank with an outstanding reputation, as well as customers with excellent credit standing. However, the
macroeconomic environment and Group-wide risk management aspects make it necessary to reduce business volumes
and risk accordingly.

® An around 30 per cent reduction in the RWA of the Ukrainian unit by the end of 2017: A challenging political and
economic environment makes rescaling necessary. This will further reduce RBI's foreign currency risks and US dollar
refinancing needs.

® Further short- fo medium-term optimization measures: Restructuring of the Hungarian unit, sale or scale back of the
Slovenian unit, sale of the ZUNO direct bank, adjustments to leasing units and enhanced risk transfer (e.g. by means of
securitization transactions).

Freed-up capital and risk-bearing capacity are allocated to those markets that sustainably contribute to RBI's value
enhancement. Factors such as country-specific risk, size and potential of the market, as well as the local market position,
are additionaly taken into account. Capital efficiency measures are accompanied by Group-wide cost management. The
coordination and collaboration among individual Group units has become increasingly important and will continue to be a
focal point for cost management.

For all of these measures, the specific aspects of the various markets are taken info consideration. This raises the synergy

potentials of an international banking group while at the same time promoting the enfrepreneurship of the units (incl.

sel-financing capacity). The criteria for success in the market are consistent customer orientation, as well as rapid and

fransparent decision-making processes.

Technological developments are influencing customer requirements to an increasing degree and are permanently changing

the traditional banking business. These requirements are being actively addressed and the business model adapted

accordingly. Group-wide initiatives help to focus on these challenges and to further build on existing strengths:

® Confinuous cost management and enhanced efficiency through standardization

W |ntegration of lLean Management into the corporate culture to enhance efficiency and customer satisfaction

B Further development of existing sales channels and expansion of alternative channels (e.g. internet, mobile banking,
franchise models, cooperation models) to ensure a sustainable and balanced mix of traditional and alternative sales

channels

B |mprovement of the cross-border cooperation model to exploit further synergy potentials, as well as simplification of the
product portfolio

W Strengthening of securitization and syndication capacities for capital relief, as well as enhanced local refinancing for the
further diversification of the refinancing basis

W ncrease in profits through strengthening of customer product penetration (cross-selling) and product cost fransparency
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Strategy by customer segment
Corporate customers

RBI strives to establish long-term parinerships with corporate customers that have a link to CEE (incl. Austria). Other regions are
serviced on a selective basis only. RBI sees ifself as financial advisor for a currently estimated 87,000 corporate customers -
medium-sized businesses, major local companies and international corporate groups - and supports them with cross-border
financial services. Its customers’ needs are a top priority and RBI is committed to supporting them with high-quality products
and services.

Particular attention is paid to the Group-wide further development of sales planning and controlling tools (account planning)
with a focus on capital and liquidity-light products [e.g. trade financing, payment transactions, capital market transactions).
These tools are specifically and successfully implemented in markets that are of parficular importance to earings {Austria,
Czech Republic, Romania, Russia, and Slovakia). Furthermore, Group-wide product competence centers facilitate access

to complex financing products [e.g. in the project, real estate and export financing areas), and internal efficiency can be
enhanced through the transfer of know-how and bundling.

Retail customers

RBI currently provides services to over 14.7 million retail customers in roughly 2,800 branch offices. In the retail banking
business, a balanced product and service portfolio is offered that comprises inter alia credit services [mortgages, credit cards
and personal loans), as well as payment transaction and higher-quality current account package services. Convenience and
simplicity are key elements of RBI's range of services. In doing so, RBIl improves ifs efficiency and cost/income structure.

In the premium (available assets of up to € 200,000) and private banking segment (available assets of at least € 200,000),

a gradual increase in asset volumes is seen in CEE as a whole. Under its private banking brand “Friedrich Wilhelm Raiffeisen,”
RBI currently serves nearly 21,000 customers (notably in the Czech Republic, Hungary, Romania, Russia, and Ukraine, as

well as in Slovakia under the Tatra banka brand). In day-to-day banking operations, top-quality advisory services, innovative
banking solutions [video or telephone advising, modern mobile banking options, etc.), and banking product packages tailored
to customers needs, ensure above average customer satisfaction.

Around 884,000 small businesses (companies with revenues of up to € 6 million) are serviced by roughly 2,500 customer
advisors. The key aspects of the services are simplicity ([payment transaction and account maintenance services), high quality
service and fast processing of business loans for small companies. Through collaborations with various supranational financial
insfitutions, that are active in the area of SME (small and medium-sized enterprises) financing, SME customers enjoy noticeable
benefits (e.g. easier access to loans).

Markets & investment banking

This area bundles support services for institutional customers, as well as Group-wide trading activities. Institutional customers
[particularly banks and insurance companies, sovereigns and public sector organizations) are supported by specialists in
Vienna, the network banks and international financial centers [e.g. London).

One focus is on capital market and investment banking products, as well as on the transaction business (e.g. frade financing
and payment fransactions). Particular sirengths lie in the strategic hedging of currency, interest rate and credit risks, the
intermediation between capital providers and local investment opportunities, as well as supporting companies with IPOs and
takeovers.

Further potential for growth lies in the expanding of business with insurance and asset management companies and in the
development of customized products for this customer segment.

Business activities in the capital market business have been realigned in prior years. Own-account frading has been reduced,
with activities now focused on supporting the capital market-oriented customer business. RBI's direct access to all major stock
exchanges in CEE, as well as its leading position on the Vienna stock exchange, makes it possible to cover all important asset
classes [e.g. shares, currencies, certificates, exchange-traded derivatives).

Internally, the focus is on strengthening cross-border services for global institutional customers, establishing a joint trading
platform and harmonizing IT systems.
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RBI in the capital markets

Capital increase

On 21 January 2014, RBI announced that it infended to strengthen its capital base by issuing new shares. The first stage of this
capifal increase was an offering of new shares fo selected qualified insfitutional investors by way of an accelerated bookbuilding
process (pre-placement), in which all 97,473,914 new shares were placed on 22 January. RZB participated in the capital increase
via its wholly owned subsidiary Raiffeisen International Beteiligungs GmbH with a commitment of € 750 million in the course of the
pre-placement. 21.3 per cent of the new shares from the pre-placement were subject to clawback with deferred settlement. This
was fo be applied to the extent that shareholders exercised their subscription rights in the second stage of the capital increase,
namely a rights offering during the period from 24 January to 7 February 2014.

Whereas RZB waived all of its subscription rights through its subsidiary, Raiffeisen International Beteiligungs GmbH, the remaining
shareholders exercised 35.7 per cent of the subscription rights. Consequently, 90,074,789 new shares were allocated to
qualified institutional investors from the pre-placement. This corresponds to 92.4 per cent of the total 97,473,914 shares issued by
way of the capital increase. The remaining 7,399,125 new shares were issued to existing shareholders. At a subscription and offer
price of € 28.50 per new share, the transaction brought a fotal of € 2,725 million in net new capital.

Financial markets swayed by monetary and global policy

The geopolitical situation in Ukraine and Russia dominated global financial markets throughout 2014. The threat of spiraling
sanctions against Russia, as well as uncertainty over the future course of the Russian administration, greatly unsettled international
investors and led repeatedly to corresponding stock price losses. As a result, the Russian rouble and the Ukrainian hryvnia lost
considerable ground against the US dollar and the euro.

Despite this, stock indexes such as the US Dow Jones and the German DAX achieved several new highs during the year. The
bullish sentiment in the equity markefs was bolstered by the low-interest rate policy adopted by the European Central Bank [ECB).
In early June, it cut its already low base rate from 0.25 to 0.15 per cent. At the same time, the ECB Council decided to impose a
penalty rate, for the first time, of minus 0.1 per cent on bank deposits at the ECB.

Over the course of the year, conflicts intensified not only between Ukraine and the separatists, but also between Russia and the
West, which led to economic sanctions on both sides. As a result of the sanctions, ongoing structural and economic problems in
several EU countries, as well as growing caution among businesses, the eurozone economy did not perform as well as expected in
the second half of the year. The ECB took the opportunity to cut its base rate again from 0.15 to 0.05 per cent in early September.
At the same time, the ECB Council decided to impose an even higher penalty rate on bank deposits held af the ECB - from minus
0.1 per cent fo minus 0.2 per cent - and started a bond purchase program. These steps led to a further devaluation of the euro
against the US dollar.

Towards the end of the year, most European and US stock markets again became increasingly volatile. On a positive note, key
economic indicators appeared to be stabilizing in Europe and the US. Countering this was China's disappointing economic
performance and the collapse of the Russian rouble. The Russian economy is faced with growing difficulties not only from the
sanctions, but also from capital outflows and a sharp drop in oil prices, which by year-end had fallen to the lowest level seen in
over five years.

Performance of RBI stock

After starting 2014 at € 25.62, RBI's stock hit its peak in January at € 31.27 before enfering a downward trend fill the end of the
year. On 16 December, if closed at its low for the year at € 11.51. The decline was caused mainly by the situation in Ukraine and
in Russia as well as the oil price drop, which affected the Russian economy and the rouble’s valuation. The Russian central bank
tried and failed to stem the currency’s decline. RBI's stock was trading at € 12.54 af the end of the year. Over the full year this
amounts to a share price loss of 51 per cent. It therefore underperformed compared to both the ATX ([down 15 per cent) and the
EURO STOXX Banks ([down 5 per cent).
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Price performance since 1 January 2014 compared to ATX and EURO STOXX Banks
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As at the editorial deadline on @ March 2015, RBI's stock was priced at € 13.32. The shares therefore recorded a gain of
6 per cent versus 31 December 2014.

RBI's market capitalization at the end of 2013, with the number of outstanding shares at 195.5 million, stood at € 5.0 billion. At
year-end 2014, the number of outstanding shares stood at 293.0 million and the market capitalization at € 3.7 billion. At the
editorial deadline, the market capitalization stood at € 3.9 billion.

In 2014, 163 million RBI shares were fraded, amounting to a total value of € 3.4 billion and an average daily volume of 658,697
shares.

Shareholder structure

As at the end of 2014, Raiffeisen Zentralbank Osterreich AG (RZB] held approximately 60.7 per cent of RBI's shares, with the
remaining balance in free float. RZB's share, which was roughly /8.5 per cent at year-end 2013, was reduced in the course of the
capital increase at the beginning of 2014 in benefit of the free float, which increased from around 21.5 per cent to about 39.3 per
cent. The broad geographical spread of investors as well as their diverse investment objectives resulted in a balanced shareholder
structure af the end of the year. Thus, RBI's owners included institutional investors, mainly from the US and UK, as well as a large
number of Austrian private investors. Sovereign wealth funds and supranational organizations, which promise stability by virtue of
their preferred long-term investment strategies, were amongst those institutional investors.

Stock data and details

Price as at 31 December 2014 €12.54
High/low in 2014 (closing prices) € 31.27/€ 11.51
Earnings per share for 2014 (€1.73)
Market capitalization as at 31 December 2014 € 3.7 billion
Average daily trading volume in 2014 (single count) 658,697 shares
Stock exchange turnover in 2014 (single count) € 3,428 million

Free float as at 31 December 2014

approximately 39.3%

ISIN

ATO000606306

Ticker symbols

RBI (Vienna Stock Exchange)

RBI AV (Bloomberg)

RBIV.VI (Reuters)

Market segment

Prime Market

Number of shares issued as at 31 December 2014

292979,038
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Bonds benefit from monetary policy

Yields on high-grade European government bonds fell steadily throughout 2014. This decline was primarily caused by the
ECB's loose monetary policy and geopolitical tensions that prompted many investors to seek refuge in the presumed security of
government bonds. Yields on ten-year German government bonds, for example, dropped below 1 per cent for the first time in
history. Bonds from countries such as Italy, Portugal and Spain also benefited from this frend and narrowed their spreads relative
to bonds issued by sovereigns with prime credit rafings. Yields on US government bonds shrank during the year despite the
prospect of an interest rate turnaround and reduction in bond buying by the US Federal Reserve, but still remained noticeably
higher than yields on German government bonds.

Successful issuance activities

RBI's benchmark transaction in February 2014 for € 500 million was met with strong demand. The callable subordinated bond,

issued fo strengthen the bank’s tier 2 capital, was oversubscribed several times within a short period. It has a coupon of 4.5 per

cent p. a. (reference rate EUR Mid-Swap plus 330 basis points). More than 380 institutional investors placed orders. Especially

strong demand came from the UK, Germany and Switzerland. The subordinated bond is callable in 2020 (subject to regulatory
requirements being fulfilled) and matures in 2025.

RBI rating

Last year, RBI was rated by Moody's Investors Service, Standard & Poor's and Fitch Ratings. In order to ensure accurate
assessment, RBI maintained regular contact with rating agency analysts and informed them, and other market actors, on a regular
basis about its performance and trends in RBI's business developments.

Rating agency Long-term rating Short-term rating Outlook
Moody's Investors Service Baa? P-2 Review for downgrade
Standard & Poor’s A- A2 CreditWatch negative
Fitch Ratings A F1 negative

Ratings as of editorial deadline.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting on 4 June 2014 approved a dividend payment of € 1.02 per share for the 2013 financial year.
As the new shares resulting from the capital increase, carried out in early 2014, were also entitled to full dividend rights for the
previous financial year, this resulted in a total dividend payout of around € 298 million.

As a result of the capital increase, existing authorized capital was largely utilized. In order to be able o also respond flexibly

to future capital requirements, the Annual General Meetfing again gave the Management Board anticipatory authorization fo
increase the company’s share capital up to 50 per cent within the next five years, with approval from the Supervisory Board.
Additionally, the Management Board was authorized to acquire own shares of up to 10 per cent of share capital, and if necessary
to redeem them, as well as to acquire own shares of up to 5 per cent of the share capital for the purpose of securities trading.

Martin Schaller, CEO of Raiffeisen-Landesbank Steiermark AG, and Bettina Selden, who brings with her, inter alia, her experience
as a member of the management board of both OeKB EH Beteiligungs- und Management AG and PRISMA Kreditversicherungs-
AG, were elected to the Supervisory Board for the first time. They succeed Markus Mair, who resigned with effect from 4 June
2014, and Stewart Gager, whose period of office ended on the same day. Kurt Geiger was reelected to RBI's Supervisory Board
by the Annual General Meefing, affer his term in office ended on 4 June 2014.

Proposed dividend

The next ordinary Annual General Meeting will take place on 17 June 2015. No equity or participation dividend will be
distributed for the 2014 financial year.
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Capital market communications

RBI offered international investors numerous opportunities to obtain first-hand information at 38 road shows and conferences in
2014 (18 events for equity investors, 11 for debt investors and the remainder for both groups|. The year kicked off with a road
show in advance of the capital increase at which members of the Management Board and the Investor Relations team met with
over 200 invesfors. Over the course of the year, representatives of RBIl and, in some cases, members of the Management Board
also traveled to Frankfurt, Geneva, Hamburg, London, Milan, New York, Paris, Prague, Warsaw, Zurich, as well as to the Austrian
towns of Stegersbach and Zrs.

As in previous years, the investor day in London, which followed the publication of the 2013 results, was very well attended. On
reporting dates, RBI continued to hold regular presentations for Austrian equity and debt investors at its head office, which struck a
chord. These were followed by conference calls, each involving 200 to 300 participants.

Alongside the already established quarterly results conference calls, RBI gave the financial community the opportunity to obtain
information, as well as answers to their questions, first-hand from the Management Board in additional conference calls held after
the release of the outlook revision in September and publication of the ECB stress test results in October. The RBI Management
Board subsequently had many individual discussions with investors, analysts and rating agencies.

RBI continued the previous year's practice of holding several debt investor calls a year in order to satisfy the unique information
needs of debt investors.

A total of 28 equity analysts and 23 bond analysts regularly report their investment recommendations on RBI, making RBI the

Austrian company with the greatest number of regular reports by analyst firms. In 2014, 603 analyst reports on RBI were published.

RBI continuously strives to keep market participants fully informed. In the interest of making its communications as easily accessible
and widespread as possible, RBI makes conference call presentations, as well as other important events, available as online
webcasts. These can be viewed af any time at www.rbinternational.com = Investor Relations = Presentations & Webcasts.

Financial calendar 2015

25 March 2015 Annual Report 2014, Conference Call
26 March 2015 RBI Investor Presentation, London

7 May 2015 Start of Quiet Period

21 May 2015 First Quarter Reporf, Conference Call

17 June 2015 Annual General Meeting

24 June 2015 Ex-Dividend and Dividend Payment Date
5 August 2015 Start of Quiet Period

19 August 2015 Semi-Annual Report, Conference Call
29 October 2015 Start of Quiet Period

12 November 2015 Third Quarter Report, Conference Call

Contact for equity and debt investors

E-mail: ir@rbinternational.com

Internet: www.rbinternational.com = Investor Relations
Telephone: +43-1-71 7072089

Fax: +43-1-71 7072138

Raiffeisen Bank International AG
Group Investor Relations

Am Stadtpark 9

1030 Vienna, Austria

Raiffeisen Bank International | Annual Report 2014

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEGMENT REPORTS GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT OVERVIEW OF RBI

SERVICE



20

Corporate
governance report

RBI attaches great importance to responsible and transparent business management, in order to maintain understanding and

trust with its various stakeholders - not least the capital market participants. Hence, RBI is committed to complying with the Austrian
Code of Corporate Governance (ACGC, or “the Code"), as in the version dated July 2012. The ACGC is publicly available on
the Austrian Working Group for Corporate Governance website (www.corporate-governance.at] and on the RBI website
[www.rbinternational.com = Investor Relations = Corporate Governance).

Transparency is a key issue of corporate governance and thus of particular importance to RBI. This corporafe governance report
is structured following the legal guidelines of Section 243b of the Austrian Commercial Code (UGB) and is based on the structure

set forth in Appendix 2 of the ACGC.

The ACGC is organized info rules L, C and R. L Rules [Legal Requirements) are based on compulsory legal requirements. C Rules
[Comply or Explain) should be observed; any deviation must be explained and justified in order to ensure conduct that complies
with the Code. R Rules (Recommendations) have the characteristics of recommendations; non-compliance does not need to be
reported or justified.

RBI deviates from the below C Rule, but conducts itself in accordance with the Code through the following explanation and
justification:

C Rule 45: non-competition clause for members of the Supervisory Board

RBlis a company of the Austrian Raiffeisen Banking Group (RBG), which is also a majority shareholder through its central institution,
RZB. Some members of the Supervisory Board therefore also hold executive roles in RBG banks. Moreover, a number of members
of the Supervisory Board hold executive roles in other banks and financial services institutions. Consequently, know-how and
experience specific fo the indusiry are applied in exercising the control function of the Supervisory Board, to the benefit of the
company.

With regard to R Rule 62 of the ACGC, the company commissioned KPMG Austria GmbH Wirtschaftsprifungs- und
Steuverberatungsgesellschaft [KPMG) to conduct an external evaluation on compliance with the C and R Rules of the Code.
The report on this external evaluation is public and available at www.rbinternational.com = Investor Relations = Corporate
Governance = External Evaluation of the CG Code.

Composition of the Management Board

In the 2014 financial year, the Management Board consisted of the following members:

Management Board member Year of birth Original appointment End of term

Karl Sevelda 1950 22 September 2010 30 June 2017
Chairman

Johann Strobl 19059 22 September 2010! 30 June 2017
Deputy Chairman

Aris Bogdaneris 1963 1 October 2004 31 December 2015
Member

Klemens Breuer 1967 16 April 2012 31 December 2015
Member

Martin Grill 1959 3 January 2005 30 June 2017
Member

Peter Lennkh 1963 1 October 2004 31 December 2015
Member

' Effective as of 10 October 2010.
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Members of the Management Board held seats on the supervisory board or comparable functions in the following domestic and
foreign companies that are not included in the consolidated financial statements:

® Karl Sevelda

B Johann Strobl

B Aris Bogdaneris
W Peter Lennkh

m Klemens Breuver

Oesterreichische Kontrollbank AG: Siemens AG Osterreich [since 28 November 2014)

Raiffeisen-leasing Management GmbH
Visa Worldwide Pte. Limited (advisory council)
Raiffeisen-leasing Management GmbH

FMS Wertmanagement A5R

Composition of the Supervisory Board

During the 2014 financial year, the Supervisory Board comprised of:

Supervisory Board member

Year of birth Original appointment

End of term

Walter Rothensteiner 1953 11 May 2001 Annual General Meeting 2016
Chairman

Erwin Hameseder 1956 8 July 2010 Annual General Meetfing 2015
1#Deputy Chairman

Heinrich Schaller 1959 20 June 2012 Annual General Meeting 2017
29 Deputy Chairman

Markus Mair 1964 8 July 2010 Annual General Meeting 2014
39 Deputy Chairman

(until 4 June 2014)

Martin Schaller 1965 4 June 2014 Annual General Meeting 2019
3 Deputy Chairman

[since 17 September 2014)

Klaus Buchleitner 1964 26 June 2013 Annual General Meeting 2015
Stewart D. Gager 1940 24 January 2005 Annual General Meeting 2014
Kurt Geiger 1946 9 June 2009 Annual General Meeting 2019
Ginther Reibersdorfer 1954 20 June 2012 Annual General Meeting 2017
Johannes Schuster 1670 8 July 2010 Annual General Meeting 2015
Bettina Selden 1952 4 June 2014 Annual General Meeting 2019
Christian Teufl 1952 8 July 2010 31 December 2014

Martin Prater? 1953 10 October 2010 Until further notice

Rudolf Kortenhof? 1961 10 October 2010 Until further notice

Peter Anzeletti-Reikl|? 1965 10 October 2010 Until further notice

Susanne Unger? 1961 18 January 2012 Until further notice

Helge Rechberger? 1967 10 October 2010 Until further notice

Effective as of 10 October 2010
2 Delegated by the Works Council
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Independence of the Supervisory Board

In accordance with C Rule 53 of the ACGC, the RBI Supervisory Board prescribed the following criteria for the independence of
the members of the company’s Supervisory Board:

B The Supervisory Board member shall not have been a member of the Management Board or a senior executive of the company
or one of its subsidiaries in the past five years.

B The Supervisory Board member shall not have, or have had in the previous year, any significant business relationships with the
company or a subsidiary of the company. This also applies fo business relationships with companies in which the Supervisory
Board member has a significant financial interest, albeit not with regard to carrying out executive functions within the company.
The approval of individual transactions by the Supervisory Board according to L Rule 48 of the ACGC does not automatically
lead to a qualification of “not independent”.

® Company circumstances and the mere exercise of the function of a board member or leading employee by a Supervisory
Board member does not, as a rule, lead to the company concerned being regarded as a “company in which a Supervisory
Board member has a significant financial interest,” fo the extent that circumstances do not support the presumption that the
Supervisory Board member derives a direct personal advantage from doing business with the company.

B The Supervisory Board member shall not have been an auditor of the company, nor shareholder or employee of the auditing
company in the previous three years.

® The Supervisory Board member shall not be a member of the management board of another company in which a Management
Board member of the company is @ member of the supervisory board.

B The Supervisory Board member shall not be part of the Supervisory Board for longer than 15 years. This does not apply to
Supervisory Board members who are shareholders with business interests in the company, or who represent the interests of such
shareholders.

B The Supervisory Board member shall not be a close family relation (direct descendant, spouse, partner, father, mother, uncle,
aunt, brother, sister, nephew, niece) of a member of the Management Board, or of persons who fill one of the positions
described in the preceding points.

In accordance with the criteria listed above for the independence of Supervisory Board members, all RBI Supervisory Board
members are considered independent.

Beftina Selden and Kurt Geiger, as members of the Supervisory Board, are both neither shareholders with a shareholding of
greater than 10 per cent, nor do they represent the interests of such shareholders. They are therefore “free floaf representatives”

according to C Rule 54 of the ACGC.

Members of the Supervisory Board had the following additional supervisory board mandates or comparable functions in
domestic and foreign companies listed on the stock exchange:

B \Walter Rothensteiner UNIQA Insurance Group AG (Chairman)

B Erwin Hameseder AGRANA Beteiligungs-AG (Chairman), STRABAG SE, UNIQA Insurance Group AG,
Sudzucker AG, Flughafen Wien AG

W Heinrich Schaller voestalpine AG, AMAG Austria Metall AG

W Johannes Schuster UNIQA Insurance Group AG

® Klaus Buchleitner BayWa AG, AGRANA Beteiligungs-AG

® Christian Teufl VK Mihlen AG (listed on the stock exchange until 27 June 2014)

m Kurt Geiger Demir Bank OJSC
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Members of the committees
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The rules of procedure of the Supervisory Board govern its organization and allocate particular tasks to the Working, Audit,
Remuneration, Risk, Nomination, and Personnel Committees. These committees are comprised of the following members:

Supervisory Working Audit Personnel Remuneration Risk Nomination
Board member Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee Committee
Wallter Rothensteiner Chairman Chairman Chairman Chairman Chairman Chairman
Erwin Hameseder 1*'Deputy 1*'Deputy 1*'Deputy 1*'Deputy 1*'Deputy 1*'Deputy
Chairman Chairman Chairman Chairman Chairman Chairman
Heinrich Schaller 2" Deputy 2" Deputy 2" Deputy 2" Deputy 2" Deputy 24 Deputy
Chairman Chairman Chairman Chairman Chairman Chairman
Markus Mair 3" Deputy 3 Deputy 3 Deputy 39 Deputy - -
(until 4 June 2014) Chairman Chairman Chairman Chairman
Johannes Schuster Member Member Member Member Member Member
Martin Schaller (since 3 Deputy 3 Deputy 34 Deputy 34 Deputy 34Deputy 34 Deputy
17 September 2014) Chairman Chairman Chairman Chairman Chairman Chairman
Martin Prater Member Member = Member Member Member
Rudolf Kortenhof Member Member = Member Member Member
Peter Anzeletti-Reikl Member Member = Member Member Member

Functions of the Management Board and the Supervisory Board

Allocation of competencies and functions of the Management Board

The RBI Management Board leads the company according to clearly defined goals, strategies and guidelines on its own authority,
with a focus on future-oriented business management and in line with modern business principles. In doing so, the Management
Board pursues the good of the company at all times and considers the interests of shareholders and employees. The Management
Board's areas of responsibility have been defined by the Supervisory Board, without prejudice to the general responsibility of the
Management Board, as follows (as at 1 January 2015):

CEO
Karl Sevelda

- Compliance

— Group Communications ~

~ Group Strategy —

— Human Resources —

= Internal Audit -

i Infernational Banking Units L

— Legal Services

— Management Secretariat

Markefing & Event
Management

= Participations

CRO
Johann Strobl

Credit Management
Corporates

Financial Insfitutions,
Country & Portfolio Risk
Management
Retail Risk Management
Risk Controlling

Risk Excellence & Projects

Workout

Retail Banking,
— Operations & IT
Aris Bogdaneris

Markets

Klemens Breuer

Business Management

- Consumer Banking & Dl il

L Group &Austrian T - Group Capital Markets |-

— lean I Insfitutional Clients -

Investment Banking

L Operations ~ Products

Procurement & Cost

Wisegemen L Raiffeisen Research L

Project Portfolio &
Security

Small Business & Premium
7 Banking

CFO
Martin Grill

Active Credit
Management

Invesfor Relations

Planning & Finance

Tax Management

Treasury

Corporate Banking
Peter Lennkh

Corporate Customers

Corporate Finance

Corporate Sales
Management &
Development

Infernational
Business Support

Trade Finance &
Transaction Banking
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RBI's Organization & Internal Control System was integrated into RZB during the financial year. It now deals with matters relating
to the internal control system, instructions and organization for both the RZB Group and the RBI Group. The servicing of RBI AG is
regulated through Service Level Agreements.

Effective as of 1 January 2015, RBI's Compliance division, part of the Legal & Compliance division until 31 December 2014, was
transferred to RZB as a stand-alone division. This division also performs the compliance duties for RBI and is regulated through a
Service Level Agreement.

The Management Board manages the company’s business in accordance with the law, the Articles of Association and the
Management Board's rules of procedure. The Management Board's weekly meetings are convened and led by the chairman.
The meetings ensure mutual information gathering and decision-making for all matters requiring the board’s approval. The internal
regulations of the Supervisory Board and the Management Board contain information and reporting duties of the Management
Board, as well as a catalog of measures that require the approval of the Supervisory Board.

Decision-making authority and activities of the committees (of the Supervisory Board)

The internal regulations of the Management Board, as well as the Supervisory Board and its committees, outline the business
management measures that require the approval of the Supervisory Board or of the responsible committee.

The Working Committee was responsible for all matters that were referred to it by the Supervisory Board. These included,

in particular, the approval of the creation, closure and liquidation of subsidiaries, as well as the acquisition or disposal of
parficipations, where the change in the capitalized book value of the company holding exceeded a certain amount (up to the
ceiling amount for overall Supervisory Board responsibility). Moreover, the Working Committee deals with the execution of
functions in the management bodies of other companies by members of the Management Board and the appointment of persons
to the management boards and supervisory bodies of banks within the Group. Furthermore, the Working Committee approved the
assumption of operational banking risk above a certain level up to the ceiling amount for overall Supervisory Board responsibility.

The Personnel Committee deals with the remuneration of Management Board members as well as their employment contracts. In
particular, it is responsible for approving bonus allocation and stock allocation to members of the Management Board through the
Share Incentive Program.

The Audit Committee monitors the accounting process and the effectiveness of the company's internal control, audit and risk
management systems. Its fasks include the supervision of the annual audit of the financial statements and consolidated financial
statements, as well as checking and supervising the independence of the Group's auditor, particularly with respect to additional
work performed for the audited company. The committee examines the annual financial statements, the management report, the
consolidated financial statements and the Group management report, and is responsible for the preparation of its approval. It
also audits the proposal for earnings appropriation and the corporate governance report. The Audit Committee presented a
report on the results of its audits to the Supervisory Board. The committee is also responsible for preparing the Supervisory Board
recommendation for the selection of the external auditor and bank auditor. Moreover, the Audit Committee discusses the content
of the management letter as well as the report on the effectiveness of the risk management system and the internal control sysfem.

The Remuneration Committee’s responsibilities include establishing guidelines for the company's general remuneration policies
and practices, particularly on the basis of the Austrian Banking Act (BWG), as well as relevant sections of the Austrian Code of
Corporate Governance. The Remuneration Committee supervises and regularly reviews the remuneration policies, remuneration
practices, and relevant incentive structures to ensure that all related risks were controlled, monitored and limited in accordance
with the BWG, as well as the company’s capitalization and liquidity. In doing so, the long-term interests of shareholders, investors
and employees of the company are also taken into account, as are the economic interests of maintaining a functioning banking
system and the stability of the financial market. The Remuneration Committee directly reviews the remuneration of executives
responsible for risk management and compliance.

A Risk Committee was established during the 2014 financial year. Its responsibilities include advising the Management Board on
current and future risk propensity and risk strategy, monitoring the implementation of this risk strategy with regard to the controlling,
moniforing and limitation of risk in accordance with the Austrian Banking Act (BWG), as well as the observing of capitalization
and liquidity. Itis also responsible for ensuring proper consideration of the pricing of offered services and products, as well as the
business model and credit risk strategy, and where applicable, to submit a plan with corrective measures. The Risk Committee also
monitors if the incentives offered by the internal remuneration system give adequate consideration to risk, capital, liquidity, and the
probability as well as timing of realized gains.
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The Nomination Committee also met for the first time during the financial year. It concerns itself with the filling of any posts on the
Management Board and the Supervisory Board that have become vacant. Consideration is given to the balance and diversity

of knowledge, skills and experience of all members of the governing body in question. The Nomination Committee also sets

a target ratio for the under-represented sex on the Management Board and the Supervisory Board, as well as a strategy for
achieving the defined target. In its decision-making process, it ensures that the Management Board and the Supervisory Board are
not dominated by one individual person, or a small group of persons, in a way which is confrary to the company's inferests. The
Nomination Committee’s other responsibilities include:

B regularly evaluating, and in all cases where events indicate a need for a revaluation, the structure, size, composition and
performance of the Management Board and Supervisory Board, as well as suggesting changes to the Supervisory Board
where necessary;

W regularly conducting, but at least once a year, an evaluation of the knowledge, skills and experience of the individual members
of both the Management Board and Supervisory Board, and also of the respective governing body as a whole, and informing

the Supervisory Board of the results; and

B reviewing the Management Board's policy with regard to the selection of executives and supporting the Supervisory Board in
preparing recommendations for the Management Board.

Atits meeting on 21 January 2014, the Supervisory Board established a temporary Project Committee to take further decisions

on matters relating to RBI's capital increase. It comprised of Walter Rothensteiner, Erwin Hameseder, Heinrich Schaller, Johannes
Schuster, Martin Prater and Rudolf Kortenhof. The Project Committee was authorized, in particular, to decide on the final extent of
the capital increase, the subscription ratio, as well as the subscription and offer price, and to decide on corresponding adjustments

to the Articles of Association. The committee’s work ended on 10 February 2014 after the corresponding decisions had been
taken.

Number of meetings of the Supervisory Board and of the committees

The Supervisory Board held eight meetings during the reporting period. In addition, the Management Board fully informed the
Supervisory Board on a prompt and regular basis of all relevant matters of the company’s performance, including the risk position
and risk management of the company, and material Group companies, especially in case of important matters.

The Working Committee held eight meetings in the 2014 financial year. The Audit Committee met twice, the Personnel Committee
once, and the Remuneration Committee, the Risk Committee and the Nomination Committee each mef twice. The Project

Committee met once.

Only one member of the Supervisory Board {Markus Mair] was hindered from personally attending more than half of the sittings
of the Supervisory Board.

In addition, the Supervisory Board and the Working, Project, and Nomination Committees also passed circular resolutions.

Further information on the activities of the Supervisory Board can be found in the Report of the Supervisory Board.

Management Board and Supervisory Board
remuneration disclosure

Management Board remuneration

The following total amounts were paid to the Management Board of RBI:

in € thousands 2014 2013
Fixed remuneration 5101 5477
Bonuses [incl. portions for prior years) 2,798 2,947
Share-based payments 0 0
Other remuneration 2103 1,013
Total 10,002 9,437
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Fixed remuneration, as shown in the above table, includes salaries and benefits in kind. Performance-based components of the
Management Board's remuneration basically consist of bonus payments (immediately payable shares of the cash portion of
the bonus for 2013 and deferred bonus amounts from previous years| and share-based remuneration under the Share Incentive
Program (SIP).

For the 2014 year [payable in 2015), there was no bonus allocation for the Management Board due to the operating result.
Furthermore, there was no allocation of share-based payments in 2013, as no SIP tranche had been issued in 2010 owing to
the merger between Raiffeisen International and the principal business areas of Raiffeisen Zentralbank Osterreich AG (RZB).
Moreover, the maturity of the program was extended fo five years in accordance with legal regulations. Therefore, the next SIP
tranche will not mature before 2016.

The measurement of bonuses is linked to the achievement of company goals in relation to profit after tax, return on risk-adjusted
capifal [RORAC), and cost/income ratio, as well as to annually consented on personal goals. Payment of bonuses is deferred as
set forth in the Austrian Banking Act (BWG) and implemented according to internal RBI regulations.

Management Board members’ contracts specify a maximum bonus. Similarly, SIP includes a cap amounting to three times the
allocation value. A maximum limit is thus in place for all variable compensation components. Other remuneration consists of
compensation for board-level functfions in associated companies, payments to pension funds and reinsurance policies, as well as
to other insurance and benefits.

The Management Board’s remuneration paid in 2014 is shown in detail as follows:

Fixed Bonus allocations for Share-based
in € thousands remuneration 2013 and prior years payments Other Total
Karl Sevelda 1,108 582 0 378 2,068
Johann Strobl 908 555 0 337 1,800
Aris Bogdaneris 808 480 ¢ 357 1,645
Klemens Breuer 759 398 0 391 1,548
Martin Grill 759 482 0 303 1,544
Peter Lennkh 759 301 0 337 1,397
Total 5,101 2,798 0 2,103 10,002

In addition to the amounts listed above, Herbert Stepic received an amount of € 803 thousand in fixed remuneration on the basis
of contractual obligations. Furthermore, deferred bonus amounts totaling € 203 thousand were paid to Herbert Stepic and Patrick
Butler on account of their previous work on the Management Board.

Principles of remuneration policy and practices in accordance with Section 39 (2) in
conjunction with Section 39b of the Austrian Banking Act (BWG)

In accordance with Section 39 (2] in conjunction with Section 39b of the Austrian Banking Act (BWG) including annexes, RBI's
Supervisory Board approved the “General Principles of the Remuneration Policy and Practice” in 2011. Remuneration of all
employees, including the Management Board and other “risk personnel” must comply with these principles. These principles
apply to bonus payments for 2011 and subsequent years. The Remuneration Committee is responsible for the regular monitoring
of these policies and practices and their implementation. Taking the current version of Section 39 (2) in conjunction with Section
39b of the Austrian Banking Act (BWG) including annexes info account, following the implementation of Directive 2013/36/EU,
the Remuneration Committee of RBI's Supervisory Board approved a new version of the “General Principles of the Remuneration
Policy and Practice” in 2014, which were applied as of 2014.

Share Incentive Program

Due to the enormous increase in the complexity of the regulatory provisions for variable remuneration, the Management Board
was prompted to review the benefits and meaningfulness of share-based remuneration. Originally intended as a variable long-
term remuneration element which is geared to market and corporate success, the SIP has since lost this meaning because

the annual bonus for the same target group of top executives is now deferred for three to five years, and half must be paid in
instruments (e.g. shares). It was therefore decided that no further SIP tranches will be issued in future.

No franche of the Share Incentive Program matured in 2014, as no SIP franche was issued in 2010 and the maturity of the

program was extended to five years in 2011, in accordance with legal regulations. Consequently, the next SIP tranche will not
mature until 2016.
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Under the SIP, new tranches were last issued in 2011, 2012 and 2013. This means that on the reporting date, contingent shares
for these three tranches were allocated. As at 31 December 2014, the number of these contingent shares was 975,955 (of which
212,796 were attributable to the 2011 allocation, 402,209 to the 2012 allocation and 360,950 to the 2013 allocation). The
number of contingently allocated shares originally announced changed due to various personnel changes within Group units. It is
aggregated in the following table:

SIP 2011, 2012 and 2013

Number of contingently allocated Minimum allocation Maximum allocation
Group of persons shares at 31/12/2014 of shares of shares
Members of the Management
Board of RBI 331,707 99,513 497,561
Members of the management
boards of bank subsidiaries
and branches offiliated to RBI 409 539 122,862 614,309
Executives of RBI and other
affiliated companies 234,709 70,413 352,064

No shares were repurchased for SIP in 2014.

Expenditure for severance payments and pensions

The same rules essentially apply for the members of the Management Board as for employees. They provide for a basic
confribution fo a pension fund on the part of the company and an additional contribution when the employee makes their own
contributions in the same amount. Additional individual pension benefits, which are financed by a reinsurance policy, apply to
three members of the Management Board.

In the event of a function or contract termination, two members of the Management Board are entifled to severance payments
in accordance with the Salaried Employees Act and the Banking Sector Tariff Agreement, one member in accordance with
contractual agreements and three members in accordance with the Employee Benefit Act. In principle, the severance payment
claims under the Salaried Employees Act or contractual agreements expire if the Management Board member resigns.

Furthermore, profection against occupational disability risk is provided by a pension fund and/or on the basis of an individual
pension benefit, which is secured by a reinsurance policy. Contracts for Management Board members are limited to the duration
of their term in office or a maximum of five years. Regulations regarding severance payments, in case of the early termination

of Management Board mandates, are based on the principles stipulated by the Austrian Code of Corporate Governance, as
well as on the sfipulated maximum limits (@ maximum of two years' total annual remuneration for early termination without serious
cause and in any case no longer than the remaining term. No remuneration is given for premature terminations for serious reasons
caused by the Management Board member|.

Supervisory Board remuneration

Supervisory Board remuneration was apportioned to individual Supervisory Board members as follows. The amounts provided
are provisional amounts from the statement of financial position, subject to the approval of the Annual General Meeting 2015.
Attendance fees were not paid.

Supervisory Board member in€
Walter Rothensteiner 70,000
Erwin Hameseder 60,000
Heinrich Schaller 60,000
Markus Mair 30,000
Klaus Buchleitner 50,000
Stewart D. Gager 25,000
Kurt Geiger 50,000
Ginther Reibersdorfer 50,000
Johannes Schuster 50,000
Christian Teufl 50,000
Bettina Selden 25,000
Martin Schaller 30,000
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D&QO insurance

In the 2014 financial year, a D&O (directors and officers) financial loss and liability insurance was signed with UNIQA
Sachversicherung AG for the Supervisory Board, the Management Board and key executives, the cost of which is borne by the
company.

Annual General Meeting

The Annual General Meeting for financial year 2013 was held on 4 June 2014 in Vienna. The Annual General Meeting for
financial year 2014 will take place on 17 June 2015. The convening notice will be published in the Wiener Zeitung's official
register and in electronic form a minimum of 28 days before the Annual General Meeting.

At the Annual General Meeting the shareholders, as owners of the company, can exercise their rights by voting. The fundamental
principle of "one share one vote” applies. Accordingly, there are no restrictions on voting rights and all shareholders have equal
rights. Every share confers one vote; registered shares have not been issued. Shareholders may exercise their voting rights
themselves or by means of an authorized agent. RZB has not exercised its right to nominate up to one third of the Supervisory
Board members to be elected by the Annual General Meeting, as per the Articles of Association, so that the share structure
complies with the principle of “one share, one vote".

Report on measures taken by the company to promote women to the
Management Board, the Supervisory Board and into executive positions
(Section 80 of the Austrian Stock Corporation Act [AktG]) as laid down
in Section 243b (2) 2 of the Austrian Commercial Code (UGB)

One of Raiffeisen’s fundamental values has always been to offer equal opportunities for equal performance regardless of gender
or other factors. This begins with the recruitment process, where it is important to ensure that the same standards are always
applied in staff selection, without prejudice and without restrictions. The relatively high proporfion of 67 per cent of female
employees at RBI underscores the effectiveness of these activities.

The following table shows the total proportion of women in managerial positions (positions with staff responsibility) at RBI as a
whole, as well as the breakdown by Management Board, tier 2 and tier 3 management levels. Changes can mostly be explained
by total headcount fluctuations (e.g. reduction measures), as well as by organizational adjustments (number of organizational units
or hierarchical levels| at various Group units.

Proportion of women of the ~ Proportion of women of the ~ Management Tier 2 Tier 3
Year total number of employees total number of executives Board management management
2014 67% 54% 15% 36% 46%
2013 67 % 56% 16% 41% 50%
2012 67% 56% 15% 41% 52%

A corresponding framework o promote the advancement of women must be established and continually developed. Improving
the family-work balance is a very important element of this. Appropriate measures include flexible working hours, part-time models
and home office. These models are implemented in nearly all countries the Group is active in, and in accordance with the local
stafutory provisions. The measures are supplemented with further national initiatives, such as the company’s kindergarten with
employee-friendly operating hours at the Vienna site.

The Management Board is aware of the need to continuously promote the existing initiatives as well as to maintain its openness to
new initiatives in order fo further increase the percentage of women in highly qualified positions. To achieve this end, it encourages
women to fake advantage of these opportunities and fo make specific calls for such initiatives.

In order to build on management skills, RBI offers targeted training and continuing education programs, which also proved popular
among female employees. For example, approximately 38 per cent of the participants in the Group-wide fop-management
program “Execute” were women. In 2014, female employees accounted for 15 per cent of participants in the restructured
Advanced Leadership Training program for middle management.
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Transparency

The internet, particularly the company website, plays an important role for RBI with regard to open communication with shareholders,
their representatives, customers, analysts, employees, and the interested public. Therefore, the website offers regularly updated
information and services on the following fopics: annual and interim reports, company presentations, conference call webcasfs,
ad-hoc releases, press releases, investor relations releases, share price information and stock data, information for debt investors,
financial calendar with advanced notice of important dates, information on securities transactions of Management Board and
Supervisory Board that are subject to reporting requirements (directors’ dealings), RBI's Articles of Association, the corporate
governance report, analysts' research and recommendations, as well as an ordering service for written information and registration
for the automatic receipt of investor relations news by e-mail.

Conflicts of interest

Both the Management Board and the Supervisory Board of RBI are required to disclose any potential conflicts of interest.

Members of the Management Board must therefore disclose to the Supervisory Board any significant personal inferests in
fransactions involving the company and Group companies, as well as any other conflicts of interest. They must also inform the
other members of the Management Board. Members of the Management Board who occupy management positions within other
companies must ensure a fair balance between the interests of the companies in question.

Members of the Supervisory Board must immediately report any potential conflicts of interest to the Chairman of the Supervisory
Board. In the event that the Chairman himself should encounter a conflict of interest, he must report this immediately to the Deputy
Chairman. Company agreements with members of the Supervisory Board that require members to perform a service for the
company or for a subsidiary outside their duty on the Supervisory Board (Section 228 (3) UGB in exchange for not-insignificant
compensation require the approval of the Supervisory Board. This also applies to agreements with companies in which a member
of the Supervisory Board has a significant financial interest. Furthermore, related party transactions as defined by Section 28 of the
Austrian Banking Act (BWG) require the approval of the Supervisory Board.

Accounting and audit of financial statements

RBI's consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS)
as applied in the EU. They also comply with the regulations of the Austrian Banking Act (BWG) in conjunction with the Austrian
Commercial Code fo the extent that these are applicable fo the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated annual
financial statements are published within the first four months of the financial year following the year under review. Interim reports
are published no later than two months after the end of the respective period under review pursuant to IFRS.

The Annual General Meeting selected KPMG Austria AG Wirtschaftsprifungs- und Steuerberatungsgesellschaft, Vienna, now
KPMG Austria GmbH Wirtschaftsprifungs- und Steuerberatungsgesellschaft, as its external auditor and bank auditor for the
2014 financial year. KPMG Austria GmbH Wirtschaftsprifungs- und Steuerberatungsgesellschaft has confirmed to RBI that it
has the certification of a quality auditing system. It has also declared that there are no reasons for disqualification or prejudice.
The Supervisory Board is informed of the result of the audit by a statutory report regarding the audit of the consolidated financial
statements by the auditor, as well as by the report of the Audit Committee. Furthermore, the auditor assesses the efficiency of

the company’s risk management in accordance with the Austrian Code of Corporate Governance, based on the documents
submitted fo him and otherwise available. The resulting report is presented to the Chairman of the Supervisory Board, who is
responsible for addressing the report in the Audit Committee and for reporting thereon in the Supervisory Board.

The Management Board

C
Karl Sevelda Joharh Strobl
Aris Bogdaneris Klemens B&ir
9. 4
Martin Grill eter Lennkh
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Sustainability management

at RB

Within the RZB Group (of which RBI is an important part), economic, ecological and social responsibilities form part of a whole.
Sustainable action has been part of the Group's agenda and identity since it was founded by Friedrich Wilhelm Raiffeisen. Thus,
corporate responsibility and sustainability are integral components of RBI's business activities.

RBI promotes sustainability issues and ensures compliance with the ten principles of the “United Nations Global Compact
(UNGC)."

According to the cornerstones of the sustainability strategy, the role of the responsible banker is of particular importance

with regard to lending and investment activities. The involvement of the International Finance Corporation (IFC) in RBI's

capifal increase at the start of 2014 - and the associated agreement with the network banks in Russia, Poland, Bosnia and
Herzegovina, as well as Kosovo - led to additional requirements including the introduction of an environmental and social
management system which entails, among other things, compliance with the IFC's Performance Standards and the IFC Exclusion
List. The eight IFC Performance Standards relate to the following: social and ecological assessment and management systems;
labor and working conditions; prevention and reduction of environmental pollution; public health, safety and security; land
acquisition and involuntary resetflement; biodiversity conservation and sustainable management of resources; indigenous
peoples; as well as cultural heritage. They serve as a benchmark for identifying and managing environmental and social risks.

Furthermore, RBI acted as joint bookrunner in September 2014, together with three other UNICO member banks, for the
structuring and placement of a European Investment Bank (EIB) Climate Awareness Bond.

In 2014, RBI was again listed in the Austrian sustainability index VBV Osterreichischer Nachhaltigkeitsindex - VONIX). This
index contains listed Austrian companies which are leaders in terms of social and ecological performance.

In preparation for the Stakeholder Council 2014, a focus group of internal and external experts was organized on the subject of
"RZB Group 2025 - Sustainable Future Scenarios and Strategies”. The three rounds of dialog focused on man and his changing
requirements, market trends, new business models and technologies, as well as changes in framework conditions, policy and
governance. The numerous suggestions and proposals put forward by the participants are being analyzed in order to derive
concrete steps for the current sustainability program.

As a fair partner, RBI maintains an active, fransparent and open dialog with all stakeholders. In this regard, the Sustainability
Report, an annual publication on sustainability performance, plays an important role. At the Econ Awards 2014, RBI's most
recent Sustainability Report received a gold award for outstanding achievements in corporate communications in German-
speaking countries. The RZB Group's 2011/12 Sustainability Report “We create sustainable value” received its first ever award
in the category “Sustainability and CSR Report”, while the electronic update for the reporting year 2013 received a prize at the
Austrian Sustainability Reporting Awards [ASRA| in 2014, for being one of the best sustainability reports produced by a major
Austrian corporation.

In order to identify new, innovative ideas and projects in the field of sustainability and to get employees more involved in the
subject of sustainability and climate protection, RBI participated in the “Raiffeisen Sustainability Challenge” organized by the
Raiffeisen Climate Protection Initiative (RKI) in fall 2014. Three category choices were available: Sustainable financial products
and services, sustainable construction, renovation and mobility as well as internal measures. RBI employees submitted a total of
30 projects. The three best projects were awarded prizes and took part in the national final.

The Carbon Disclosure Project (CDP) is a non-profit organization aimed at reducing CO, emissions. The CDP collects data and
information annually using standardized questionnaires. The CDP now manages the world's largest database on environmental
data of listed companies. Investors access the data more than 8.8 million times a year.

RBI has been reporting under the Carbon Disclosure Project since 2011 and has been a CDP Reporter Services member since
2013. The data relating to the CDP is audited in accordance with ISO 14064-3. The companies which perform best in terms

of reporting and planning, as well as in the implementation of measures, form the Carbon Performance Leadership Index [CPLI).
In 2014, RBI was represented in this index for the second time. Moreover, with 96 A points, RBI has been ranked among the
five best companies within the “Financials” sector in the DACH region (Germany, Austria and Switzerland) for the first time. The
average for the DACH region is 69 C.
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In order to reduce emissions, it is important to know the precise sources of such emissions. The CO, emission figures for Group
head office were first recorded in 2009. Whereas in 2009, “energy”, at 56 per cent, was the greatest contributor to RBI's CO e
emissions (CO, equivalent or CO_e is a term used to describe the effect of greenhouse gases caused by human beings on the
greenhouse effect), the 2014 survey showed a marked improvement. The reduction in electricity consumption, the switch to
green electricity (without the use of large-scale hydropower), and the increase in energy efficiency, not least through the use of
district cooling, enabled this share to be reduced to 10 per cent. The partial relocation to the nearly zero-energy building at the
new location “R 19" in Muthgasse in the Vienna-Débling district also played a role. “Transport” (business travel) now accounts
for the highest share of CO,e emissions. Paper-based CO,e emissions were also reduced, by 93 per cent, through cutting paper
consumption and switching to recycled paper. Since 2009, the CO, footprint per employee has been reduced 34 per cent and
now stands at 2,312 kg CO,e.

Further attention focused on mobility, one of the three biggest sources of CO, emissions in the RZB Group. The first survey on
employees’ journeys to work was conducted in 2009 on behalf of the Environment Committee. A new mobility survey was
launched in fall of 2014 to ascertain employees’ travel habits during business trips and when traveling to their place of work.
To increase the number of surveys returned by the network banks, the online questionnaire was translated into the respective
national language. The results will be evaluated at national level in the first quarter of 2015.

As an engaged citizen, RBI assumes responsibility for society and the environment. As part of social development, it supports a
wide variety of charitable projects, also via the H. Stepic CEE charity which is involved with charitable projects in Central and
Eastern Europe. When selecting the charity projects, care is taken to ensure the aid really does reach those who need it most
urgently. The offices involved make sure aid is provided promptly and without red tape. All projects are subjected to local-level
monitoring and their progress is reporfed.
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Market development

Weak economic growth in Europe — recovery in the US

The eurozone economy developed weaker than expected in 2014, and the outlook for 2015 is also subdued. It posted a mod-
est 0.9 per cent yearon-year GDP growth in 2014, following minus 0.4 per cent in the prior year. On the one hand, this was
driven by solid growth figures in Germany and by a recovery in a number of countries (Spain, Ireland and Portugal) that had
previously posted weaker growth. On the other, economic growth in major countries such as Italy and France disappointed. The
weak economic trend confributed to a significant decline in inflation. As falling commodity prices further exacerbated this trend,
inflation averaged only 0.4 per centin 2014, after 1.4 per centin 2013. A decline in consumer goods prices can be expected
for at least the beginning of 2015. In a bid to bolster economic growth and prevent deflationary risks, the ECB took additional
expansionary and unconventional measures in 2014 as well as in early 2015. The weaker external value of the euro is expected
to be supportive for an economic recovery for the euro area in 2015. The maijor risk factors to economic growth and the financial
markets in the euro area remain fo be the tense geopolitical situation in addition to deflationary tendencies and delayed reforms
in a number of eurozone countries.

Overall, current signs indicate a strong decoupling of economic cycles between Europe and the US. Last year the US economy,
mirroring ifs frend from the two previous years, grew 2.4 per cent, driven by private consumption and corporate investment. Private
consumption benefitted from positive labor market conditions, moderately increasing wages and a sharp drop in energy prices in
the second half of the year. Unlike in the previous three years, fiscal consolidation has had hardly any dampening effect on eco-
nomic activity in the US. Even though the increase in economic output lagged the momentum of past upswings, the labor market
continued its robust recovery. Over the course of the year, unemployment fell from 6.7 per cent to 5.6 per cent, just slightly above
the level deemed consistent with full employment.

CEE marked by divergent trends

The formative economic recovery in CEE in 2012 and 2013 weakened in 2014. The CEE region as a whole posted 1.0 per cent
economic growth in 2014, only marginally outpacing the eurozone. This frend was primarily driven by the situation in Russia and
Ukraine, where geopolitical risks coupled with structural weaknesses resulted in stagnation (Russia) or a deep adjustment reces-
sion (Ukraine). In 2014, Ukraine received extensive financial help from the Infernational Monetary Fund (IMF) and the EU in order
to facilitate necessary structural and institutional restructuring measures and to protect against financial market risks. This financial
aid was increased in 2015.

In contrast to the frend - superimposed by Russia - in the region as a whole, the economies in Central Europe (CE) and South-
eastern Europe (SEE) noticeably grew in 2014. CE recorded average GDP growth of 2.9 per cent, compared to 1.4 per cent in
SEE. In addition to exports, domestic demand also recovered significantly, predominantly in CE countries. The solid economic
performance in CE is broad-based. Moreover, all CE countries experienced significantly positive GDP growth rates in 2014, with
the Czech Republic, Hungary and Slovenia reversing their stagnation and recession trends of previous years. In the CE region,
economic growth particularly stood out in Poland and Hungary in 2014; these countries achieved GDP growth of more than

3.0 per cent. During the same period, economic output in Slovakia and Slovenia expanded roughly 2.5 per cent, and by 2.0 per
cent in the Czech Republic. The positive trend is expected to continue in 2015, with solid GDP growth of 3.0 per cent expected
in CE, mainly driven by continued notable growth in Germany and increasingly strong domestic demand and investment.

In a number of SEE countries, the restructuring efforts of recent years are already showing first results. In 2013 and 2014, GDP
growth in SEE was primarily driven by Romania, while other economies remained in stagnation or recession. In light of the natural
disasters that heavily impacted a number of SEE countries, economic growth in the region weakened to 1.4 per centin 2014,
following 2.1 per cent in 2013. The weakerthan-expected recovery in the eurozone is also dampening growth in SEE - first and
foremost in ltaly and France, countries of greater importance to SEE. The strongest growth - at 2.9 per cent - was recorded in
Romania, which is benefitting from successful structural reforms, but sfill suffering from weak domestic demand; Albania followed
with 2.0 per cent. Economic growth in Bulgaria reached 1.1 per cent despite a shortterm bank run in the summer of 2014. Croa-
tia, suffering from deep structural problems, remained in the grip of recession in 2014, marking ifs sixth consecutive year without
growth. While Bosnia-Herzegovina got off lightly with a stagnating economy, Serbia suffered another sharp decline in 2014. In
parficular, Serbia had to contend with the consequences of the flood disaster, as well as from delays to policy reforms, and suf-
fered a drop in economic output of 1.8 per centin 2014. In an effort to stabilize its macroeconomic and budgetary situation,
Serbia signed a precautionary arrangement with the IMF in the fourth quarter. The agreement set out targets for fiscal consolida-
tion and privatization. Romania has shown by example that cooperation with the IMF can result in sustained structural reform. In
this respect, the step can be seen as positive. A moderate, accelerated growth frend is expected in the SEE region in 2015, with
GDP set to increase 1.9 per cent and fo be led once again by Romania.
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The economic momentum in Russia, Ukraine and Belarus, which already showed signs of slowing in 2014, is expected to contin-
ue in 2015. Following a de facto stagnation in 2014, Russia looks set to experience a recession in 2015, with GDP projected to
decline 4.0 per cent. A similar trend is emerging in Belarus, where at least a slight GDP decline is expected. Barring a further
escalation of the geopolitical situation, the Russian economy could return to moderate growth in 2016. In Ukraine, the adjustment
recession that began in 2014 is set to continue in 2015, with GDP expected to decline at least 5.5 per cent. If comprehensive
reforms are unsuccessful, economic and financial restructuring in Ukraine may prove to be much more difficult to implement. Over-
all, GDP in the CEE Other region (Ukraine, Belarus) will contract in 2015, continuing the trend from 2014. Ukraine is likely to
remain dependent on substantial financial support from the interational community in both 2015 and 2016.

Annual real GDP growth in per cent compared to the previous year

Region/country 2013 2014e 2015f 2016f
Czech Republic (0.7) 2.0 24 3.0
Hungary 1.5 3.5 2.5 25
Poland 1.7 3.3 3.5 3.4
Slovakia 1.4 2.4 2.5 3.0
Slovenia (1.0) 26 2.0 20
CE 1.0 2.9 3.0 3.1
Albania 04 2.0 3.0 40
Bosnia and Herzegovina 2.5 0.5 2.5 3.0
Bulgaria 0.9 1.1 1.2 2.1
Croatia 0.9) (0.4) 0.0 1.0
Kosovo 3.4 0.5 2.0 3.0
Romania 34 29 3.0 3.0
Serbia 2.5 (1.8) 0.0 2.5
SEE 2.1 1.4 1.9 2.6
Russia 1.3 0.6 (4.0) 0.5
Belarus 0.9 1.6 (2.0) 1.0
Ukraine 0.0 (6.9) (5.5) 0.5
CEE Other 0.3 (4.5) (3.9) 0.6
Austria 0.2 0.3 0.7 1.8
Germany 0.2 1.6 1.6 22
Eurozone (0.4) 0.9 1.2 1.9
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Economic growth in Austria remains behind expectations

Following a promising second half of 2013, a period of stagnation then took hold that lasted the whole year, implying real gross
domestic product growth of 0.3 per cent for 2014 as a whole [2013: 0.2 per cent). Despite stable employment growth, private
consumption failed to show signs beyond a fentative recovery. Government spending was only somewhat more dynamic. Corpo-
rate investment activity also disappointed, particularly in the second half of the year, while the positive trend at the beginning of
the year was atiributable to pulforward effects. In the second half of the year, weak growth in domestic demand was partly offset
by foreign trade. Economic growth momentum was also weak at the beginning of 2015.

Global currencies

In the first half of 2014, the euro/US dollar exchange rate fluctuated within a very narrow range of between EUR/USD 1.35 and
EUR/USD 1.39. In the second half of the year, the euro went info freefall, pushing the single currency down to EUR/USD 1.21 by
the end of the year. At the beginning of the year, the euro’s downward trend accelerated again. In early march 2015, the euro
was 1.12 against the dollar. The exchange rate was mainly driven by the monetary policies of the ECB and US Federal Reserve.
Since the middle of 2014, there have been indications that the US Federal Reserve would begin normalizing its monetary policy,
a first step being the end of its bond purchases in November. At the same time, there were indications that the ECB would embark
on a similar bond purchasing program in the foreseeable future.

Over the whole of 2014, the Swiss franc fluctuated between nearly 1.20 and 1.24 against the euro, with the average exchange
rate at 1.22. At the beginning of the year, the Swiss franc was more or less on the back foot but in the wake of geopolitical uncer-
tainties, returned fo its safe haven sfatus in the spring and has been steadily appreciating since. The ECB's expansionary monetfary
policy and the shrinking interest rate differential between the eurozone and Switzerland have also contributed fo the Swiss franc's
appreciation. Towards the end of the year, appreciation pressure on the Swiss franc against the euro increased to such an extent
that the SNB (Swiss National Bank) infroduced negative key interest rates. On 15 January 2015, the SNB surprisingly withdrew
its minimum exchange rate peg for the EUR/CHF at 1.20; however, it stressed that it would take due account of the exchange
rate situation in formulating its monetary policy in future and thus remain active in the foreign exchange market if necessary.

CEE currencies

CEE currencies trended weaker against the euro over the course of 2014. While the other currencies in the CE and SEE region
declined within a range of between roughly 0.5 per cent and 3 per cent, the Hungarian forint (down 6.0 per cent) and Serbian
dinar (down 5.3 per cent] weakened most significantly against the euro. The strongest devaluations were experienced in the CIS
region, where the crisis in eastern Ukraine, the sliding oil price and sanctions against Russia led to hefty devaluations. For exam-
ple, the Russian rouble fell nearly 36 per cent against the euro in the second half of 2014 (38 per cent for the year) and the
Ukrainian hryvnia lost 41 per cent against the euro over the course of 2014. In 2014, the Belarusian rouble remained stable with
just 1.4 per cent devaluation against the euro; however, lost almost 20 per cent against the euro up fill the end of February in
2015. In the first two months of 2015, the Russian rouble recovered again somewhat against the euro, up by almost 4 per cent;
while the Ukrainian hryvnia fell by around 37 per cent against the euro.
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Development of the banking sector

Moderate growth and increasing divergence in CEE

Supported by slightly better economic indicators in the second half of 2014, as well as expansionary monetary policy measures
and improved growth expectations in CE and SEE, credit growth in both of these regions moderately increased in 2014. This
trend should continue in 2015. As a result, non-performing loans (NPLs) also stabilized - or in some cases already peaked - in
many CE and SEE countries in 2014. Romania held its first notable NPL portfolio auctions in 2014. However, NPLs remained at
high levels, notably in banking markets in SEE, which will weigh on the performance of banking sectors for a continued period.
The banking environment in Russia and Ukraine sharply deteriorated in 2014, and the outlook for 2015 remains difficult. Credit
growth weakened significantly in both markets, due in part to increasingly difficult local refinancing conditions (lower deposit
growth, higher refinancing costs). Nevertheless, credit growth in the Russian banking sector remained in the upper double-digit
range in 2014, the liquidity situation continues to be solid, and profitability (refurn on equity) was also still in the solid double-digit
percenfage range in 2014. As a result, barring a material deterioration of the geopolitical situation and financing conditions, the
Russian banking sector should also remain profitable in 2015. In contrast, the Ukrainian banking sector posted a loss in 2014,
and 2015 could also turn out to be another loss-producing year. The earnings situation of Western European banks operating in
the region is also negatively impacted by ongoing currency weaknesses in Russia, Ukraine and Belarus.

The highly different regional trends in CEE with respect to asset quality and credit growth are also clearly reflected in divergent
profitability ratios of the regional banking sectors. For example, profitability indicators of the CE banking sector remained at en-
couragingly robust levels, i.e. the average return on equity was in the lower double-digit percentage range in 2014. One excep-
tion was Hungary, where the earnings power of the banking sector was negative once again as a result of regulatory measures,
however conditions should improve here. Although the Russian bank market suffered somewhat of a decline in profitability in 2014
compared to the previous year, it still boasted one of the highest returns on equity in the CEE region at roughly 13 per cent in
2014. In SEE, profitability was low again in 2014, partly attributable to weak credit demand in new business and, in some cases,
still slightly increasing NPLs. The average refurn on equity in this region was in the low single-digit percentage range, roughly on a
par with the eurozone level. Despite the positive trends in a number of CEE markets, overall, the average return on equity in the
banking sector for the region remains below past levels. This trend is primarily driven by rising regulatory costs, increased equity
ratios and costs, a higher degree of local refinancing, and limited opportunities to transform the risk and yield curve owing to the
low interest rate environment. The outlook for a prolonged continuation of the current low interest rate environment in major CE
and SEE markets, as well as the deterioration of earnings prospects in the Russian banking sector, suggests that the return on
equity for the CEE banking sector will not significantly improve in 2015.
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Performance and financials

The consolidated financial statements of RBI are prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as applied in the EU. RBI AG also prepares individual financial statements in accordance with the Austrian Commercial
Code (UGB in conjunction with the Austrian Banking Act (BWG], which provides the formal basis of assessment for calculating
dividend distributions and taxes. For more information on disclosures required by the UGB and BWG, please see the relevant
sections of this Group management report, including the notes section.

Events in the financial year

Capital increase and repayment of participation capital

The capital increase carried out af the beginning of 2014, in which 97,473,914 new shares were issued, resulted in net capital
growth of €2,725 million. The participation capital of € 1,750 million subscribed by the Republic of Austria was repaid in June,
and the participation capital of €750 million subscribed by private investors was repaid in September.

RZB clearly passed AQR and stress test

The ECB subjected all banks that will be directly supervised in the future to the Comprehensive Assessment, which mainly com-
prised an extensive Asset Quality Review [AQR) and a Europe-wide stress test. RBI was subject to the ECB stress test, as part of
RZB. Accordingly, the data published for the stress test related o the RZB Group. RZB clearly surpassed the required capital
adequacy rafios in both the baseline scenario and the adverse scenario. The ECB's Asset Quality Review, which preceded the
stress test, led to 0.65 percentage point adjustments to the CET1 ratio used by the ECB in its stress test for RZB. The main reason
for these adjustments was the fact that the ECB employs a different approach than RZB for portfolio-based loan loss provisions.
Moreover, the AQR did not consider loan loss provisions formed by RBI in the 2014 financial year. However, these were mostly
allocated in the financial year 2014. The ECB's recommendations were implemented fo the extent in which they corresponded
with the accounting policies of the IFRS or qualitatively sharpened the applied model.

Sub-consolidation of RBI

In October 2014, RBI was notified of the regulatory sub-consolidation of RBI as subgroup of RZB. Pursuant to Article 11 para 5
CRR (Copital Requirement Regulation), RBI is thus separately regulated on a sub-consolidated basis and recognized as a super-
ordinate credit insfitution for the subgroup within the meaning of Section 30 of the BWG. Accordingly, the Group is required to
maintain a minimum total capital ratio of 13.76 per cent as of 30 November 2014. This stipulated total capital ratio (fransitional),
including adequate buffer, has been adhered to on a sub-consolidated basis (Group level) since that date.

Banks come under Hungarian government's scrutiny

The measures infroduced by the Hungarian government against Hungarian banks were associated with negative effects on the
results again in 2014. Since the Home Protection Law of 2011, under which the Hungarian government allowed private borrow-
ers to repay foreign currency loans prematurely at favorable terms and which led to losses for RBI, a number of new government
programs favoring foreign currency borrowers have been drafted and adopted by parliament. The new legislation resulted in a
provision of €251 million recognized under sundry operating expenses in Hungary in the reporting year. The law related fo the
foreign exchange margins which can be applied to foreign currency loan disbursements and installments, as well as to unilateral
rate changes on consumer loans.

Tensions in eastern Ukraine

The onset of geopolitical tensions in Ukraine, which culminated in the secession of Crimea as well as in military conflict in the
Donbass region, had a negative impact on the Ukrainian network bank. This resulted in higher net provisioning for impairment
losses in the amount of € 254 million, as well as additional other administrative expenses of € 15 million in the stated regions. This
was further accompanied by the closure of a large number of branches and corresponding staff reductions in these regions.

Currency turmoil in Ukraine and Russia

In 2014, the dominant themes in international financial markets remained to be the geopolitical tensions in Ukraine, the widening
of sanctions against Russia and resulting uncertainty. Consequently, the Russian rouble and Ukrainian hryvnia depreciated signifi-
cantly against the US dollar and euro. Overall, exchange differences recognized in equity amounted to € 1.3 billion, with a
negative effect on the common equity fier 1 ratio of 94 basis points, the bulk of which originated from units in Russia

(47 basis points) and in Ukraine (19 basis points).
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Depreciation of intangible fixed assets

Goodwill of €306 million was impaired in the fourth quarter, particularly for Group units in Russia (€ 148 million), Poland

(€101 million) and Albania (€51 million). In the third quarter, Ukraine recorded an impairment of € 29 million on the brand, and
€1 million on the customer base.

Overview

After a challenging year, the Group ended the reporting year with positive profit before tax of €23 million. Despite the currency
turmoil and geopolitical tensions, the operating result in the amount of €2.332 million was marginally below the previous year's
level, with a decline of 2 per cent year-on-year. The decline in profit before tax of €812 million to €23 million was primarily
aftributable to a number of one-off effects: A legislative change in Hungary entailed a one-off effect with a negative impact of
€251 million on the Group's results. At the same time, € 533 million in net provisioning for impairment losses was required in
Ukraine, which was thus € 412 million above the previous year's level. Goodwill impairments totaling € 306 million were required
for Group units in Russia and Poland as a result of lower medium-term eamings expectations, and in Albania due to a change in
the discounting factor. The Group's loss after tax was €463 million - not least due to impairments recognized on deferred tax
assets in the amount of € 196 million owing to a tax planning revision at Group head office and in Asia. Taking profit attributable
to non-controlling interests into account, which decreased € 16 million to minus € 30 million, the Group had a consolidated loss

of €493 million for the year.

Operating income fell 7 per cent, or € 373 million, to € 5,355 million year-on-year, while the net interest margin improved

13 basis points to 3.24 per cent due to lower refinancing costs at Group head office. Net interest income increased 2 per cent,
or €60 million, to € 3,789 million. In contrast, net fee and commission income fell 2 per cent, or € 40 million, to € 1,586 million,

primarily due to currency movements. Net frading income declined € 351 million to minus € 30 million, driven by valuation losses
on derivatives and by exchange rate-related valuation losses on foreign currency positions in Ukraine and Russia.

General administrative expenses were down 9 per cent, or € 316 million, to € 3,024 million year-on-year, with positive effects
stemming from ongoing cost reduction programs, notably in the Czech Republic and in Poland. Ukraine and Russia recorded
declines, primarily caused by currency devaluations. The average number of staff was further reduced, with a 2,671 decrease
from the previous year to 56,396. The number of business outlets was down 159 to 2,866 year-on-year.

Net provisioning for impairment losses rose 49 per cent, or € 567 million, to € 1,716 million year-on-year. This was mainly due fo
the situation in Ukraine, which was impacted by the depreciation of the hryvnia, and by the challenging overall macroeconomic
environment, leading fo an increase in net provisioning for impairment losses of €412 million to € 533 million. Asia also contribut-
ed to the increase, with defaults by large corporate customers resulfing in an increase of €215 million to €291 million. In contrast,
the credit risk situation improved in most other markes.

Net income from derivatives and liabilities reversed from minus € 257 million in the previous year to plus € 88 million, mainly due
to the € 292 million change in the credit spread for own liabilities.

In the course of the year, total assets fell 7 per cent, or €9,016 million, to € 121,624 million. Nearly half of this decrease (ap-
proximately € 4.2 billion) was attributable to currency effects mainly resulting from the depreciation of the Ukrainian hryvnia and
Russian rouble against the euro. The reduction in short-term interbank business was also responsible for the decline in total asses.
Equity including non-controlling interests recorded a decline of € 2,062 million to € 8,302 million. Equity reduced as a result of divi-
dend payments totaling € 539 million for the financial year 2013 and as a result of total comprehensive income of minus

€1,754 million, which was attributable to the loss affer tax of €463 million as well as currency devaluations of minus € 1,335 million.

Due to the negative result, RBI AG will not distribute a dividend on shares and on participation capital for the financial year 2014.
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Detailed review of income statement items

Change Change
in € million 2014 2013 absolute in %
Net interest income 3,789 3,729 60 1.6%
Net fee and commission income 1,586 1,626 (40) (2.5)%
Net trading income (30) 321 (351) =
Sundry net operating income 10 53 42) (80.5)%
Operating income 5,355 5,729 (373) (6.5)%
Staff expenses (1,450) (1,632) 182 (11.2)%
Other administrative expenses (1,193) (1,277) 84 6.6)%
Depreciation (381) (4371) 50 (11.6)%
General administrative expenses (3,024) (3,340) 316 (9.5)%
Operating result 2,332 2,389 (58) (2.4)%
Net provisioning for impairment losses (1.716) (1,149) (567) 49.3%
Other results (593) (405) (188) 46.3%
Profit/loss before tax 23 835 (812) (97.3)%
Income taxes (486) (232) (254) 109.7%
Profit/loss after tax (463) 603 (1,066) -
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests (30) (406) 16 (35.0)%
Consolidated profit/loss (493) 557 (1,050) -

Net interest income

Net inferest income increased 2 per cent, or €60 million, to € 3,789 million in 2014. This was primarily affributable to a positive
development in Russia and at Group head office. In Russia, higher inferest income from derivatives and, in particular, successful
positioning in the refail and corporate customer business, led to an increase of € 112 million. At Group head office, lower refi-
nancing costs relating primarily to debt securities led to growth of net interest income of € 145 million.

In addition to the positive contribution from Russia and Group head office, this was also driven by the positive development of the
credit business in Belarus (up € 24 million) and repricing measures in the deposit business in Slovakia (up € 10 million). In contrast,

Development of the net interest margin
(average interest-bearing assets)

3.5%

3.24%
3.2%

T31% 3.11%

2.90%
29% ——

2.66%

23% ——

2.0%

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014
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inferest income in Hungary declined € 43 million as a result of
lower inferest income from derivatives, reduced lending volumes
and a lower market interest rate level. In Romania, lower market
interest rates, as well as declining income from securities, also
led to a decrease in net interest income of €7 million. The
negative development of net interest income in Ukraine ([down
€61 million) was purely currency-related, whereas net inferest
income in local currency was up 20 per cent. In Poland, net
interest income marginally declined € 4 million due to sharply
lower market interest rates. RBI recorded a decrease in net
interest income of € 4 million in the Czech Republic as a result
of lower margins in the retail and corporate customer business,
as well as due to currency effects. In Slovenia, reduced lending
volumes, in particular, led to a decline in net interest income of
€6 million.

The Group's net interest margin increased 13 basis poinfs to
3.24 per cent year-on-year owing to lower refinancing costs at
Group head office, as well as improved margins in Russia and

CEE Other.
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Net fee and commission income

Net fee and commission income fell 2 per cent, or €40 million, to € 1,586 million year-on-year, mainly as a result of currency-
related effects. Net income from the loan and guarantee business declined 16 per cent, or € 40 million, to €210 million, primarily
due to currency effects in Russia and lower guarantee commissions in Romania. Net income from the securities business de-
creased 14 per cent, or €21 million, to € 127 million - predominantly at Group head office - due to lower capital market frans-
action fees. Net income from the payment transfer business was down 3 per cent, or € 20 million, to €712 million, due to
currency effects. The most significant declines were recorded in Ukraine and in Russia, whereas Slovakia, Hungary and Croatia
achieved increases. In contrast, in Russia and in Ukraine, nef income from the foreign currency, notes/coins and precious metals
business was up 11 percent, or € 38 million, to € 393 million, mainly driven by higher volumes and margins.

Development of operating income Net ’rrodlng Income

in € million

Net trading income fell €351 million to minus € 30 million,
largely due to a €313 million decrease in currency-based
transactions to minus € 51 million. This was mainly affributable to
valuation losses on derivatives in Russia, as well as exchange
rate-related valuation losses on foreign currency positions in
Ukraine. In contrast, Group head office - as well as Hungary -
posted valuation gains on derivatives. Net income from interest-
based transactions declined € 20 million as a result of valuation
3000 — —  losses in Russia. Net income from other fransactions declined
€43 million to minus €42 million.

6,000

5,000

4,000

2,000

T 6% 66% % 65% 70% . .
o Sundry net operating income
1000 — —
Sundry net operating income fell €42 million to € 10 million, in
o the reporting year. In particular, net allocations to other provisions
2010 2011 2012 2013 2014 rose € 29 million. On the one hand, the positive result in the
Ne e O (N s e s feams previous year was due to the release of a provision for VAT liabili-
B Net troding income Sundry net operating income fies in Poland; on the other, allocations to provisions in Hungary

(for litigation) and Russia had a negative impact in the reporting

year. Other tax expense increased € 16 million due to a newly
infroduced tox on foreign exchange purchases in Ukraine, as well as to a higher tax expense related to the financial transaction tax in
Hungary. This contrasted with improvements in net proceeds from the disposal of tangible fixed assets (sale of buildings) in Russia,
Ukraine and Albania. In Albania, the result was lower in the previous year due to business outlet closures. In addition, income from the
release of negative goodwill from the purchase of Raiffeisen Bausparkasse in Croatia had a positive impact of € 5 million.

General administrative expenses

The Group's general administrative expenses fell 9 per cent, or

€316 million, to € 3,024 million during the reporting period, Cost/income ratio performonce

largely attributable to the currency development of the Russian in € million

rouble and Ukrainian hryvnia. In addition, ongoing cost reduc-

. . . 5,729

tion programs in the Czech Republic and Poland, as well as 5445 5,569 5297 5,355

lower depreciation in the Czech Republic, led to a reduction in
general adminisirative expenses. The cost/income rafio im- | 61.5%

58.3% Y
proved 1.8 percentage points to 56.5 per cent. MW:%

Staff expenses

3,340
3,258 :
2,980 Y 3,024

Staff expenses, which made up the largest item under general
administrative expenses at 48 per cent, declined 11 per cent,

or € 182 million, to € 1,450 million in the reporting year. In
Ukraine and the Czech Republic, the sharp decline in staff
expenses was mainly due fo cost reduction programs and
currency effects. Ongoing cost reduction programs in Poland
and Hungary likewise led to a decrease, while significant
currency devaluation in Russia reduced expenses.

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Operating income B General administrative expenses
The average number of staff (fulltime equivalents) fell 2,671 to —#— Cost/income ratio
56,396 year-on-year. The biggest declines occurred in Ukraine
(down 1,117), Poland (down 557) and Hungary (down 335).
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Other administrative expenses

Other administrative expenses decreased 7 per cent, or € 84 million, to € 1,193 million. The reduction in Ukraine {down

€26 million) and Russia (down € 16 million), was largely attributable to currency effects. Poland posted the most significant de-
cline (down € 31 million), particularly for legal, advisory and consulting expenses, as well as IT and advertising expenses. In
Romania (down € 8 million), the reduction was mainly related to office space expenses, and in the Czech Republic ([down

€6 million) it was primarily related to legal, as well as advisory and consulting expenses. In contrast, in Slovakia higher deposit
insurance fees, higher legal, as well as advisory and consulting expenses, and IT and advertising expenses resulted in a

€8 million increase.

The number of business outlets was down 159, to 2,866, compared fo yearend 2013. The most significant declines in the num-
ber of business outlefs occurred in Ukraine (down 127], Poland ([down 19), Bulgaria (down 12), and Albania ([down 12).

Depreciation expenses

Depreciation of tangible and intangible fixed assefs fell 12 per cent, or € 50 million, to € 381 million yearon-year. This was pri-
marily attributable to lower depreciation on software at Group head office, as well as to impairment of a software project in the
Czech Republic (€ 57 million) undertaken in the previous year. Ukraine posted an increase of € 13 million due to a brand and

customer base impairment totaling € 30 million and to impairment on a building of € 4 million, whereas the change in useful life
resulted in lower depreciation of tangible fixed assets. Romania also recorded an increase (€ 8 million] due to an impairment of

land.

The Group invested €415 million in fixed assets in the reporting period. Of that, 36 per cent (€ 150 million) flowed into own
tangible assets. Investments in infangible assefs - mainly related to software projects - amounted to 42 per cent. The remainder
was invested in assefs of the operating leasing business.

Net provisioning for impairment losses

Net provisioning for impairment losses rose 49 per cent year-on-year, or € 567 million, to € 1,716 million. This resulted from an

increase in individual loan loss provisions of € 614 million, to € 1,829 million. For portfolio-based loan loss provisions, there were
again net releases totaling € 45 million (decline of €6 million). This contrasted with € 54 million higher proceeds from the sale of
impaired loans, which totaled € 68 million in the reporting year and of which the sale of non-performing loans in Poland account-

ed for €61 million.

In Ukraine, net provisioning for impairment losses came to € 533 million - mainly due to higher individual loan loss provisions -
up €412 million in total from the previous year's level. This was mainly due to tensions in eastern Ukraine, as well as to the depre-
ciation of the hryvnia and the resulting required provisions for collateralized US dollar loans. Net provisioning for impairment
losses in the Group Corporates segment increased € 232 million to € 490 million, primarily caused by individual loans to large
corporate customers in Asia. In Russia, a growing refail and corporate customer portfolio, as well as individual loans in the corpo-
rate custfomer business, also led to an increase in net provisioning for impairment losses of € 104 million to € 152 million. In con-
trast, Poland, Slovenia and Bulgaria posted significant declines. The €61 million decline in Poland resulted primarily from sales of
impaired loans. Impairment needs were € 42 million lower in Slovenia and € 39 million lower in Bulgaria after a significant in-
crease in the non-performing loan portfolio and an update of collateral valuations in the previous year made higher net provision-
ing for impairment losses necessary.

The portfolio of non-performing loans to customers has increased € 181 million, to € 8,838 million since the beginning of the year;
on a currency-adjusted basis there was an increase of € 959 million. This increase occurred mainly in the Group Corporates
segment (up €629 million] and in Ukraine (up € 604 million]and in Russia (up € 195 million) whereas, in Hungary and Bulgaria,
the portfolio of non-performing loans to customers significantly declined (down € 181 million and € 187 million, respectively). In
addition, currency effects - notably as a result of the devaluation of the Ukrainian hryvnia and Russian rouble - resulted in a
decline of €778 million. Compared to yearend 2013, the NPL ratio increased 0.6 percentage point fo 11.3 per cent in the
reporting year. Non-performing loans were set against loan loss provisions amounting to € 5,955 million. An improved NPL cov-
erage ratio of 67.4 per cent, up from 63.1 per cent in the previous year resulted from the increase of loan loss provisions of
existing non-performing loans.

The provisioning rafio - nef provisioning for impairment losses in relation to the average volume of loans and advances to custom-
ers - increased 0.73 percentage point fo 2.13 per cent.
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Other results
Net income from derivatives and liabilities

Net income from derivatives and liabilities came to € 88 million, compared to minus € 257 million in the previous year. This was
due to net income from liabilities designated at fair value, where the changed credit spreads for own liabilities - increase of
€292 million to plus € 166 million - had a positive effect. Net income from the valuation of derivatives entered into for hedging
purposes improved € 53 million.

Net income from financial investments

Net income from financial investments improved € 5 million to € 62 million year-on-year. The valuation result for securities from the
fair value portfolio increased € 31 million to € 38 million, and net proceeds from the sale of securifies rose € 33 million to

€52 million, respectively. These increases resulted mainly from significant, largely currency-related gains from the valuation and
sale of bonds in Ukraine, which were partially reduced by losses from the valuation and sale of bonds - predominantly corporate
bonds - in Russia.

Net income from equity participations declined from plus € 29 million in the previous year to minus € 33 million in the reporting
year. On the one hand, this was mainly due to € 46 million lower net income from the sale of equity participations after disposal
gains of €51 million in the previous year, predominantly from the sale of VISA and MasterCard shares in Russia and Ukraine. On
the other, impairment for equity participations was € 16 million higher, largely booked at Group head office.

Bank levies, one-off effects and goodwill

The expense for bank levies fell €20 million to € 177 million, in the reporting year. Bank levy expenses declined € 14 million in
Austria due to a change in the assessment base and decreased € 7 million in Slovakia.

Changed legislation in Hungary led to a one-off effect in the form of a provision of €251 million, which was reported under
sundry operating expenses. The legislation passed by the Hungarian parliament favoring foreign currency borrowers related to
foreign exchange margins which can be applied to foreign currency loan disbursements and installments, as well as unilateral rate
changes on consumer loans.

In addition, goodwill impairments totaled € 306 million, € 148 million of which were recorded in Russia, € 101 million in Poland
and €51 million in Albania. In Russia, goodwill was impaired due to currency effects and resulting lower earnings expectations. In
Poland, a reduction in the goodwill calculation resulted from a lower medium-term earnings expectation and a decrease in the
perpetual return. In Albania, the calculation was subject to a higher underlying discount rate due to the increased cost of equity.
Furthermore, the perpetual return decreased.

Net income from disposal of Group assets

The disposal of 18 subsidiaries resulted in a loss of € 10 million in the reporting year, while a loss of €6 million was recorded in
the previous year as a result of the exclusion of seven subsidiaries from the consolidated group. Of the 18 excluded subsidiaries,
11 companies were excluded due to immateriality, five companies were sold, one company was excluded as a result of end of
operation, and another due fo liquidation. The companies were predominantly acfive in the leasing, frading and financing busi-

ness. The sale of commodity trading group FJ. Elsner, Vienna, resulted in a net loss from disposal of group assets of € 11 million.

Income taxes

Income taxes increased € 254 million to € 486 million year-on-year. The deferred tax expense increased € 214 million to
€183 million. This included a one-off effect related to the impairments of deferred tax assets of € 196 million. Impairments at
Group head office totaled € 161 million as due to the updated medium-term tax planning tax loss carry-forwards can not be
realized. In Asia, deferred tax assets of € 35 million were also impaired as insufficient taxable profit would have been available
due to the planned reduction in business operations. Current taxes increased € 40 million to € 303 million, mainly as a result of
higher tax expenses in Poland and the Czech Republic. At Group head office, current tax expenses totaled € 3 million; whereas
tax income of € 44 million was recognized in the previous year due to a tax allocation at Group level.

Raiffeisen Bank Interantional | Annual Report 2014

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEGMENT REPORTS GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT OVERVIEW OF RBI

SERVICE



44

Comparison of results with the previous quarter

Change
in € million Q4/2014 Q3/2014 absolute  Change in %
Net interest income 895 940 (45) (4.8)%
Net fee and commission income 417 404 14 3.4%
Net trading income (68) 30 (98) -
Sundry net operating income (20) 17 (43) =
Operating income 1,218 1,391 (172) (12.4)%
Staff expenses (301) (373) 72 (19.3)%
Other administrative expenses (319) (292) (27) 9.2%
Depreciation (108) (112) 3 (2.9)%
General administrative expenses (728) (776) 48 (6.2)%
Operating result 490 614 (124) (20.2)%
Net provisioning for impairment losses (633) (515) (118) 22.9%
Other results (336) (115) (2271) 193.1%
Profit/loss before tax (479) (16) (464) >500.0%
Income taxes (243) (Q6) (147) 152.4%
Profit/loss after tax (722) (112) (610) >500.0%
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests 4 (7) 11 -
Consolidated profit/loss (718) (119) (599) >500.0%

Net interest income

Compared fo the third quarter of 2014, net interest income fell 5 per cent, or € 45 million, to €895 million, in the fourth quarter of
2014. This development was attributable to a currency-related decline in net interest income in Russia; though net income rose

10 per cent in local currency. The net interest margin declined 17 basis points to 3.06 per cent quarter-on-quarter. In Asia, this
decline was driven by the reduced lending volume with corporate customers and by higher provisioning. In Central Europe, the
net interest margin, weighed down by the low interest rate level, fell 21 basis points. In Russia, the decline was 29 basis points
and was attributable to lower interest income due to currency effects.

Net fee and commission income

Net fee and commission income rose € 14 million from the third quarter fo €417 million. The biggest increase in net fee and
commission income came from the foreign currency business (€ 17 million), driven by higher sales in Russia. Nef income from the
management of investment and pension funds also grew € 5 million, whereas net income from the securities business improved
€4 million and net income from other banking services increased € 3 million. In contrast, net income from the payment transfer
business decreased € 8 million, while net income from the loan and guarantee business was down € 6 million.

Net trading income
Net trading income fell €98 million from the previous quarter to minus € 68 million. Currency-based transactions decreased,
particularly in Ukraine, where the significant currency devaluation led to valuation losses on foreign currency positions. Net in-

come from interestbased transactions declined, predominantly in Russia and at Group head office, due to valuation losses on
securities positions and derivatives.
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Sundry net operating income

Sundry net operating income fell €43 million in the fourth quarter to minus € 26 million. Net income from the disposal of tangible
fixed assets declined €9 million, mainly in Hungary and Poland. In addition, allocations to other provisions increased € 8 million,
especially in Romania, Slovakia and Hungary. Other net operating income also declined to minus €9 million, due to an impair-
ment of a building held for sale in Croatia.

General administrative expenses

General administrative expenses amounted to € 728 million in the fourth quarter, down € 48 million from the previous quarter's
level. While staff expenses were down € 72 million to € 301 million, due also fo the release of bonus provisions, other administra-
five expenses were up € 27 million to €319 million, as a result of an increase in advertising, PR and promotional expenses, as
well as legal, advisory and consulting expenses. Depreciation of tangible fixed assefs was € 108 million in the fourth quarter,
likewise down € 3 million from the previous quarter's level.

Net provisioning for impairment losses

Net provisioning for impairment losses rose 23 per cent from the third quarter, or € 118 million, to € 633 million. This was mainly
aftributable to developments, with nef provisioning for impairment losses totaling € 207 million in Ukraine and € 87 million in
Hungary. Net provisioning for individual loan loss provisions increased € 276 million overall, while net releases of portfolio-based
loan loss provisions came to €94 million. The sale of non-performing and impaired loans in Poland, with @ nominal amount of
€294 million, led to a positive result of €61 million in the fourth quarter.

Other results

Net income from derivatives and liabilities

Net income from derivatives decreased 72 per cent in the fourth quarter, or €74 million, to € 28 million. This was mainly driven by
the valuation result from the change in the credit spread of own issues, which came to €95 million in the third quarter due to
higher premiums for subordinated bonds; whereas, this was € 47 million in the fourth quarter. Likewise, net income from the valua-
tion of derivatives entered info for hedging purposes fell € 25 million quarter-on-quarter.

Net income from financial investments

Net income from financial investments fell to minus € 39 million in the fourth quarter, down from plus € 23 million in the previous
quarter. This development was affributable to higher impairment charges on equity participations, parficularly at Group head
office, and higher valuation losses on the fair value securities portfolio (mainly in Russia), as well as lower net proceeds from the
sale from the fair value securities portfolio.

Bank levies, one-off effects and goodwill

Bank levies increased 8 per cent in the fourth quarter to € 40 million. Bank levies rose € 11 million in Hungary, whereas they fell
€9 million in Slovakia.

New legislation in Hungary led to a one-off effect in the form of a € 204 million provision, up from €67 million in the second
quarter, of which € 20 million were released in the fourth quarter.

Goodwill impairments stood at € 306 million in the fourth quarter, of which Russia accounted for € 148 million, Poland

€101 million and Albania €51 million.
Income taxes
Income tax expense rose € 147 million to €243 million quarter-on-quarter. This disproportional change was mainly due to im-

pairments recognized on deferred tax assets at Group head office and in Asig, the bulk of which was related to capitalized tax
loss carry-forwards at Group head office (€ 152 million).
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Statement of financial position

The Group's total assets declined 7 per cent, or €9.0 billion, to € 121.6 billion during 2014. Currency effects - predominantly
due to the depreciation of the Ukrainian hryvnia (down 41 per cent] and of the Russian rouble (down 38 per cent] and mitigated
by the appreciation of the US dollar {up 14 per cent] - amounted to minus € 4.2 billion.

Breakdown of assets Breakdown of equity and liabilities
in € billion in € billion
150 147.0 150 147.0
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B Securifies Other assets B Other liabilities Equity and subordinated capital
Assets

Interbank business declined 30 per cent, or € 6.7 billion, to € 15.6 billion during the year. Money market business - primarily at

Group head office - declined € 5.7 billion due to a change in liquidity investment; of this amount, the decline in receivables from
repurchase and securifies lending transactions amounted to € 2.1 billion. Long-term receivables and receivables from the giro and
clearing business each declined €0.5 billion.

Loans and advances to customers (before deduction of impairment losses on loans and advances) fell 3 per cent, or € 2.7 billion,
to €77.9 billion in the reporting period, primarily as a result of currency effects. The largest decline related to loans and advances
to private individuals (down € 1.4 billion), mainly due to currency effects in Russia and Ukraine as well as to volume effects in
Poland. Loans and advances to large corporate customers fell €0.7 billion; while these declined in Russia and Ukraine, in particu-
lar, due fo currency effects, Poland, Slovakia and the Czech Republic reported increases.

Impairment losses on loans and advances rose € 0.5 billion to €6.1 billion during the year. Of this, € 6.0 billion related to loans
and advances to customers and € 0.1 billion to loans and advances to banks.

The securities item slightly rose by €0.1 billion to € 17.9 billion. While it rose € 1.1 billion at Group head office (primarily due
to the purchase of highly liquid government bonds) and €0.5 billion in Poland, it fell - mainly as a result of currency effects - in
Russia [down € 1.1 billion) and Hungary (down €0.5 billion). The €0.8 billion rise in other assets was mainly the result of a

€ 1.9 billion rise in positive fair values of derivatives; while intangible fixed assefs, tangible fixed assets, and other assets de-

clined €1.2 billion.
Equity and liabilities

The Group's refinancing volume via banks (chiefly commercial banks) decreased 26 per cent, or €7.7 billion, to € 22.4 billion.
The money market business declined € 10 billion and was caused by lower shortterm deposits of RZB at Group head office. In
confrast, deposits in the giro and clearing business rose € 1.9 billion and long-term deposits rose € 0.4 billion.

Despite the currency devaluations, loans and advances to customers only slightly declined by €0.3 billion to €66.1 billion year-
on-year. Deposits from large corporate customers declined € 0.7 billion in total, with Russia and Ukraine recording reductions,
while Group head office and Poland reported increases. Deposits from private individuals fell €0.3 billion, also primarily attribut-
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able to currency devaluations in Russia and Ukraine. In contrast, deposit business rose in the Czech Republic and Romania. De-
posits from sovereigns - above all at Group head office and in Hungary - increased € 0.3 billion, as did deposits from mid
market customers in the corporate business. The loan/deposit rafio net - i.e. after deducting impairment losses on loans and
advances) was 106.7 per cenf [2013: 112.1 per cent).

Other liabilities - excluding subordinated capital - increased € 1.0 billion to €20.6 billion. The rise was primarily attributable to
the negative fair values of trading and banking book derivatives - mainly at Group head office - which rose € 2.1 billion in total.
In contrast, debt securities issued fell €0.9 billion to € 10.6 billion, mainly due to the reduced refinancing requirement.

Equity

Equity on the statement of financial position

RBI's equity on the statement of financial position, consisting of consolidated equity, consolidated profit/loss and non-controlling
interests, decreased 20 per cent, or € 2,062 million, to € 8,302 million compared to yearend 2013.

The capital increase carried out af the beginning of 2014, in which 97,473,914 new shares were issued at an issue price of
€28.50, resulted in a net capital increase of €2,725 million (i.e. after deduction of issuance costs). On the other hand, the re-
demption of participation capital reduced equity by € 2,500 million. RBI repaid the full € 1,750 million of the participation capital
subscribed by the Republic of Austria on 6 June. Participation capital of € 750 million subscribed by private investors was repaid
on 10 September.

Dividend payments to RBI's shareholders for the financial year

Breakdown of equity 2013 (€298 million) and to the subscribers fo the participation

t @ iliter capital (€ 200 million) reduced the consolidated equity by
€498 million.
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B Non<ontroling inferests €495 million. On the one hand, this was due fo the profit
affributable to non-controlling interests of € 30 million and some
smaller capital movements. On the other, dividends of
€41 million were paid to minority shareholders in Group units.
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Total capital pursuant to CRR/Austrian Banking Act (BWG)

The following consolidated figures have been calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Capital Requirements Regulo-
tion (CRR) and the BWG. The conversion to the CRR/CRD IV (Basel Ill) rules took place on 1 January 2014. The previous year's
figures as shown are based on the CRD Il {Basel Il) rules applicable at the time. Pursuant to Article 11 of the CRR, new regulatory
requirements on a subconsolidated basis were imposed on RBI in the reporting year, whereby RBI is subject fo the CRR provisions
not only as an individual credit institution but also a subgroup. Previously, RBI - as part of the RZB credit institution group - did not
consfitute an independent credit insfitution group as defined by the BWG and therefore was not subject to the regulatory provi-
sions for banking groups.

CET1 before deductions stood at € 7,902 million at the end of the year, and CET1 after deductions amounted to € 7,477 million.
The decline from the 2013 comparable level fotaled € 1,037 million. In addition to Basel Il effects, the reduction was mainly
caused by the aforementioned negative currency developments, in parficular the devaluations of the Russian rouble and the
Ukrainian hryvnia. The capital increase at the beginning of 2014 resulted in paid-in capital growth whereas repayment of the
parficipation capital had a negative impact on regulatory capital. This resulted in a net increase of approximately € 225 million.
Tier 1 capital declined € 1,478 million, to €7,477 million. The relevant factors responsible for the decline were the effects noted
above and the amended regulafory provisions. Tier 2 capital amounted to € 3,527 million, which was € 153 million above the
comparative figure under Basel Il as a result of higher hidden reserves. This was largely due fo the firstime allowance of portfolio-
based loan loss provisions. RBI's total capital under Basel IIl amounted to € 11,003 million. This corresponds to a decline of

€ 1,682 million compared to the 2013 yearend figure calculated under Basel I,

Total capital stood against a total capital requirement of € 5,498 million. This decline is mainly based on currency devaluations, a
reduction in credit exposure and an adjustment of the calculation parameters. The total capital requirement for credit risk amount-
ed to €4,564 million, the total capital requirement for position risk in bonds, equities, commodities and open currency came to
€254 million, and the total capital requirement for operational risk stood at € 680 million.

The excess cover ratio was 100.2 per cent compared fo 98.5 per cent as af the end of 2013, which was atfributable 1o the
decrease in the tofal capital requirement. Based on total risk, the common equity tier 1 ratio (fransitional) was 10.9 per cent, with
an fotal capital rafio (transitional] of 16.0 per cent.

Excluding the transitional provisions as defined in the CRR, the common equity tier 1 ratio (fully loaded) stood at 10.0 per cent.
The total capital ratio (fully loaded) reached 15.2 per cent.

Changes in the regulatory environment

The Group concemed itself intensively with the current and upcoming regulatory developments in the reporting year. One of the
main subjects, for which preparations have been made in the past, involved the legislative amendments that are associated with
the EU directives under Basel Il (CRD IV/CRR] and that came into effect at the beginning of the financial year. With the conver-
sion to the new Basel Ill rules, in 2014 risk management continued to focus on the ongoing implementation of advanced calcula-
tion approaches. These activities comprised the implementation of the infernal rafings-based (IRB) approach in the refail and non-
refail business division of CEE subsidiaries, as well as further development of the infernal market risk model and Group-wide
further development of the standard approach for operational risk.

One of the key focal points in the reporting year was the changes pertaining to the Single Supervisory Mechanism (SSM), nota-
bly the associated Comprehensive Assessment by the ECB, which included an Asset Quality Review and a Europe-wide stress test.
As part of the RZB credit insfitution-group, RBI represents one of the focal points for regulatory reviews within the framework of
these processes. The tests conducted by the ECB a massive impact on the Group's financial resources due to the scope and
duration, and the intensive exchange with authorities and external auditors.

In October 2014, the Austrian Financial Market Authority notified RBI of the regulatory subconsolidation of RBI as subgroup of
RZB. Pursuant to Arficle 11 para 5 of the CRR, RBI is thus separately regulated on a subconsolidated basis and constitutes a
superordinate credit institution for the subgroup within the meaning of Section 30 of the Austrian Banking Act (BWG). Accordingly,
the Group is required to maintain a minimum tofal capital ratio of 13.76 per cent as of 30 November 2014.

At the beginning of November 2014, the ECB took over responsibility for banking supervision in the euro curreny area. The
Single Supervisory Mechanism (SSM) is a new system of banking supervision comprising the ECB and the national competent
authorities of the participating member states. Its primary functfion is to contribute to the safety and soundness of credit institutions,
as well as to the stability of the European financial system while ensuring a uniform supervision. As a subconsolidated subgroup,
RBI - as one of 120 major banking groups, that represents 82 per cent of the banking sector (measured by assets) in the euro
area - is also subject as a group to direct supervision by the ECB. In connection with this, RBI expects - in addition to significantly
raised reporfing requirements - an increased presence of regulatory fopics with strategic relevance.

The new Austrian Banking Intervention and Restructuring Act also came info force - simultaneousely with Basel lll - at the begin-
ning of 2014. As a consequence, RBI as a material member of the RZB Group was required fo submit a contingent recovery plan

Raiffeisen Bank Interantional | Annual Report 2014



49

to the Austrian Financial Market Authority in June 2014. Plans for a potential resolution were submitted af the end of the 2014
financial year.

The Austrian Federal Act on the Recovery and Resolution of Banks (BaSAG) came into force on 1 January 2015. Payments under
this legislation, are based on European rules for carrying out the EU Bank Recovery and Resolution Directive (BRRD), but not yet
adopted (expected for 2015), and providing for a mechanism of banks' contributions to resolution funds starting as, or in the
course, of 2015. As of 2016, the Austrian resolution financing mechanism will, along with all other resolution financing mecha-
nisms in the eurozone, be fransferred to a Single Resolution Fund, which is currently being established for all EU-eurozone member
states (and for other EU member states on a coluntary basis). It is not yet possible at this stage to quantify the related expense for
RBI. For 2015, RBI expects an expense of roughly € 38 million in Austria.

The Deposit Guarantee Directive was published in the Official Journal of the EU in 2014 and is to be implemented in Ausfrian
law by July 2015. The directive concerns the establishment of a Deposit Protection Fund, which is fed by contributions from credit
institutions. The targeted volume amounts to 0.8 per cent of covered deposits. The implementation act was not available af the
reporting date. Neither the structure, nor the timing, of the first contribution payments by credit institutions are known, therefore, the
exact expense in Austria for RBI can not be quantified.

Research and development

As a bank, RBI is generally not involved in research and development in the strictest sense of the term.

In the context of financial engineering, however, it does develop customized solutions for investment, financing or risk hedging.
Financial engineering encompasses not only structured investment products, but also sfructured financing, i.e. financing concepts
that go beyond the application of standard instruments and are used in acquisition or project financing. RBI also develops individ-
ual solutions to hedge a broad spectrum of risks, from interest rate risk and currency risk through to commaodity price risk. Besides
financial engineering, RBI is actively working on the further development of infegrated product solutions for international financial
fransactions within cash management.
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Internal control and risk management
system in regard to the Group
accounting process

Balanced and comprehensive financial reporting is a priority for RBI and its governing bodies. Naturally, these reports must com-
ply with all relevant statutory requirements. The Management Board is responsible for establishing and defining a suitable interal
confrol and risk management system that encompasses the entire accounting process. The internal control system is intended to
provide the management with the information needed to ensure effective internal controls for accounting, which are constantly
being improved. The confrol system is designed to comply with all relevant guidelines and regulations and to optimize the condi-
tions for specific control measures.

The consolidated financial statements are prepared in accordance with the relevant Austrian laws, notably the Austrian Banking
Act (BWG)| and Austrian Commercial Code (UGB), which govern the preparation of consolidated annual financial statements.
The accounting standards used to prepare the consolidated financial statements are the International Financial Reporting Stand-

ards (IFRS) as adopted by the EU.
Control environment

An infernal control system has been in place for many years at RBI, and its parent RZB, which includes directives and instructions
on key sirategic fopics. Itincludes:

= The hierarchical decision-making process for approving Group and company directives, as well as departmental and division-
al instructions.

= Process descriptions for the preparation, quality control, approval, publication, implementation, and monitoring of directives
and insfructions.

= Regulations for the revision and repeal of directives and insfructions.

The management in each Group unit is responsible for implementing Group-wide instructions. Compliance with Group rules is
monitored as part of the audits performed by internal and local auditors.

Consolidated financial statements are prepared by the Group Financial Reporting department, which reports o the Chief Finan-
cial Officer. The relevant responsibilities are defined Group-wide within the framework of a dedicated function.

Risk assessment

Significant risks relating fo the Group accounting process are evaluated and monitored by the Management Board. Complex
accounting standards can increase the risk of errors, as can the use of different valuation standards, particularly in relation to the
Group's principal financial instruments. A difficult business environment can also increase the risk of significant financial reporting
errors. For the purpose of preparing the consolidated financial statements, estimates have to be made for asset and liability items
for which no market value can be reliably determined. This is particularly relevant for credit business, social capital and the infrinsic
value of securities, participations and goodwill.

Control measures

The preparation of individual financial statements is decentralized and carried out by each Group unit in accordance with the
RZB guidelines. The Group unit employees and managers responsible for accounting are required to provide a full presentation
and accurate valuation of all fransactions. Differences in reporting dates and local accounting standards can result in inconsisten-
cies between the individual financial statements and the figures submitted to RBI. The local management is responsible for ensur-
ing compliance with mandatory internal control measures, such as the separation of functions and the principle of dual control.
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Group consolidation

The financial statement data, which are examined by an external auditor or have an audit review are mostly entered directly in, or
automatically transferred to, the IBM Cognos Controller consolidation system by the end of January of the subsequent year. The IT
system is kept secure by limiting access rights.

The plausibility of each Group unit’s financial statements is initially checked by the relevant key account manager within the Group
Financial Reporting department. Group-wide control activities comprise the analysis and, where necessary, modification of the
financial statements which are submitted by the Group units. In this process, the reports submitted by the auditor and the results of
meetings with the representatives of the individual companies where the financial statements are discussed, are taken into account.
The discussions cover the plausibility of the individual financial statements as well as critical matters pertaining to the Group unit.

The subsequent consolidation steps are then performed using the IBM Cognos Controller consolidation system, including capital
consolidation, expense and income consolidation, as well as debt consolidation. Finally, possible intra-Group gains are eliminat-
ed. At the end of the consolidation process, the notes to the financial statements are prepared in accordance with IFRS, the BWG

and the UGB.

In addition to the Management Board, the general control system also encompasses middle management (department heads).
All control measures constitute part of the day-fo-day business processes and are used fo prevent, defect and correct any potential
errors or inconsistencies in the financial reporting. Control measures range from managerial reviews of the interim results, as well
as the specific reconciliation of accounts, through to analyzing ongoing accounting processes.

The consolidated financial statements and management report are reviewed by the Audit Committee of the Supervisory Board and
are also presented to the Supervisory Board for information. The consolidated financial statements are published on the company’s
website, in the Wiener Zeitung's official register, and are filed with the commercial register as part of the Annual Report.

Information and communication

The consolidated financial statements are prepared using Group-wide standardized forms. The accounting and valuation stand-
ards are defined and explained in the RZB Group Accounts Manual and must be applied when preparing the financial state-
ments. Detailed instructions for the Group units on measuring credit risk and similar issues are provided in the Group directives. The
relevant units are kept abreast of any changes fo the instructions and standards through regular training courses.

Each year the Annual Report shows the consolidated results in the form of a complete set of consolidated financial statements.
These consolidated financial statements are examined by an external auditor. In addition, the Group management report provides
verbal comments on the consolidated results in accordance with the statutory requirements.

Throughout the year the Group produces consolidated monthly reports for Group management. Statutory interim reports are
produced that conform to the provisions of IAS 34 and are also published quarterly in accordance with the Austrian Stock Corpo-
ration Act. Before publication, the consolidated financial statements are presented to senior managers and the Chief Financial
Officer for final approval and then submitted to the Supervisory Board's Audit Committee. Analyses pertaining fo the consolidated
financial statements are also provided for the management, as are forecast Group figures at regular intervals. The financial and
capital budgeting system, prepared by the Planning & Finance department, includes a three-year Group budget.

Monitoring

The Management Board and the Controlling department are responsible for ongoing internal monitoring. In addition, the depart-
ment heads are responsible for monitoring their areas which includes performing regular controls and plausibility checks.

Infernal audits also constitute an integral part of the monitoring process. Group Audit at RZB is responsible for auditing. All internal
auditing activities are subject to the Group Audit standards, which are based on the Austrian Financial Market Authority’s minimum

infernal auditing requirements and international best practices. Group Audit’s infernal rules also apply [notably the audit charter).

Group Audit regularly and independently verifies compliance with the internal rules within the RZB Group units. The head of
Group Audit reports directly to the RZB AG and RBI AG Management Boards.

Raiffeisen Bank Interantional | Annual Report 2014

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEGMENT REPORTS GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT OVERVIEW OF RBI

SERVICE



52

Capital, share, voting
and control rights

The following disclosures cover the provisions of Section 243a (1) of the Austrian Commercial Code (UGB):

(1) As af 31 December 2014, the company’s capital stock amounts to € 893,586,065.90 and is divided into 292,979,038
voting common bearer shares. As at 31 December 2014, 604,517 of those were own shares which means that 292,374,521
were outstanding af the reporting date. During the reporting year, a capital increase of 97,473,914 shares was carried out with
an offer price of €28.50. The capital stock thereby increased by €297,295,437.70. Please consult the note on equity (34) for

more information.

[2) The Articles of Association contain no restrictions concerning voting rights or the transfer of shares. The Management Board is
not aware of any restrictions arising from agreements among shareholders.

(3) RZB AG holds around 60.7 per cent of the capital stock (2013: 78.5 per cent] in the company indirectly through its wholly
owned subsidiary Raiffeisen International Beteiligungs GmbH and other subsidiaries. The remaining shares of RBI AG are held in
free float. The Management Board knows of no direct or indirect participations in the capital amounting to 10 per cent or more.

The ultimate parent company is Raiffeisen-landesbanken-Holding GmbH, holding around 82.4 per cent of the shares of RZB AG,
directly and indirectly. The direct share amounts to around 3.9 per cent and the indirect share is approximately 78.5 per cent and
held by the wholly owned subsidiary R-Landesbanken-Beteiligung GmbH.

(4) Pursuant to the company's Articles of Association, RZB AG is granted the right to delegate up to one third of the Supervisory
Board members to be elected by the Annual General Meeting, as long as it holds a participation in the capital stock. Beyond
that, there is no special right of control associated with holding shares.

[5) There is no control of voting rights in the case of a participation in capital by employees.

(6) Pursuant to the Articles of Association, a person who is 68 years or older may not be appointed as a member of the Man-
agement Board or be reappointed for another term in office. The rule for the Supervisory Board is that a person who is 75 years
or older may not be elected as a member of the Supervisory Board or be re-elected for another term in office. Moreover, no
person who already holds eight supervisory board mandates in publicly fraded companies may become a member of the Super-
visory Board. Holding a position as chairman of the supervisory board of a publicly traded company would count twice for this
purpose. The Annual General Meefing may choose to waive this restriction through a simple majority of votes if permitted by law.
Any candidate who has more mandates to, or chairman positions in, supervisory boards in publicly fraded companies must dis-
close this to the Annual General Meeting. Beyond that, there are no regulations regarding the appointment or dismissal of mem-
bers of the Management Board and the Supervisory Board beyond the provisions of the relevant laws (with regard to RZB AG's
right fo delegate members, please see (4] above). The articles of association stipulate that the resolutions of the Annual General
Meeting are, notwithstanding any mandatory statutory provisions or Articles of Association to the contrary, adopted by a simple
majority of the votes cast. Where the law requires a capital majority, in addition to the voting majority, resolutions are adopted by
a simple maijority of the share capital represented in the votes. As a result of this provision, members of the Supervisory Board may
be dismissed prematurely via a simple maijority. The Supervisory Board is authorized to adopt amendments to the articles of
association that only affect the respective wording. This right may be delegated to commitiees. Furthermore, there are no regulo-
tions regarding amendments to the company arficles of association beyond the provisions of the relevant laws.

[7) Pursuant to Section 169 of the Austrian Stock Corporation Act (AkiG), the Management Board has been authorized since the
Annual General Meeting of 4 June 2014 to increase the capital stock with the approval of the Supervisory Board - in one or
more franches - by up to €446,793,032.95 through issuing up to 146,489,519 new common bearer shares with voting rights
against contributions in cash and/or in kind (including by way of the right of indirect subscription by a bank pursuant to Section
153 (6) of AkiG) by 25 August 2019 af the latest and fo fix the offering price and terms of the issue with the approval of the
Supervisory Board. The Management Board is further authorized to exclude shareholders’ subscription rights, with the approval of
the Supervisory Board, (i) if the capital increase is carried out by contributions in kind or (i) if the capital increase is carried out by
confributions in cash and the shares issued under the exclusion of subscription rights do not exceed 10 per cent of the company’s
capifal stock (exclusion of subscription rights). The authorization of 26 June 2013 pursuant fo Section 169 of AkIG {authorized
capifal), which had been previously partially utilized, was revoked.
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Pursuant fo Section 159 (2) 1 of AkIG, the capital stock has been increased contingently by up to € 119,258,123.20 through the
issue of up to 39,101,024 common bearer shares (contingent capital). The contingent capital increase will only be performed if
and when use is made of an irrevocable right of exchange or subscription granted on shares by the company to creditors holding
convertible bonds issued on the basis of the resolution of the Annual General Meeting on 26 June 2013 and the Management
Board does not decide to issue own shares. Pursuant to Section 174 (2] of AkiG, the Annual General Meeting of 26 June 2013
authorized the Management Board to issue, in one or more tranches, convertible bonds in a total nominal amount of up to
€2,000,000,000, which grant holders conversion or subscription rights for up to 39,101,024 common bearer shares of the
company with a pro rata amount of the capital stock of up to € 119,258,123.20, within five years from the date of resolution
adopted by the Annual General Meeting, with the approval of the Supervisory Board. Shareholders' subscription rights to the
convertible bonds are excluded. No convertible bonds have been issued to date.

The Annual General Meeting of 4 June 2014 authorized the Management Board to acquire own shares, under the provisions of
Section 65 (1) 4 and 8 of AktG, during a period of 30 months from the date of the resolution [i.e. by 3 December 2016), up to a
maximum of 10 per cent of the company's respective capital stock and, if deemed appropriate, to retire them. The authorization
may be exercised in full or in part or also in several installments, for one or more purposes - with the exception of securities trad-
ing - by the company, by affiliated enterprises or, for their account, by third parties. The acquisition price for repurchasing the
shares may be no lower than € 1.00 per share and no higher than 10 per cent above the average unweighted closing price over
the 10 trading days prior to exercising this authorization. The Management Board was further authorized, pursuant fo Section 65
(1b) of AKIG, to decide, with the approval of the Supervisory Board, on the sale of own shares by means other than the stock
exchange or a public tender, to the full or partial exclusion of shareholders' subscription rights. This authorization applies for a
period of five years from the date of the resolution (i.e. until 3 June 2019). Shareholders’ subscription rights may only be excluded
if the own shares are used to pay for a contribution in kind, to acquire enterprises, businesses or branches of activity of one or
several companies in Austria or abroad, or for the purpose of implementing the company’s Share Incentive Program (SIP) for
executives and members of the Management Boards of the company and affiliated enterprises. In addition, if convertible bonds
are issued in accordance with the Annual General Meeting resolution of 26 June 2013, shareholders' subscription rights may
also be excluded in order to issue {own) shares to the holders of these convertible bonds who exercise the conversion or subscrip-
tion rights granted them under the terms of the convertible bonds to shares of the company. This authorization replaces the author-
ization to purchase and use own shares that was granted in the Annual General Meeting of 20 June 2012. No own shares have
been bought since the authorization was issued in June 2014.

The Annual General Meeting of 4 June 2014 also authorized the Management Board, under the provisions of Section 65 (1) 7
of AkiG, to acquire own shares for the purpose of securities frading, which may also be conducted off-market, during a period of
30 months from the date of the resolution [i.e. until 3 December 2016), of up to a maximum of 5 per cent of the company's re-
spective capital stock. The consideration for each share to be acquired must not be less than half the closing price at the Vienna
Stock Exchange on the last day of trading preceding the acquisition and must not exceed twice this closing price. This authoriza-
tion may be exercised in full or in part or also in several installments by the company, by affiliated enterprises or, for their account,
by third parties. This authorization replaces the authorization for the purpose of securities frading that was granted in the Annual
General Meefing of 20 June 2012.

The company's Annual General Meeting of 9 June 2009 authorized the Management Board of the company to issue, in one or
more franches, participation rights having equity characteristics pursuant to Section 174 of AkiG in a total nominal amount of up to
€2 billion within five years from the date of the resolution, with the approval of the Supervisory Board in accordance with the terms
for participation rights to be sef by the Management Board and to the exclusion of shareholders’ subscription rights. It should be
noted that, under the provisions of the relevant laws, participation rights confer no voting rights or other membership rights. Issuing
parficipation rights therefore entails no change of ownership structure from the standpoint of stock corporation law and sharehold-
ers’ voting rights. The company decided on 15 July 2009 to strengthen its capital by issuing participation rights in the amount of
€600 million based on the authorizing resolution of June 2009. In the course of the merger of Raiffeisen International with RZB
AG's principal business areas fo form RBI AG, with effect from 10 October 2010, the mutual loans and liabilities of the receiving
and fransferring company were wiped out. The same is true of the participatory rights in the amount of € 600 million, which had
been subscribed in full by RZB AG. This authorization expired on 8 June 2014 and no further participation rights were issued.

(8) The following material agreements exist, to which the company is a party and which take effect, change or come to an end
upon a change of control in the company as a result of a takeover bid:

» Asa subsidiary of RZB, RBI AG is insured under RZB's group-wide D&O insurance. Insurance cover remains in place in the
event of a merger with another legal entity of the RZB Group. In the event of a merger with a legal enfity outside the RZB
Group, RBI AG will no longer be covered under RZB's group-wide insurance from the date of the merger. In such case, insur-
ance cover only exists for breaches of obligations committed prior to the merger.

* The company’s SIP provides the following upon change in corporate control: “If a change in corporate control or a merger
occurs during the vesting period without the combination being exclusively concerned with subsidiaries, all contingent shares
will lapse without replacement at the time of acquiring the shares of RBI AG and the investor's actual possibility of disposing of
them, or at the fime of the merger. An indemnification payment will be made for these contingent shares. The indemnity sum
calculated will be paid out with the next possible salary payment.”
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= Furthermore, the syndicate agreement concluded by RBI AG in relation to a subsidiary bank with the relevant shareholders will
automatically be terminated upon a change of control.

* The brand agreement concluded with RZB AG on the unrestricted use of the name and logo of Raiffeisen Bank Infernational
for an indefinite period of time in all jurisdictions in which the brand is registered now or in the future includes a right of cancel-
lation upon a change of control.

= The company’s refinancing agreements and agreements concerning third-party financing for subsidiaries, which are guaran-
teed by the company, stipulate that the lenders can demand early repayment of financing in the event of a change in control.

(9) There are no indemnification agreements between the company and its Management Board and Supervisory Board members
or employees for the case of a public takeover bid.

Funding

Banks essentially refinance themselves using their own funds, customer deposits and various capital and inferbank market tools.
The refinancing situation on the capital markets was generally very favorable in 2014. Although the US central bank terminated ifs
bond purchases in the course of the year, this had very little impact on the capital market environment. Further rate cuts (including
a negative deposit rate for commercial banks) and additional liquidity injections by the European Central Bank (ECB), employed
in response to slowing economic growth and a fall in inflation during the year, were particularly relevant to the eurozone. Excess
liquidity therefore prevailed on the money market and government bond yields including risk premiums declined sharply on most
bond markets in the course of the year.

The Group's refinancing is based on two key elements. Firstly,

there are customer deposits, which at the end of 2014 ac-

counted for €66.1 billion or 64 per cent of refinancing. Sec-

Subordinated ondly, there is wholesale funding, which contributed the

Iif:'(lf/e_so op) remaining 36 per cent or € 37.1 billion. The high share of
customer deposifs creates a stable refinancing basis, making the

Group less vulnerable to turbulence on the financial markets.

Funding structure

Short-term
refinancing
15% (- 5 PP)

Modiom The diversification of financing sources for the Group's units
continued to play a highly significant role in 2014.

and long-term
refinancing

17% (+/- 0 PP)

~ Customer deposits
64% (+ 5 PP)
Longerm funding from sources that are less susceptible to
changes on the international capital markets plays a particularly
important role. To achieve this, the Group acfively collaborates
with supranational institutions. These insfitutions have supported
banks in Eastern Europe by providing bilateral loans and also
through developing the local capital markets. The Group cooperates with these insfitutions not only in terms of financing, but also
in other areas such as risk-sharing programs to optimize risk-weighted asses.

Moreover, the Group's units are becoming increasingly involved in issuing local bonds, especially issuances in local currencies.
This not only boosts the financing structure in local currencies, but also makes a positive contribution to developing the local capi-
tal markets. The unsecured bonds of the Russian subsidiary bank (RUB), Raiffeisen bank Romania (RON), Raiffeisen Polbank (PLN)
and a secured bond issue from the Czech Raiffeisenbank (EUR) are worth highlighting.

For medium- fo long+erm refinancing, RBI AG used instruments such as the "EUR 25,000,000,000 Debt Issuance Programme"
which enables bonds to be issued in different currencies and structures. The total volume of outstanding bonds under this program
may not exceed € 25 billion. At the end of 2014, a tofal of € 10 billion had been drawn on.

RBI swiftly implemented its funding plan again in 2014, primarily with low-volume private placements.

To strengthen its capital base, RBl issued a subordinated bond worth € 500 million in February 2014, with an eleven-year maturi-

ty, an initial right of termination after six years and a coupon of 4.5 per cent. The yield spread at issue equated to 330 basis
points above EUR Mid-Swap.
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For shortterm funding, RBI used both the interbank market and its program for shortterm issues (commercial papers), the "Euro-
Commercial Paper and Certificate of Deposit Programme”, in 2014. Under this program, RBI issued commercial papers in various
currencies, thereby enabling it to also refinance itself outside of the interbank market.

In an effort to diversify its funding sources, RBI also actively works on developing additional secured refinancing options, where
exisfing assets can be used to secure longferm funding.

Risk management

For information on risk management, please refer to note (44) Risks arising from financial instruments, in the risk report section of
the consolidated financial statements.
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Human resources

Human Resources [HR) manages personnel resources within the Group in order to harmonize corporate interests and the needs of
employees. As at 31 December 2014, RBI had 54,730 employees (fulltime equivalents), 3,171 people or 5 per cent fewer than
at the end of 2013. The majority of this reduction is affributable to the developments in Ukraine. The average age of employees
remained relatively low af 37 years, while women accounted for 67 per cent of the workforce. Graduates make up 72 per cent
of employees, indicating a highly skilled workforce.

Talent management and management development

Once again, a number of inifiatives to optimize falent management were continued across all Group units in 2014. Key areas
included ensuring high standards in the identification of talent and an improvement in the quality of individual development plans.
Alongside the existing crossfunctional development programs
for executives, a Group-wide program “Go IT", which is aimed
af the customized sirengthening of IT executives’ specialist and
management expertise, was launched within IT. Local man-
agement development programs were continued, including

Development of personnel
Number of staff at year-end

70,000 ) . :
temporary job rofations (e.g. branch managers who switch to
40000 59,782 59,261 60,084 57,901 head office, or executives from central retail functions who work
' Gl Gl 3078 3,148 SL7A in a branch on a temporary basis). Quadlification initiatives also
50000 | 16050 202 focused on change management, in particular to provide
e 174153 15280 13663 support for managers in ensuring reorganizations are imple-
40,000 mented successfully.
30,000
20000 Professional development
10000 — — — — — — : . .
13,254 13286 16,724 15,459 14,526 In 2014, professional development placed special aftention
. on using budgetary and time resources as precisely as possi-

ble for strategic objectives and initiatives. While the scope of
standard training courses and the number of participants fell
slightly, investment in business-critical areas was increased.
Key areas included measures fo increase sales success in
affluent retail business, further training inifiatives on customer
satisfaction and customer loyalty, and also training courses to
increase efficiency and optimize processes based on the “lean” method. In addition, a Group-wide training inifiative for
branch managers, “Branch Management Academy”, was launched and is aimed at increasing both professional and personal
skills for this key sales role.

2010 2011 2012 2013 2014

Ceniral Europe B Southeastern Europe B Russia
CEE Other Other

Alternative forms of learning such as elearning, but also crossfunctional and international rotation/exchange programs were
further expanded. Employees in the corporate and retail customer business, in particular, made use of the numerous opportunities
offered by the Group for the international exchange of knowledge and for targeted further development of talent through a wide
variety of trainee programs and project visits. In 2014, the “International Young Potentials” program was successfully implemented
for the fourth time with nine participating network banks.

Developments in compensation

Since banks are typical services companies, personnel costs represent a major portion of administrative expenses - at RBI it was
48 per centin 2014 - and cost reduction programs naturally also impact salaries and fringe benefits. Personnel costs for the
reporting period fell 11 per cent year-onyear. RBI's negative result had a marked impact on variable compensation for the 2014
financial year. In accordance with the regulatory framework, bonus commitments were not made, or were reduced on a differen-
tiated basis, for management, “identified staff” employees and other employees.
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Focus on the employee survey

Regular employee surveys have been conducted both at Group head office and in most network banks for a number of years. In
the past, RBI used several survey companies with different survey methods. In order o ensure data comparability within the Group
and reduce costs, a Group-wide survey was conducted for the first time in 2014.

Alongside the two key factors of employee engagement (commitment, discretionary effort) and employee enablement (optimised
roles, supportive environment), twelve additional dimensions such as quality and customer orientation, cooperation, strategic
direction, as well as performance and training were also surveyed.

The average response rate was 81 per cent [around 29,000 employees parficipated in total). On average, the 22 participating
Group units achieved an engagement score of 61 per cenf and an enablement score of 64 per cent.

When planning improvement measures, considerable emphasis was placed on direct involvement of employees. These measures
will be implemented over the coming months and customized according to the priorities of the respective unis.

In parallel, a number of proven inifiatives with verifiable positive effects on employee engagement were continued. For example,
fraining and mentoring opportunities were expanded, new career paths were defined for a number of functions, and the team-
building as well as work-ife-balance programs were intensified.

Other local initiatives in the network banks

In 2014, many HR measures focused again on cutting personnel costs. Job vacancies were increasingly filled internally, with
external recruitments only made in exceptional cases and for specialist expert functions.

In view of the parficularly difficult geopolitical situation in Ukraine, especially in the Donbass region, the management of Raiffeisen
Bank Aval implemented numerous support measures for employees and their families in the regions affected by the military con-
flict. As part of the aid program “The Arm of Help to Donbass”, temporary accommodation was organized in other regions for
more than 75 families. The costs of which were carried by Raiffeisen Bank Aval.

Outlook

Economic prospects
Central Europe

Positive growth frends from the second half of 2014 should continue in the CE region in 2015 and 2016. The economic turna-
round seems to have taken hold, and the 2015 increase in eurozone growth should support exports. Domestic demand is also
expected fo confinue developing, which would further underpin the sustainability of the economic recovery. Following GDP
growth of 2.9 per cent in 2014, the CE forecast for the years to come is currently at 3.0 per cent. Poland is likely to remain the
top performing country in 2015, followed by other CE countries such as Hungary, Slovakia and the Czech Republic. In terms of
monetary policy, the reins will likely continue to be kept loose in CE due to record-low inflation rates. Restrictive monetary policy
measures are not expected before 2016.

Southeastern Europe

The SEE region's GDP growth in 2015 and 2016 should be less strongly affected by one-off effects (such as the natural disasters
in Serbia and Bosnia-Herzegovina in 2014} and unmet consolidation requirements (such as in Croatia). After GDP growth of 1.4
per centin 2014, and 1.9 per centin 2015, SEE will likely near its current potential growth rate of 3.0 per cenf again in 2016.
Romania, in particular, should remain on a solid growth trajectory with GDP rising at around 3.0 per cent per year. Economic
growth in Romania should be supported by rather lax monetary policies in 2015 and subsequent years. Other SEE countries,
whose development in the past years was stagnant, are expected to slowly join the positive progress of Romania in 2015 and

2016.
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Russia

The growth outlook is subdued - partly because exports and investments are unlikely to generate much momentum, and partly
because the consequences of the Ukraine conflict sfill pose significant downside risks. After experiencing a deep recession in
2015 and a tentative recovery in 20106, the Russian economy is expected to weakly expand at 0.5 per cent. Its potential growth
will likely stay below 2.0 per cent if the government does not enact reforms and diversify the economy as it planned, but failed to
do in the previous cycle. Should economic sanctions against Russia continue, macrofinancial risks will rise sharply despite ample
fiscal and foreign currency reserves.

CEE Other

Faced with high economic and political uncertainty, Ukraine will have to carry out difficult structural reforms in 2015 and 2016,
supervised by the IMF, in order to adjust current economic imbalances and obtain urgently needed financing. Economic perfor-
mance should therefore continue to decline, at least in 2015, while prospects of an economic recovery remain unclear. Belarus,
also facing a stagnation or recession in 2015, will remain dependent on financial support from Russia making its macrofinancial
situation likely fo remain strained for the years to come.

Eurozone

The eurozone should see accelerated economic growth in the course of 2015 and continue this course in 2016. Exports are
poised to benefit from the weak euro and robust economic momentum of important trading parters (USA, UK). Headwinds from
fiscal policy will die down, while low oil prices should bolster consumer purchasing power and reduce companies’ costs. Monetary
policy, likely to stay very loose for a long time, will produce highly favorable financing terms that should clear the investment back-
log. Private-sector investment will probably recover slowly, and so growth is expected to remain modest at 1.2 per cent in 2015.
The 2016 estimate is at 1.9 per cent, which is even above the eurozone’s potential growth. Despite the increase in economic
momentum, weak wage pressures should keep inflation below the ECB target rate of slightly less than 2.0 per cent until 2016.

Austria

Economic momentum in Austria will probably only increase by a modest amount in 2015 and 2016, and lag behind previous
upturns. Domestic demand should drive much of the growth, with private consumption benefitting from the stable employment
situation. Furthermore, employment is expected to increase in the second half of 2015, while low energy prices support an in-
crease in purchasing power. However, investment will only gain slight momentum. Due to an improvement in foreign trade condi-
tions, exports are likely to increase; however, imports should rise about as quickly given the assumed increase in domestic
demand. Therefore, GDP is expected to grow 0.7 per centin 2015 and 1.8 per centin 2016.

Outlook for RBI

We are planning an aggregate gross risk-weighted asset (fotal RWA) reduction of € 16 billion in selected markets by the end of
2017 (total RWA as at 31 December 2014: € 68.7 billion). We intend to partly offset the reduction with growth in other business

areas.
After the implementation of the new sirategic measures, the cost base should be 20 per cent below the level of 2014 (at constant
prices and foreign exchange rates; general administrative expenses 2014: € 3,024 million). We target a cost/income ratio of
between 50 and 55 per cent in the medium term.

We aim for a return on equity before tax of approximately 14 per cent and a consolidated return on equity of approximately

11 per cent in the medium term. The full year 2015 consolidated result may be negative as the majority of the restructuring costs

(around € 550 million in fotal) are expected to be booked in 2015.

We expect net provisioning for impairment losses to remain elevated in 2015; however, we anticipate that the requirement will be
below the level of the previous year (2014: € 1,716 million).

We target a CET1 ratio (fully loaded) of 12 per cent and a total capital ratio (fully loaded) of 16 per cent by the end of 2017.
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Fvents after the reporting date

Strategic measures to strengthen capital ratios

In February 2015, RBI resolved fo take a number of steps to increase capital buffers. The measures are intended to facilitate an
improvement in the CET1 ratio (fully loaded) to 12 per cent by the end of 2017, compared to 10 per cent at the end of 2014.
The planned steps will affect a number of operations across RBI, in particular those areas which generate low returns, have high
capital consumption or are of limited strategic fit.

The measures to be implemented include sale of the operations in Poland and Slovenia, as well as the direct banking unit Zuno.
Exposure to the Russian market is to be reduced, with a risk-weighted asset [total RWA) reduction of approximately 20 per cent
planned by the end of 2017 (total RWA as at 31.12.2014: € 8.4 billion). A reduction in exposure is also foreseen in Ukraine,
where total RWA will be decreased by approximately 30 per cent by the end of 2017 (total RWA as at 31.12.2014:

€ 3.0 billion). In Hungary further optimization of the operation will be undertaken. As part of the drive to increase Group focus on
the CEE region, operations are to be significantly scaled back or exited in Asia by the end of 2017 and in the US by the end of
2016.

The implementation of these measures will result in an aggregate gross RWA reduction in the selected markets of approximately
€16 billion by the end of 2017 (total RWA as at 31.12.2014: € 68.7 billion). The total gross reduction from the end of the third
quarter 2014 to the end of 2017 will amount to approximately € 26 billion.

The reduction is expected to be partially offset by growth in other business areas.

Currency devaluations at the beginning of 2015

At the beginning of 2015, changes to the Ukrainian National Bank's monetary policy led to a slump. By the end of February, the
Ukrainian hyvmia had lost 37 per cent. This will have an effect on RBI's loan portfolio; however, this has only litlle impact on RBI's
capital position.

At the beginning of 2015, Belarus devalued the Belarusian rouble (BYR) by around 20 per cent. This was a result of the currency
turbulence in Russia at the end of 2014. The Belarusian economy is strongly linked to the Russian’s. As Priorbank’s capital is partly
secured through an economic hedge this has little impact on the capital position.

The appreciation of the Swiss franc (CHF] against the euro, following the withdrawal of the Swiss National Bank's exchange rate

peg, had a negative effect on RBI's CHF-denominated foreign currency loans. RBI's portfolio of these loans is approximately
€4 billion, € 2.8 billion of which are in Poland. Overall, the shortterm impact on RBI is deemed low.

Raiffeisen Bank Interantional | Annual Report 2014

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEGMENT REPORTS GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT OVERVIEW OF RBI

SERVICE



Raiffeisen Bank International | Annual Report 2014




Raiffeisen Bank International | Annual Report 2014




62

The details on the division of the segments are explained in the segment reports section of the consolidated financial statements.

Segment overview

In Central Europe, a decrease of € 131 million resulted in a loss before tax of € 66 million. This was primarily due to higher losses
caused by a one-off effect (Settlement Act) in Hungary. This contrasted with an improvement in nef income in Poland, the Czech
Republic and Slovakia and a lower loss in Slovenia.

Profit before tax in the Southeastern Europe segment increased 26 per cent, or €71 million, to € 348 million year-on-year. The
increase was primarily due fo lower net provisioning for impairment losses in Bulgaria, Romania, and Croatia.

The Russia segment continued to make the largest regional confribution to net income with a profit before tax of €436 million,
despite being down € 179 million year-on-year. The decline was the result of a € 104 million increase in net provisioning for
impairment losses and a € 221 million lower net trading income caused by currency effects, compensated by a € 112 million
improvement in net interest income.

In the CEE Other segment, geopolitical tensions in Ukraine led to higher net provisioning for impairment losses. In the reporting
year a loss before tax of € 253 million was posted after a profit before tax of €217 million in the previous year.

In the Group Corporates segment, a € 174 million decrease from the previous year resulted in a loss before tax of € 60 million.
This was primarily attributable to the higher net provisioning for impairment losses on loans to large corporate customers in Asia.

The Group Markets segment’s profit before fax fell 12 per cent, or € 15 million, to € 111 million year-on-year, mainly due to the
negative valuation result from securities and derivative financial instruments attributable to the interest rate development.

The Corporate Center segment’s profit before tax increased € 446 million to € 507 million from € 62 million in the prior year's
period. This was mainly due to higher interest and dividend income, lower general administrative expenses and a higher net
income from liabilities designated at fair value. In contrast, goodwill impairments amounted to € 306 million; € 148 million thereof
for the Group unit in Russia, € 101 million for Poland, and € 51 million for Albania.
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Segment development

Central Europe

in € million 2014 2013 Change Q4/2014 Q3/2014 Change

Operating income 1,519 1,657 (8.3)% 334 392 (14.7)%
General administrative expenses (987) (1,098) (10.1)% (262) (234) 12.1%

Operating result 532 558 (4.7)% 72 158 (54.4)%
Net provisioning for impairment losses (272) (403) (32.6)% (Q6) (48) 100.5%

Other results (326) (90) 262.4% 6 (217) -

Profit/loss before tax (66) 65 - (18) (106) (83.0)%
Assets 40,771 38,421 6.1% 40,771 39,808 2.4%

Net interest margin (average interest-

bearing assets) 2.77% 2.92% (0.15) PP 2.54% 2.74% (0.21) PP
Return on equity before tax - 2.0% - - - -

Operating income

The segment's net interest income fell 4 per cenf to € 1,022 million yearon-year. An increase in Slovakia contrasted with declines
in Hungary, Slovenia, Poland, and the Czech Republic. In Slovakia higher margins in new retail business and repricing measures
in the deposit business led to an increase in net inferest income (up € 10 million). The biggest reduction was reported in Hungary
(down € 43 million), where net interest income declined due to lower interest income from derivative financial instruments and
securities, as well as fo lower volumes and market interest rates. In the Czech Republic, lower margins in refail and corporate
customer business, as well as currency effects, had o negative effect on net interest income (down € 4 million). The marginal

€4 million decline in Poland was attributable to considerably lower market interest rates; whereas the lower net interest income in
Slovenia ([down € 6 million) was mainly due to lower lending volumes. The segment’s net interest margin declined 15 basis points
to 2./7 per cent year-on-year. The sharpest decline was reported in Hungary at 56 basis points. Total assets increased 6 per
cent, or € 2.4 billion, to €40.8 billion yearon-year. Risk-weighted assets (total RWA) declined 7 per cent, or € 1.6 billion, to
€22.8 billion.

The segment's net fee and commission income declined 3 per cent, or € 15 million, o € 531 million yearon-year. Net income
from payment transfer business increased 5 per cent to €251 million, mainly as a result of higher margins in Slovakia as well as
higher fees charged to customers in connection with the financial transaction tax in Hungary. In contrast, net income from other
banking services fell to minus € 8 million, predominantly due to reduced business with combined products in Poland, as well as to
lower fee and commission income from structured financing in the Czech Republic. Net income from foreign currency, notes/coins
and precious metals business also declined year-on-year by 8 per cent to € 142 million due to volume and currency effects.

Net trading income in the segment reduced € 8 million to € 20 million. Net income from interestbased transactions decreased

€8 million to €31 million year-on-year. This was mainly atiributable to valuation losses on interestbased derivatives of € 15 million,
in the Czech Republic, and of €9 million in Hungary; whereas in Poland, valuation gains increased € 16 million. Net income from
currency-based transactions fell from minus € 12 million to minus € 17 million yearonyear. Exchange-rate related valuation losses
from foreign currency positions in Poland and in the Czech Republic were largely compensated by valuation gains in Hungary.

Sundry nef operating income for the region declined € 68 million to minus € 53 million. Net allocations to other provisions de-
clined € 18 million. On the one hand, the release of a provision for VAT liabilities in Poland (down €9 million) led to a better result
in the previous year, and on the other, provisions for pending litigation were made in Hungary during the reporting period (down
€6 million). Sales revenues from non-banking business declined € 29 million due to lower infra-Group service charges. The finan-
cial fransaction tax in Hungary led to a €9 million increase in expenses in the reporting year.
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General administrative expenses

The segment’s general administrative expenses declined 10 per cent to € 987 million year-on-year. This was predominantly due to
software depreciation in the Czech Republic in the previous year. Staff expenses declined in all of the segment’s countries and
was led by Poland and the Czech Republic. In Poland, staff expenses were down € 15 million, mainly due to the completion of
the restructuring measures after the merger of Raiffeisen Bank and Polbank. In the Czech Republic, staff expenses declined

€15 million. This was partly due to currency effects and partly to an employee reduction in course of the current cost-cutting
program. Other administrative expenses primarily fell in Poland (down € 31 million) as the infegration of Polbank led to a higher
expense in the comparable period of the previous year. In confrast, other administrative expenses rose € 8 million in Slovakia
because of an increase in deposit insurance fees, and legal, advisory and consulting expenses, as well as higher IT, advertising,
PR and promotional expenses. Higher depreciation of tangible and intangible fixed assets was mainly posted in Hungary and
Poland; whereas it declined € 56 million in the Czech Republic, because of the impairment of a software project in the same
period of the previous year.

The number of business outlets fell by 18 to 784 yearon-year, due primarily to the optimization of the local presence in Poland
and Hungary. The cost/income ratio improved 1.3 percentage points to 65.0 per cent.

Net provisioning for impairment losses

At €272 million net provisioning for impairment losses in the Central Europe segment was € 132 million lower than in the previous
year. Net allocations to individual loan loss provisions fell €79 million to € 350 million, while net releases of portfolio-based loan
loss provisions declined slightly to € 15 million. In addition, the sale of non-performing loans generated income of € 63 million in
the reporting period, a year-on-year increase of € 54 million. Apart from Slovakia, all countries in the segment reported lower net
provisioning for impairment losses: in Poland, net provisioning for impairment losses declined €61 million and was mainly due to
the sale of non-performing loans with a nominal value of € 294 million; in Slovenia, nef provisioning for impairment losses declined
€42 million after being particularly high in the previous year because of a sharp rise in the volume of non-performing loans in the
corporate business, and due to the revaluation of collateral. Declines were reported in Hungary and the Czech Republic of € 24
million and € 11 million respectively. In contrast, various defaults of large corporate customers resulted in a € 6 million increase in
Slovakia.

The share of non-bank non-performing loans in the Central Europe segment’s loan portfolio fell 2.0 percentage points to 10.3 per
cent. The NPL coverage rafio improved 3.6 percentage points to $8.0 per cent.

Other results and taxes
Other results in the Central Europe segment fell €236 to minus € 326 million year-on-year.

Due to a change in legislation in Hungary, a one-off effect in the form of a provision of €251 million was posted in sundry operat-
ing expenses in the reporting period. This law related to exchange rate margins which can be applied to foreign currency loan
disbursements and installments, as well as unilateral interest rate changes on consumer loans. The bank levy contained in other
results fell - mainly in Slovakia - €7 million to € 87 million.

Net income from derivatives and liabilities increased to € 7 million year-on-year (2013: minus €4 million). This was mainly due to
improved net income from hedging fransactions for the adjustment of the currency and inferest rate structure in the Czech Republic.

Net income from financial investments declined € 5 million to € 4 million year-on-year. The valuation of securities from the fair value
portfolio led to a € 13 million decline in net income, mainly caused by the valuation of municipal bonds in Hungary. This was
partly compensated by reduced impairment of equity participations (decline of €6 million) - above all in Slovakia - as well as
slightly higher net proceeds from the sale of securities (up € 2 million) predominantly in Hungary.

The segment’s income taxes rose € 34 million to €92 million. This is primarily due to improved net income in Poland, the Czech
Republic and Slovakia, whereas losses in Hungary did not lead to any tax income [recognition of deferred tax assets).
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Czech Republic
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in € million 2014 2013 Change Q4/2014 Q3/2014 Change
Net interest income 228 232 (1.7)% 58 59 (1.9)%
Net fee and commission income 105 125 (159)% 26 26 0.5%
Net trading income (5) 15 = (3) (1) 327.5%
Sundry nef operatfing income 0 14 - (@) 3 -
Operating income 328 386 (15.1)% 71 87 (17.7)%
General administrative expenses (2071) (277) (27.5)% (52) (51) 3.6%
Operating result 127 109 16.8% 19 36 (47.6)%
Net provisioning for impairment losses (41) (52) (21.3)% (10) Q) 11.6%
Other results 8 (6) - 2 ] 138.6%
Profit/loss before tax 94 51 85.9% 11 28 (59.7)%
Income taxes (20) (8) 152.9% (4) (5) (20.8)%
Profit/loss after tax 74 43 73.6% 7 23 (68.4)%
Assets 8,794 7987 10.1% 8,794 8,218 7.0%
Loans and advances to customers 6,335 5,983 5.9% 6,335 6,201 2.2%
hereof corporate % 44.4% 44.0% 0.4 PP 44.4% 43.6% 0.7 PP
hereof retail % 55.0% 55.6% (0.5) PP 55.0% 55.8% (0.7) PP
hereof foreign currency % 12.8% 11.7% 1.1 PP 12.8% 12.5% 0.3 PP
Deposits from customers 6,378 5757 10.8% 6,378 6,123 42%
Loan/deposit ratio (nef) 95.4% 100.2% (4.8) PP 05.4% Q7 .2% (1.8) PP
Equity 845 705 19.8% 845 775 9.0%
Return on equity before tax 13.2% 7.6% 55PP 6.0% 15.7% (9.8) PP
Refurn on equity after fax 10.4% 6.5% 3.9PP 3.8% 12.9% (9.0) PP
Cost/income ratio 61.3% 71.9% (10.5) PP 73.6% 58.5% 15.1 PP
Net inferest margin (average interest-
bearing assets) 2.98% 3.00% (0.02) PP 2.85% 3.11% (0.26) PP
Employees as at reporting dafe 2,720 2,773 (1.9)% 2,720 2,727 (0.3)%
Business outlets 127 129 (1.6)% 127 128 0.8)%
Customers 481,804 486,909 (1.0)% 481,804 482818 (0.2)%
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Hungary
in € million 2014 2013 Change Q4/2014 Q3/2014 Change
Net interest income 154 196 (21.7)% 35 36 (2.6)%
Net fee and commission income 123 118 4.0% 32 31 0.8%
Net trading income 15 1 >500.0% 7 1 467 6%
Sundry net operating income (60) (48) 25.4% (28) (13) 118.0%
Operating income 232 268 (13.5)% 46 56 (18.0)%
General administrative expenses (188) (185) 1.8% (57) (43) 33.3%
Operating result 43 83 (47.6)% (11) 13 -
Net provisioning for impairment losses (128) (152) (15.8)% (87) (3)  >500.0%
Other results (305) 41)  >500.0% 4 (209) -
Profit/loss before tax (389) (110) 253.3% (94) (198) (52.5)%
Income taxes (9) (6) 57.4% (3) (3) (23.3)%
Profit/loss after tax (398) (116) 243.8% (97) (202) (52.1)%
Assets 6,936 6,230 11.3% 6,936 6,428 7.9%
Loans and advances to customers 4,714 4,990 (5.5)% 4,714 4,853 (2.9)%
hereof corporate % 54.5% 52.5% 2.0 PP 54.5% 53.7% 0.7 PP
(-] 32.8% 36.0% (3.1) PP 32.8% 33.5% (0.7) PP
hereof foreign currency % 58.0% 60.5% (2.5) PP 58.0% 62.4% (4.3) PP
Deposits from customers 4276 4163 2.7% 4276 4,180 2.3%
Loan/deposit ratio (net) 88.3% Q7.2% (8.9) PP 88.3% Q4.6% (6.3) PP
Equity 320 402 (206)% 320 203 57.4%
Refurn on equity before tax - - - - - -
Return on equity affer tax - - - - - -
Cost/income ratio 81.3% 69.1% 12.2 PP 124.0% 76.3% 47.7 PP
Net inferest margin (average interest-
bearing assets) 2.62% 3.18% (0.56) PP 2.32% 2.52% (0.19) PP
Employees as af reporting date 2,298 2,603 (11.7)% 2,298 2,326 (1.2)%
Business outlefs 114 122 6.6)% 114 17 (2.6)%
Customers 580,052 606,021 (4.3)% 580,052 593,187 (2.2)%
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Poland
in € million 2014 2013 Change Q4/2014 Q3/2014  Change
Net interest income 307 312 (1.4)% 67 77 (13.4)%
Net fee and commission income 146 161 (8.9)% 36 37 [4.0)%
Net trading income 4 7 (39.1)% 1 3 (64.9)%
Sundry net operating income 2 25 (92.2)% (4) 3 =
Operating income 460 504 (8.8)% 100 120 (17.1)%
General administrative expenses (321) (362) (11.3)% (79) (73) 8.3%
Operating result 138 142 (2.6)% 20 47 (56.9)%
Net provisioning for impairment losses (25) (86) (70.5)% 28 (15) -
Other results (4) (2) 119.9% 0 0 38.6%
Profit/loss before tax 109 54 101.1% 48 31 55.2%
Income taxes (25) (14) 87.5% (11) (6) 66.6%
Profit/loss after tax 84 41 105.6% 38 25 52.3%
Assets 13,729 12,881 6.6% 13,729 13,451 2.1%
Loans and advances to customers Q791 Q744 0.5% Q791 9,867 (0.8)%
hereof corporate % 38.0% 33.5% 4.5 PP 38.0% 35.3% 2.7 PP
(-] 619% 66.4% (45)PP  619% 646%  (27)PP
hereof foreign currency % 58.8% 55.4% 3.4 PP 58.8% 56.9% 1.9 PP
Deposits from customers /737 7,280 6.3% 7,737 7,720 0.2%
Loan/deposit ratio (net) 116.2% 124.2% (7.9) PP 116.2% 117.5% (1.3) PP
Equity 1,441 1,475 (2.3)% 1,441 1,534 (6.1)%
Refurn on equity before tax 7.5% 3.7% 3.8 PP 13.5% 8.4% 5.1 PP
Return on equity after tax 5.8% 2.8% 3.0 PP 10.5% 6.7% 3.9 PP
Cost/income ratio 69.9% 71.8% (1.9) PP 79.8% 61.1% 18.7 PP
Net inferest margin (average interest-
bearing assets) 2.44% 2.54% (0.11) PP 2.07% 2.41% (0.34) PP
Employees as af reporting date 5,462 5985 (8.7)% 5,462 5,594 (2.4)%
Business outlets 351 370 (5.1)% 351 369 (4.9)%
Cusiermzs 689,676 776917 (112)% 689676 729455 (5.5)%
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Slovakia
in € million 2014 2013 Change Q4/2014 Q3/2014 Change
Net interest income 319 308 3.3% 79 80 (0.1)%
Net fee and commission income 149 135 10.8% 39 38 2.7%
Net trading income 5 5 13.5% 2 1 38.6%
Sundry net operating income 8 26 (69.5)% (8) 5 =
Operating income 481 474 1.5% 112 124 (9.3)%
General administrafive expenses (256) (251) 1.7% (67) (62) 8.0%
Operating result 225 222 1.3% 45 62 (26.6)%
Net provisioning for impairment losses (54) (48) 13.2% (21) (10) 102.7%
Other results (25) 41) (37.6)% 0 (8) -
Profit/loss before tax 145 134 8.9% 25 43 (42.7)%
Income taxes (38) (31) 23.3% (10) (10) 0.0%
Profit/loss after tax 107 103 4.5% 15 33 (54.9)%
Assets 10,215 10,009 2.1% 10,215 10,507 (2.8)%
Loans and advances to customers 7,504 6,879 Q1% 7,504 7,355 2.0%
hereof corporate % 47 9% 46.7% 1.2 PP 47 9% 47 4% 0.4 PP
I — 52.0% 53.0% (10)PP  520% 524%  (0.4)PP
hereof foreign currency % 1.2% 0.6% 0.6 PP 1.2% 1.0% 0.2 PP
Deposits from customers 7,657 7,320 4.6% 7,657 7,390 3.6%
Loan/deposit ratio (net) Q4.9% 91.0% 3.9 PP Q4.9% Q6.2% (1.3) PP
Equity 1,005 1,028 (2.2)% 1,005 991 1.4%
Return on equity before tax 15.2% 14.1% 1.0 PP 10.7% 19.1% (8.4) PP
Return on equity after tax 11.2% 10.8% 0.3 PP 6.6% 14.8% (8.3) PP
Cost/income ratio 53.2% 53.1% 0.1 PP 59.6% 50.0% Q.5 PP
Net interest margin (average interest-
bearing assefs) 3.28% 3.38% (0.09) PP 3.18% 3.25% (0.07) PP
Employees as af reporting date 3,816 3,853 (1.0)% 3816 3,843 (0.7)%
Business outlets 178 165 7.9% 178 184 (3.3)%
Customers 926,903 895,376 35% 926903 924,023 0.3%
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Slovenia
in € million 2014 2013 Change Q4/2014 Q3/2014 Change
Net interest income 14 19 (29.1)% 3 3 8.7%
Net fee and commission income 7 8 (4.3)% 2 2 59%
Netf trading income 1 ] (14.3)% 0 0 (55.2)%
Sundry net operating income (3) (3) 8.8% 0 0 =
Operating income 19 25 (25.1)% 5 5 (4.0)%
General administrafive expenses (21) (22) (7.9)% (6) (5) 25.1%
Operating result (2) 3 - (1) 0 -
Net provisioning for impairment losses (23) (65) (64.8)% (7) (10) (33.2)%
Other results 0 (1) (79.3)% 0 0 (58.5)%
Profit/loss before tax (25) (63) (60.6)% (8) (10) (20.0)%
Income taxes 0 0 (54.8)% 0 0 =
Profit/loss after tax (25) (63) (60.5)% (8) (10) (18.1)%
J— 1,146 1,341 (14.6)% 1,146 1215 (5.7)%
Loans and advances to customers 825 1,051 (21.5)% 825 884 6.6)%
hereof corporate % 59.0% 60.9% (1.9) PP 59.0% 59.0% 0.0 PP
hereof retail % 33.3% 31.8% 1.5 PP 33.3% 34.1% (0.8) PP
hereof foreign currency % 4.3% 4.2% 0.1 PP 4.3% 4.5% (O.1) PP
Deposits from customers 485 423 14.6% 485 478 1.5%
Loan/deposit ratio (net) 144.5% 215.2% (70.7) PP 144.5% 157.3% (12.7) PP
Equity 53 33 63.5% 53 60 (10.8)%
Refurn on equity before tax - - - - - -
Refurn on equity after tax - - - - - -
Cost/income ratio 109.5% 89.1% 20.4 PP 120.0% Q2.1% 279 PP
Net interest margin (average interest-
bearing assefs) 1.22% 1.43% (0.21) PP 1.31% 1.17% 0.14 PP
Employees as af reporting date 230 245 (6.1)% 230 231 (0.4)%
Business outlefs 14 16 (12.5)% 14 14 0.0%
Customers 63,426 65,441 (3.1)% 63,426 63,953 0.8)%
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Southeastern Europe

in € million 2014 2013 Change Q4/2014 Q3/2014 Change
Operating income 1,283 1,285 (0.1)% 310 332 (6.7)%
General administrative expenses (689) (698) (1.4)% (188) (168) 12.0%
Operating result 595 587 1.4% 122 164 (25.9)%
Net provisioning for impairment losses (254) (3206) (22.0)% (77) (43) 78.6%
Other results 8 16 (51.8)% 3 (2) =
Profit/loss before tax 348 277 25.7% 48 120 (59.6)%
Assets 21,371 21,160 1.0% 21,371 21,350 0.1%
Net interest margin (average interest-

bearing assefs) 427% 437%  (0.09)PP 417% 428%  (0.12) PP
Return on equity before tax 16.7% 13.7% 2.9 PP 9.1% 21.3% (12.2) PP

Operating income

The Southeastern Europe segment’s net interest income fell 3 per cent, or € 26 million, to € 835 million year-on-year. In Romania,
lower market interest rates and declining interest income from securities were responsible for a reduction in net interest income
(down €7 million). In Serbia, lower margins and reduced lending volumes in the retail customer business led to a decrease
(down € 11 million). Bosnia and Herzegovina ([down € 5 million) also reported a drop in net inferest income due fo lower vol-
umes in the the corporate customer business. Lower market interest rates also resulted in a fall in net interest income in Bulgaria
(down €5 million). In contrast, Albania reported a rise of € 2 million, while net interest income in Croatia and Kosovo was
largely stable. The segment’s net interest margin declined 9 basis points to 4.27 per cent. Total assets increased 1 per cent to
€21 .4 billion yearon-year, while risk-weighted assets [total RWA) fell 9 per cent to € 13.7 billion.

Net fee and commission income was up 3 per cent, or € 10 million, to € 358 million. Net income from other banking services
increased € 8 million to €25 million yearon-year, largely as a result of income generated from lead arranger activities in Roma-
nia. Net income from payment transfer business increased 4 per cent to € 198 million. This was positively influenced by higher
sales in Croatia and Bulgaria and margin improvements in account management and in the credit card business in Romania. Net
income from foreign currency, notes/coins and precious metals business was up 6 per cent to € 75 million, and was driven by
higher volumes and margins - mainly in Romania and Bosnia and Herzegovina. In contrast, nef income from loan and guarantee
business declined € 13 million to € 15 million, primarily in Romania.

Net frading income for the Southeastern Europe segment increased € 4 million to € 56 million year-on-year. The improvement in
currency-based transactions, up €4 million to € 28 million, was mainly affributable to valuation gains on foreign currency positions
in Romania and Croatia, as well as higher income from securities positions in Bulgaria. Stood against these were valuation losses
from currency-based derivatives in Serbia. In contrast, net income from interest-based transactions marginally fell. Slight declines in
government bonds in Albania, due fo lower volumes and interest rates, were almost entirely offset by the business performance in
Croatia and Romania, which reported higher valuation results from bonds in the trading portfolio and valuations gains from inter-
estbased derivatives.

Sundry net operating income improved € 11 million to € 33 million year-on-year, mainly as a result of a € 4 million increase in net
income from non-banking activities and a gain of € 5 million on the firstime consolidation of Raiffeisen Bausparkasse in Croatia.

General administrative expenses

General administrative expenses fell 1 per cent to € 689 million year-on-year. Staff expenses declined €6 million to €296 million
as a result of lower provisions for bonus payments. Other administrative expenses were also down, due to a reduction in office
space expenses after higher relocation costs in Romania in the previous year. Depreciation remained almost unchanged, as
decreases in Croatia, Bulgaria and Serbia were offset by an impairment in Romania. The cost/income ratio improved

0.7 percentage points to 53.7 per cent.
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Net provisioning for impairment losses

Net provisioning for impairment losses in the Southeastern Europe segment fell 22 per cent, or € 72 million, to € 254 million year-
on-year. Net allocations to individual loan loss provisions declined € 48 million to € 287 million, while net releases of portfolio-
based loan loss provisions increased € 25 million to € 32 million. The largest declines were reported in Bulgaria, Romania and
Croatia: In Bulgaria, the € 39 million decline was due to a lower volume of non-performing loans and a greater provisioning
requirement in the previous year as a result of the impairment of collateral. In Romania, sales of receivables and a year-on-year
reduction in the portfolio of non-performing loans, led to a €21 million decrease in net provisioning for impairment losses. In
Croatia, where collection activities and restructuring were stepped up for both corporate and retail customers, the decline
amounted to € 8 million.

The share of non-bank non-performing loans in the segment’s loan portfolio fell 0.7 percentage points to 13.2 per cent, while the
NPL coverage ratio improved 3.6 percentage points to 66.5 per cent.

Other results and taxes
Other results in the segment halved to € 8 million year-on-year.

Net income from derivatives and liabilities was € 8 million lower yearon-year, mainly as a result of valuation losses from interest
rate swaps in Croatia.

Net income from financial investments amounted to € 8 million and was more or less at the previous year's level. In Croatia, lower
valuation losses from securities of the fair value portfolio were recognized and higher net proceeds from securities were reported,
which were entirely offset by lower valuation gains and net proceeds from the sale of securities in Romania.

The region’s tax expense increased € 23 million to € 52 million year-on-year, while the tax rate was up 5 percentage points to

15 per cent. The increase was mainly the result of a one-off effect in Romania, where a deferred tax liability of € 12 million was
released in the previous year.
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Detailed results of individual countries:

Albania
in € million 2014 2013 Change Q4/2014 Q3/2014 Change
Net interest income 80 77 2.9% 19 19 (0.3)%
Net fee and commission income 11 9 24.8% 3 3 (4.4)%
Net trading income 18 21 (11.5)% 4 4 8.4%
Sundry nef operating income 2 (1) - 2 1 119.9%
Operating income 111 106 5.0% 28 27 3.7%
General administrative expenses 42) (42) 0.6% (11) (11) 0.2)%
Operating result 69 63 7.9% 17 16 6.5%
Net provisioning for impairment losses (29) (29) 0.6% (10) (7) 48.5%
Other results 0 0 (76.6)% 0 0  >500.0%
Profit/loss before tax 39 35 13.5% 7 9 (25.6)%
Income taxes (6) (3) 87.4% (1 () (45.3)%
Profit/loss after tax 33 32 6.2% 6 8 (22.0)%
Assets 1,976 2,084 (5.2)% 1,976 1,975 0.1%
Loans and advances to customers 899 916 (1.8)% 899 911 (1.2)%
hereof corporate % 71.0% 69.7% 1.3 PP 71.0% 71.6% (0.6) PP
hereof retail % 29.0% 30.3% (1.3) PP 29.0% 28.4% 0.6 PP
hereof foreign currency % 67 4% 68.5% (1.1) PP 67 4% 69.6% (2.1) PP
Deposits from customers 1,669 1,758 (5.1)% 1,669 1,654 0.9%
Loan/deposit ratio (net) 48.0% 47 2% 0.8 PP 48.0% 49.0% (1.0) PP
Equity 216 220 (2.0)% 216 221 (2.3)%
Return on equity before tax 19.8% 18.3% 1.5 PP 14.4% 18.9% (4.4) PP
Refurn on equity after fax 16.8% 16.6% 0.2 PP 12.8% 15.9% (3.2) PP
Cost/income ratio 38.1% 39.8% (1.7) PP 39.2% 40.7% (1.5) PP
Net inferest margin (average interest-
bearing assets) 4.70% 4.23% 0.46 PP 4.56% 4.65% (0.09) PP
Employees as atf reporting date 1,326 1,371 (3.3)% 1,326 1,336 (0.7)%
Business outlets 92 104 (11.5)% 92 96 (4.2)%
Customers 723,451 719,949 0.5% 723,451 710,587 1.8%
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Bosnia and Herzegovina
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in € million 2014 2013 Change Q4/2014 Q3/2014 Change
Net interest income 69 74 (6.3)% 17 16 2.4%
Net fee and commission income 35 38 59% Q Q 6.9%
Netf trading income 1 ] 51% 0 1 (68.1)%
Sundry net operating income (1) ] - (3) 0 >500.0%
Operating income 104 109 (4.6)% 24 26 (8.0)%
General administrafive expenses (63) (65) (2.8)% (20) (14) 36.7%
Operating result 41 44 (7.1)% 4 11 (65.6)%
Net provisioning for impairment losses (16) (15) Q7% (10) -
Other results (1) (1) (3.2)% 0 0 -
Profit/loss before tax 24 29 (15.8)% (6) 13 -
Income taxes (4) (3) 38.2% 0 (1) (80.1)%
Profit/loss after tax 21 26 (21.3)% (7) 11 -
Aocis 1,944 2,022 (3.9)% 1,944 1,065 (1.1)%
Loans and advances to customers 1,176 1,223 (3.8)% 1,176 1,196 (1.7)%
hereof corporate % 34.1% 35.8% (1.7) PP 34.1% 34.7% (0.6) PP
hereof retail % 65.5% 63.7% 1.8 PP 65.5% 64.9% 0.6 PP
hereof foreign currency % 74.0% 73.4% 0.6 PP 74.0% 71.8% 2.2 PP
Deposits from customers 1,503 1,567 4.1)% 1,503 1,533 (2.0)%
Loan/deposit ratio (net) 72.5% 72.7% (0.2) PP 72.5% 72.0% 0.4 PP
Equity 272 269 1.2% 272 279 (2.4)%
Refurn on equity before tax 9.5% 12.0% (2.5) PP - 20.2% -
Refurn on equity after tax 8.0% 10.9% (2.9) PP - 18.0% -
Cost/income ratio 60.5% 59.4% 1.1 PP 83.7% 56.3% 274 PP
Net interest margin (average interest-
bearing assefs) 3.67% 3.91% (0.23) PP 3.61% 3.52% 0.09 PP
Employees as af reporting date 1,434 1,491 (3.8)% 1,434 1,462 (1.9)%
Business outlefs %% 98 (2.0)% 96 Q6 0.0%
Customers 499,973 496,690 07% 499973 501,996 (0.4)%
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Bulgaria
in € million 2014 2013 Change Q4/2014 Q3/2014 Change
Net interest income 124 129 (3.8)% 31 30 4.6%
Net fee and commission income 40 38 6.7% 11 10 6.5%
Net trading income 3 3 20.8% 1 1 (13.0)%
Sundry net operating income 1 (3) - 0 0 105.4%
Operating income 169 166 1.4% 43 41 5.4%
General administrative expenses (89) (92) (3.2)% (23) (22) 6.6%
Operating result 79 74 71% 20 19 4.0%
Net provisioning for impairment losses (52) (@1) (43.1)% 9) (13) (30.9)%
Other results 0 (1) - 0 0 -
Profit/loss before tax 28 (18) — 11 7 73.1%
Income taxes (3) 2 - () (1) 59.4%
Profit/loss after tax 25 (15) — 10 6 74.6%
Assets 3,223 3,203 0.6% 3,223 3,377 (4.6)%
Loans and advances to customers 2,175 2,526 (13.9)% 2,175 2,297 (5.3)%
hereof corporate % 40.4% 44.0% (3.6) PP 40.4% 429% (2.5) PP
hereof retail % 58.0% 55.5% 2.5PP 58.0% 56.6% 1.4 PP
hereof foreign currency % 61.5% 67.2% (5.7) PP 61.5% 64.2% (2.7) PP
Deposits from customers 2,168 2,133 1.6% 2,168 2,295 (5.5)%
Loan/deposit ratio (net) 91.3% 106.0% (14.7) PP 91.3% 89.3% 2.0 PP
Equity 496 472 52% 496 486 2.1%
Refurn on equity before tax 59% - - 9.7% 5.6% 4.1 PP
Return on equity after tax 5.3% - - 8.8% 5.0% 3.7 PP
Cost/income ratio 53.0% 55.5% (2.5) PP 53.8% 53.2% 0.6 PP
Net inferest margin (average interest-
bearing assets) 4.00% 3.93% 0.07 PP 3.99% 3.81% 0.18 PP
Employees as af reporting date 2,751 2,965 (7.2)% 2,751 2,767 (0.6)%
Business outlefs 156 168 (7.1)% 156 156 0.0%
Customers 761,894 740,812 28% 761894 755250 0.9%
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Croatia
in € million 2014 2013 Change Q4/2014 Q3/2014 Change
Net interest income 151 153 (0.9)% 37 40 6.1)%
Net fee and commission income 62 56 11.5% 16 17 (3.9)%
Netf trading income 13 11 22.0% 2 3 (30.4)%
Sundry net operating income 23 24 (2.3)% (1) 10 =
Operating income 250 243 2.8% 54 69 (21.7)%
General administrafive expenses (130) (130) 0.2% (33) (34) (3.7)%
Operating result 120 114 5.8% 21 35 (39.3)%
Net provisioning for impairment losses (50) (58) (13.9)% (15) (4) 285.7%
Other results ] 0 258.2% (1) ] -
Profit/loss before tax 72 56 27.8% 6 32 (82.5)%
Income taxes (11) (11) (4.4)% ] (5) =
Profit/loss after tax 61 45 35.9% 7 27 (75.6)%
— 4,647 4749 (2.1)% 4,647 4771 (2.6)%
Loans and advances to customers 3,200 3,436 (6.9)% 3,200 3,323 (3.7)%
hereof corporate % 41.2% 41.8% (0.6) PP 41.2% 41.3% 0.0 PP
hereof retail % 54.4% 48.9% 55PP 54.4% 52.6% 1.8 PP
hereof foreign currency % 64.9% 68.8% (3.9) PP 64.9% 64.1% 0.8 PP
Deposits from customers 3,128 2,863 Q.2% 3,128 3,119 0.3%
Loan/deposit ratio (net) 92.3% 109.1% (16.8) PP 92.3% 95.8% (3.5) PP
Equity 702 750 (6.5)% 702 696 0.8%
Refurn on equity before tax 10.8% 7.9% 29 PP 3.5% 19.7% (16.2) PP
Return on equity after tax 9.2% 6.3% 2.9 PP 4.1% 16.6% (12.5) PP
Cost/income ratio 51.9% 53.2% (1.4) PP 60.8% 49.5% 11.4 PP
Net interest margin (average interest-
bearing assefs) 3.71% 3.58% 0.14 PP 3.54% 3.92% (0.38) PP
Employees as af reporting date 2,127 2,036 4.5% 2,127 2,104 1.1%
Business outlefs 77 76 1.3% 77 77 0.0%
Customers 463,552 475,838 (2.6)% 463,552 468,071 (1.0)%
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Kosovo
in € million 2014 2013 Change Q4/2014 Q3/2014 Change
Net interest income 39 39 0.9% 10 10 0.1%
Net fee and commission income 0.2% 2 2 (4.1)%
Net trading income 0 42.2)% 0 0  >500.0%
Sundry net operating income (1) 41.2% 0 0 (84.8)%
Operating income 46 46 0.3% 12 12 2.0%
General administrative expenses (25) (25) 0.3% (7) (6) 17.5%
Operating result 21 21 0.4% 5 6 (14.4)%
Net provisioning for impairment losses (3) (4) (41.6)% (2) (1) 41.6%
Other results 0 ] - 0 0 (69.4)%
Profit/loss before tax 18 18 4.9% 3 4 (27.9)%
Income taxes (2) (2) 14.5% 0 0 (27.4)%
Profit/loss after tax 16 16 3.8% 3 4 (27.9)%
Assefs 778 699 11.2% 778 782 (0.5)%
Loans and advances to customers 488 458 6.5% 488 483 1.1%
hereof corporate % 39.4% 39.4% (0.1) PP 39.4% 40.5% (1.2) PP
hereof retail % 60.6% 60.6% 0.1 PP 60.6% 50.5% 1.2 PP
hereof foreign currency % 0.0% 0.0% 0.0 PP 0.0% 0.0% 0.0 PP
Deposits from customers 604 558 8.3% 604 613 (1.5)%
Loan/deposit ratio (net) 76.7% 77.7% (1.0) PP 76.7% 74.9% 1.8 PP
Equity 124 108 15.1% 124 121 2.4%
Refurn on equity before tax 17.2% 19.6% (2.4) PP 12.0% 17.0% (5.0) PP
Return on equity after tax 15.3% 17.6% (2.3) PP 10.7% 15.3% (4.5) PP
Cost/income ratio 54.3% 54.4% 0.0 PP 59.2% 51.4% 7.8 PP
Net inferest margin (average interest-
bearing assets) 531% 6.07% (0.76) PP 5.14% 5.28% (0.14) PP
Employees as af reporting date 705 699 0.9% 705 707 (0.3)%
Business outlets 52 54 (3.7)% 52 54 (3.7)%
Customers 278,432 251,035 10.9% 278,432 270,403 3.0%
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Romania
in € million 2014 2013 Change Q4/2014 Q3/2014 Change
Net interest income 274 281 (2.5)% 70 70 0.3%
Net fee and commission income 165 168 (1.8)% 38 47 (17.5)%
Net trading income 18 14 30.6% 3 5 (29.3)%
Sundry net operating income 5 2 145.5% 2 1 105.8%
Operating income 462 465 (0.7)% 114 122 (6.8)%
General administrative expenses (2606) (2771) (1.7)% (73) (63) 15.0%
Operating result 196 195 0.8% 41 59 (30.1)%
Net provisioning for impairment losses (85) (106) (19.9)% (24) (15) 56.2%
Other results 8 16 (50.8)% 4 (2) -
Profit/loss before tax 119 104 14.2% 22 42 (48.4)%
Income taxes (22) (4) 392.5% (6) (8) (30.0)%
Profit/loss after tax 97 100 (2.8)% 16 34 (52.7)%
Assets 6,920 6,528 6.0% 6,920 6,510 6.3%
Loans and advances to customers 4,313 4,266 1.1% 4,313 4,445 (3.0)%
hereof corporate % 33.3% 32.8% 0.5 PP 33.3% 34.1% (0.8) PP
hereof retail % 64.1% 64.3% (0.2) PP 64.1% 63.1% 1.0 PP
hereof foreign currency % 49 7% 54.3% (4.6) PP 497% 50.2% (0.5) PP
Deposits from customers 4,681 4,344 /7% 4,681 4,262 Q.8%
Loan/deposit ratio (net) 85.1% 90.2% (5.1) PP 85.1% 96.3% (11.2) PP
Equity 726 674 7.7 % 726 715 1.5%
Refurn on equity before tax 18.6% 19.2% (0.7) PP 13.6% 26.3% (12.7) PP
Return on equity after tax 15.1% 18.4% (3.3) PP 10.1% 21.4% (11.2) PP
Cost/income ratio 57.5% 58.2% (0.6) PP 63.8% 51.7% 12.1 PP
Net inferest margin (average interest-
bearing assets) 4.36% 461% (0.25) PP 4.35% 4.46% (0.11) PP
Employees as af reporting date 5,292 5,308 (0.3)% 5,292 5,368 (1.4)%
Business outlets 529 530 (0.2)% 529 530 (0.2)%
Customers 2,089,544 2077912 0.6% 2089544 2,049,071 2.0%
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Serbia
in € million 2014 2013 Change Q4/2014 Q3/2014 Change
Net interest income 100 110 (9.8)% 24 25 (6.0)%
Net fee and commission income 36 36 0.7% Q 2.6%
Net trading income 2 3 47 4)% 1 -
Sundry net operating income 5 1 267.0% 1 1 (12.2)%
Operating income 142 150 (5.4)% 35 35 (1.2)%
General administrative expenses (74) (75) (1.1)% (22) (17) 24.6%
Operating result 68 75 (9.7)% 13 18 (26.1)%
Net provisioning for impairment losses (19) (23) (14.2)% (7) (5) 47 6%
Other results 0 ] - 0  >500.0%
Profit/loss before tax 48 54 (9.8)% 6 13 (53.3)%
Income taxes (5) (7) (28.2)% (1) (1) (50.3)%
Profit/loss after tax 43 46 (6.9)% 5 12 (53.6)%
Assefs 1,885 1,875 0.5% 1,885 1,972 (4.4)%
Loans and advances to customers 1,129 1,105 2.1% 1,129 1,112 1.5%
hereof corporate % 52.2% 47 9% 4.3 PP 52.2% 50.3% 1.9 PP
(-] 467% 49.9% (3.2) PP 46.7% 47.7% (1.0) PP
hereof foreign currency % 61.3% 69.8% (8.5) PP 61.3% 64.5% (3.3) PP
Deposits from customers 1,240 1,119 10.8% 1,240 1,269 (2.3)%
Loan/deposit ratio [nef) 81.4% 89.2% (7.8) PP 81.4% 78.7% 27 PP
Equity 466 498 (6.4)% 466 516 (9.7)%
Refurn on equity before tax 10.1% 11.9% (1.8) PP 5.5% 11.0% (5.5) PP
Return on equity after tax 9.0% 10.2% (1.3) PP 4.9% Q.8% (4.9) PP
Cost/income ratio 52.2% 49.9% 2.3 [PIP 61.9% 49.1% 12.8 PP
Net inferest margin (average interest-
bearing assets) 5.52% 6.23% (0.71) PP 5.23% 5.50% (0.27) PP
Employees as af reporting date 1,581 1,602 (1.3)% 1,581 1,590 (0.6)%
Business outlefs 85 85 0.0% 85 86 (1.2)%
Customers 640,337 604,122 6.0% 640,337 622,755 2.8%
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Russia

in € million 2014 2013 Change Q4/2014 Q3/2014 Change
Operating income 1,082 1,186 (8.8)% 234 269 (13.2)%
General administrative expenses 477) (552) (13.7)% (109) (126) (13.6)%
Operating result 605 634 (4.6)% 125 143 (12.7)%
Net provisioning for impairment losses (152) (48) 216.1% (35) (47) (25.8)%
Other results (17) 29 = (20) 4 =
Profit/loss before tax 436 615 (29.1)% 69 100 (30.7)%
Jy— 12457 15,555 (199]% 12457 14,683 (15.2)%
Net interest margin (average interest-

bearing assets) 592% 4.80% 1.12 PP 6.09% 6.37% (0.29) PP
Return on equity before tax 28.8% 38.7% (9.9) PP 17.6% 23.8% (6.2) PP

Operating income

Net interest income in Russia increased 16 per cent, or € 112 million, to €835 million year-on-year. Interest income from derivo-
tive financial instruments rose € 84 million. Increased interest income from loans also had a positive effect, which largely reflected
higher volumes in the refail business. The segment’s net interest margin was up 112 basis points to 5.92 per cent year-on-year.
Total assets declined 20 per cent to € 12.5 billion year-on-year, while risk-weighted assets (total RWA) were down 27 per cent to
€8.4 billion.

Net fee and commission income fell 1 per cent, or €4 million, to € 304 million year-on-year, due fo currency effects. While net
income from the loan and guarantee business was down € 17 million to € 77 million, net income from foreign currency,
notes/coins and preciousmetal business rose € 26 million to € 88 million, largely due to higher volumes. Net income from the
payment fransfer business fell € 11 million to € 102 million.

Net trading income fell €221 million to minus € 65 million, which was considerably below the previous year's level. Net income
from currency-based transactions decreased € 183 million to minus € 36 million as a result of lower valuation results from foreign
currency derivatives carried out for hedging purposes. Besides currency developments, this was also due to the classification of

new foreign currency fransactions carried out fo hedge banking book positions, which resulted in interest income from such trans-
actions being reported under net interest income. Net income from interestbased transactions declined € 38 million to minus

€ 30 million due to valuation losses on securities and derivatives, as well as lower interest income from securities.

Sundry nef operating income reversed from being slightly negative in the previous year to plus € 8 million, due fo the sale of a

building.
General administrative expenses

General administrative expenses fell 14 per cent, or € 76 million, to € 477 million. The decline was mainly attributable to the
development of the Russian rouble. Staff expenses therefore had a currency-related decline of € 45 million, while wages and
salaries increased in local currency due to higher bonus payments. Other administrative expenses fell € 16 million and were
similarly currency related, while lower advertising and IT expenses also contributed. The € 14 million decline in depreciation was
also predominantly currency related. In addition, depreciation of tangible fixed assets fell. The number of business outlets rose by
17 to 212 year-on-year. The cost/income ratio improved 2.5 percentage points to 44.1 per cent.

Net provisioning for impairment losses

In the reporting year, net provisioning for impairment losses increased € 104 million in Russia. This was due to increases of

€ 53 million both in net allocations to individual loan loss provisions and portfolio-based loan loss provisions. These stood against
a € 2 million increase in gains from the sale of impaired loans. This development was mainly the result of increased lending vol-
umes to retail and corporate customers, developments in the retail business due to the economic situation in Russia (the develop-
ment of the US dollar and euro against the Russian rouble, as well as inflation, led to the detferioration of customers’ credit
standing), and individual defaults of corporate customers. The share of non-performing loans in the segment's loan portfolio rose
1.1 percentage points to 5.9 per cent, while the NPL coverage ratio declined to 70.5 per cent (2013: 77.8 per cent).
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Other results and taxes

The Russian segment’s other results declined € 46 million to minus € 17 million. Net income from financial investments fell from plus
€25 million in the previous year to minus € 44 million in the reporting year. On the one hand, the decrease resulted from valuation
losses on securities in the fair value porifolio, which were € 28 million higher than in the previous year; and on the other, from
losses of € 15 million on the sale of securities in the fair value portfolio which were recognized in the reporting year - whereas a
gain of € 1 million was reported in the previous year. Furthermore, gains of € 24 million in net proceeds from the sale of equity
parficipations were achieved in the comprarable period of the previous year from the sale of VISA shares. Net income from de-
rivative financial instruments increased € 22 million to € 26 million as a result of valuation gains from interestrate swaps carried out
to mitigate interest rate structure risk, as well as changes in the market values of banking book derivatives.

The segment’s income taxes fell € 50 million to € 96 million as a result of lower net income, while the tax rate amounted to
22 per cent (2013: 24 per cent).
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The table below provides an overview of the country results for Russia. Any discrepancies with regard to values specified for the
Russia segment are the result of equity being allocated differently: The figures in the country overview are based on equity report-

ed on the statement of financial position, while af the segment level equity is based on the actual equity used.

in € million 2014 2013 Change Q4/2014 Q3/2014 Change
Net interest income 835 722 15.5% 199 233 (14.3)%
Net fee and commission income 304 308 (1.4)% Q0 74 21.8%
Net trading income (65) 156 = (55) (36) 53.3%
Sundry nef operafing income 8 0 - (1) (1 (499)%
Operating income 1,082 1,186 (8.8)% 234 269 (13.2)%
General administrative expenses 477) (552) (13.7)% (109) (1206) (13.6)%
Operating result 605 634 (4.6)% 125 143 (12.7)%
Net provisioning for impairment losses (152) (48) 216.1% (35) 47) (25.8)%
Other results (17) 29 - (20) 4 -
Profit/loss before tax 436 615 (29.1)% 69 100 (30.7)%
Income taxes (90) (146) (34.4)% (19) (22) (16.8)%
Profit/loss after tax 340 469 (27.4)% 51 78 (34.7)%
Assets 12,457 15,555 (19.9)% 12,457 14,683 (15.2)%
Loans and advances to customers 8,389 9967 (15.8)% 8,389 10,806 (22.4)%
hereof corporate % 60.9% 55.6% 5.4 PP 60.9% 58.2% 2.7 PP
hereof retail % 39.1% 44.4% (5.3) PP 39.1% 41.8% (2.7) PP
hereof foreign currency % 47.8% 33.5% 14.4 PP 47.8% 39.7% 8.1 PP
Deposits from customers 7317 9,924 (26.3)% 7317 9,255 (20.9)%
Loan/deposit ratio (net) 109.9% Q6.7% 13.2 PP 109.9% 111.9% (2.1) PP
Equity 1,197 2,360 (49.3)% 1,197 1,971 (39.3)%
Refurn on equity before tax 23.6% 31.7% (8.1) PP 21.9% 21.5% 0.4 PP
Return on equity after tax 18.4% 24.2% (5.7) PP 16.0% 16.7% (0.7) PP
Cost/income ratio 44.1% 46.6% (2.5) PP 46.5% 46.8% (0.3) PP
Net inferest margin (average interest-
bearing assets) 592% 4.80% 1.12 PP 6.09% 6.37% (0.29) PP
Employees as af reporting date 8,252 8,542 (3.4)% 8,252 8,390 (1.6)%
Business outlets 212 195 8.7% 212 206 2.9%
Customers 2,940,532 2,617,291 12.4% 29240,532 2,840,875 3.5%
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CEE Other

in € million 2014 2013 Change Q4/2014 Q3/2014 Change
Operating income 452 638 (29.2)% 81 119 (31.7)%
General administrafive expenses (296) (358) (17.2)% (55) (97) (43.2)%
Operating result 156 281 (44.5)% 27 22 18.1%
Net provisioning for impairment losses (542) (108) 403.8% (212) (144) 467%
Other results 188 44 202.7% 25 31 (18.4)%
Profit/loss before tax (253) 217 - (160) (21) 75.6%
Py 4043 5809 (30.4)% 4,043 4564 (11.4)%
Net interest margin (average interest-

bearing assets) 8.92% 7.60% 1.32 PP 8.79% 8.99% (0.19) PP
Return on equity before tax - 26.1% - - - -

Operating income

Net interest income in the CEE Other segment fell @ per cent, or € 36 million, to € 386 million year-on-year. This was mainly at-
tributable fo a currency-related decline in net interest income of 18 per cent, or €61 million, to € 272 million in Ukraine (in local
currency nef inferest income increased 20 per cent). In contrast, net interest income in Belarus increased 28 per cent, or

€24 million, to € 112 million, due to higher lending volumes and improved margins. The segment’s net interest margin rose from
7.60 per cent to 8.92 per cent year-onyear. Total assets decreased 30 per cent to €4.0 billion year-on-year, and risk-weighted
assefs (fotal RWA| also declined 25 per cent to €4.6 billion.

The segment’s net fee and commission income declined € 16 million to € 194 million year-on-year. This included a decrease in net
income from payment fransfer business - mainly exchange rate related in Ukraine - 21 per cent, or € 32 million, to € 125 million.
This decline, however, was partly offset by a € 18 million increase in net income from foreign currency, notes/coins and precious
mefals business to € 55 million which was also reported in Ukraine as a result of higher volumes and margins.

Net frading income reduced from plus € 12 million in the comparable period of the previous year to minus € 112 million in the
reporting period. This was mainly due to net income from currency-based transactions, which was burdened by higher valuation
losses from foreign currency positions in Ukraine.

Sundry net operating income fell € 11 million to minus € 16 million year-on-year. The negative impact was the result of a newly
infroduced tax on purchases of foreign currency in Ukraine (€ 11 million). In contrast, real estate sales of €4 million had a positive
effect; whereas, net income arising from non-banking activities declined.

General administrative expenses

General administrative expenses declined € 62 million to € 296 million year-on-year. The majority of this reduction was in Ukraine,
primarily due to the devaluation of the Ukrainian hryvnia, while general administrative expenses in Belarus increased as a result of
inflation related adjustments to wages and salaries and higher other administrative expenses. The segment’s staff expenses de-
creased € 54 million as a result of employee reductions in Ukraine. The decline in other administrative expenses was mainly a
result of the currency development in Ukraine. A € 30 million impairment of the brand and customer base and € 4 million impair-
ment of a building, led to increased depreciation of tangible and intangible fixed assets. The segment’s number of business outlets
declined by 130 to 769. The cost/income ratio increased 9.5 percentage points to 65.6 per cent.

Net provisioning for impairment losses

The region’s net provisioning for impairment losses increased € 434 million to € 542 million yearon-year, mainly driven by devel-
opments in Ukraine. Net provisioning for impairment losses rose € 412 million in Ukraine and was largely required on foreign
currency loans due to the devaluation of the Ukrainian hryvnia and the resulting required provision for collateralized US dollar
loans, as well as to various defaults on loans to corporate customers. In Belarus, net provisioning for impairment losses totaled
€9 million, whereas provisions of € 13 million were released in the previous year. This was mainly the result of various defaults on
loans to corporate customers and the application of new default rates.
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The share of non-performing loans in the segment's total loan portfolio rose 9.3 percentage points to 33.7 per cent. The seg-
ment's NPL coverage ratio improved in the reporting period by 14.8 percentage points to 87.0 per cent.

Other results and taxes

Other results increased € 89 million to € 133 million year-on-year. This was mainly due to gains from the valuation and sale of
securities from the fair value portfolio (up € 105 million). This resulted exclusively from the valuation and partial repayment of fixed-
income government bonds in Ukraine. In contrast net proceeds from the sale of equity participations were € 18 million lower after

net proceeds of € 20 million were posted from the sale of VISA and MasterCard shares in the previous year.

Tox income of € 27 million was posted for the region in the reporting period after a tax expense of €47 million in the previous
year. This was mainly due to the capitalization of tax loss carryforwards in Ukraine.
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Detailed results of individual countries:

Belarus
in € million 2014 2013 Change Q4/2014 Q3/2014 Change
Net interest income 112 88 27.6% 27 33 (18.0)%
Net fee and commission income 66 62 69% 15 20 (24.5)%
Net trading income 0 (1) (30.8)% 6 (5) =
Sundry net operatfing income (1) (1) 46.9% (1) 0 226.9%
Operating income 177 149 19.1% 47 47 (0.7)%
General administrative expenses (80) (74) 8.1% (17) (23) (25.8)%
Operating result 97 75 30.0% 30 24 23.6%
Net provisioning for impairment losses (9) 13 - (5) (1) 254.7%
Other results 2 0 - 0 2 -
Profit/loss before tax 90 87 3.6% 25 25 (0.9)%
Income taxes (28) (20) 36.5% (11) (6) Q1.1%
Profit/loss after tax 63 67 (6.4)% 14 19 (28.8)%
Assets 1,536 1,446 6.2% 1,536 1,643 (6.5)%
Loans and advances to customers 1,047 910 15.0% 1,047 1,047 0.0%
hereof corporate % 69.6% 72.3% (2.6) PP 69.6% 70.9% (1.3) PP
hereof retail % 30.4% 27.7% 2.6 PP 30.4% 29.1% 1.3 PP
hereof foreign currency % 68.5% 72.4% (3.9) PP 68.5% 73.3% (4.8) PP
Deposifs from customers 867 842 2.9% 867 989 (12.4)%
Loan/deposit rafio (net) 117.6% 105.7% 11.9 PP 117.6% 103.5% 14.0 PP
Equity 329 270 21.9% 329 327 0.4%
Return on equity before tax 34.2% 447% (10.5) PP 35.6% 36.5% (1.0) PP
Refurn on equity after tax 23.7% 34.3% (10.6) PP 19.6% 28.0% (8.4) PP
Cost/income ratio 45.2% 49.8% (4.6) PP 36.8% 49 2% (12.4) PP
Net inferest margin (average interest-
bearing assets) 8.08% 6.68% 1.40 PP 7.33% 9.09% (1.76) PP
Employees as af reporting date 2,176 2,216 (1.8)% 2,176 2,162 0.6%
Business outlets o7 100 (3.0)% Q7 Q6 1.0%
Customers 744,935 719919 3.5% 744,935 740,085 0.7%
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Ukraine
in € million 2014 2013 Change Q4/2014 Q3/2014 Change
Net interest income 272 332 (18.2)% 59 60 (2.8)%
Net fee and commission income 127 148 (13.9)% 30 32 (3.6)%
Net trading income (1171) 12 = (52) (15) 239.4%
Sundry net operating income (15) (5) 198.8% (3) (5) (41.4)%
Operating income 273 487 (43.9)% 34 71 (52.4)%
General administrative expenses (216) (283) (23.8)% (37) (73) (48.9)%
Operating result 58 204 (71.8)% (3) (2) 94.7%
Net provisioning for impairment losses (533) (121) 339.8% (207) (143) 44.6%
Other results 131 44 199.9% 25 28 (11.8)%
Profit/loss before tax (345) 127 = (185) (116) 59.1%
Income taxes 55 (20) = 34 12 189.3%
Profit/loss after tax (290) 101 = (151) (105) 44.7%
— 2481 4327 (42.7)% 2481 2894 (14.3)%
Loans and advances to customers 2,688 3,599 (25.3)% 2,688 2,890 (7.0)%
hereof corporate % 54.6% 56.6% (2.0) PP 54.6% 54.2% 0.3 PP
hereof retail % 45.2% 43.4% 1.8 PP 45.2% 45.5% (0.3) PP
hereof foreign currency % 57.5% 46.9% 10.6 PP 57.5% 55.4% 2.1 PP
Deposits from customers 1,541 2,433 (36.7)% 1,541 1,649 (6.5)%
Loan/deposit ratio (net) 104.7% 115.9% (11.2) PP 104.7% 118.6% (13.9) PP
EqUIt) 218 878 (75.2)% 218 405 (46.2)%
Refurn on equity before tax - 16.1% - - - -
Return on equity after tax - 12.8% - - - -
Cost/income ratio 78.9% 58.1% 20.8 PP 109.9% 102.4% 7.5 PP
Net inferest margin (average interest-
bearing assets) 9.35% 7.92% 1.43 PP 9.52% Q.04% 0.48 PP
Employees as af reporting date 11,478 13,053 (12.1)% 11,478 12,199 (5.9)%
Business outlets 671 798 (159)% 671 670 0.1%
Customers 2,940,953 3,062,204 (40)% 2940953 2,859,750 2.8%
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Group Corporates

in € million 2014 2013 Change Q4/2014 Q3/2014 Change
Operating income 615 622 (1.1)% 129 166 (22.2)%
General administrative expenses (180) (191) (5.7)% (38) (48) (21.4)%
Operating result 435 431 0.9% 91 118 (22.5)%
Net provisioning for impairment losses (490) (258) 90.1% (209) (2306) (11.1)%
Other results (5) ] = (1) (1) (1.5)%
Profit/loss before tax (60) 174 - (120) (119) 0.3%
Assets 18,618 20,812 (10.5)% 18,618 21,088 (11.7)%

Net interest margin (average interest-

bearing assets) 2.31% 2.34% (0.03) PP 1.83% 2.51% (0.68) PP

9.6% - - - -

Return on equity before tax

Operating income

The segment’s net interest income fell 2 per cent, or €9 million, to € 469 million year-on-year. The margin-related increase in net
inferest income at Group head office’s Corporate Customers profit center (Austrian and multinational corporate customers serviced
from Vienna) was fully offset by decreases in other segment areas. In Asia, reduced lending volumes to corporate custfomers and
higher impairment resulted in a decline. Despite lower refinancing costs, the segment’s net interest margin fell 3 basis points to
2.31 per cent. Tofal assets decreased 11 per cent o € 18.6 billion year-on-year, while risk-weighted assets (total RWA) fell

9 per cent to € 12.6 billion.

Net fee and commission income declined € 20 million to € 140 million year-onyear. Declines were posted at Group head office
and at business outlets in the US and Asia. These were attributable to lower net fee and commission income from bond issues, as
well as from real esfate, export and investment financing; whereas higher net fee and commission income resulted from the project
financing business.

The segment’s net trading income reversed from minus € 16 million in the comparable period of the previous year fo plus € 6 million
in the reporting period. This was, above all, due to an increase in net income from interest-based derivatives af Group head office.

General administrative expenses

The segment’s general administrative expenses declined 6 per cent, or € 11 million, to € 180 million year-on-year, largely as a
result of lower staff and depreciation expenses. The segment consisted of 8 business outlets at the reporting date. The
cost/income ratio improved 1.4 percentage points to 29.3 per cent.

Net provisioning for impairment losses

Net provisioning for impairment losses increased € 232 million to € 490 million yearon-year. This increase was primarily the result
of high net allocations to individual loan loss provisions due to defaults on loans to large corporate customers in Asia, which
increased €215 million to €291 million. At Group head office, net provisioning increased slightly by € 29 million to € 196 million.
Non-performing loans in Asia were up € 432 million to €734 million, which corresponds to an 18.7 per cent share of the seg-
ment's total loan portfolio. Overall, the share of non-performing loans in the segment's total loan portfolio rose 3.8 percentage
points to 10.5 per cent.

Other taxes and results

The segment’s other results decreased from € 1 million to minus € 5 million year-on-year. Group head office’s bank levy had a
negative effect of €5 million, as it was allocated to the individual segments for the first time in the reporting year.

The tax expense increased € 52 million to €87 million. In Asia, an impairment of € 35 million on deferred tax assets was carried
out, as there would have been insufficient taxable profit available in future, due to the planned reduction of business in China.
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Group Markets

in € million 2014 2013 Change Q4/2014 Q3/2014 Change

Operating income 367 375 (2.3)% 92 99 (7.4)%
General administrative expenses (244) (253) (3.5)% (56) (60) (7.8)%
Operating result 123 123 0.2% 36 38 (6.8)%
Net provisioning for impairment losses 1 (15) - (2) 1 -

Other results (13) 18 = (7) (2) 273.7%

Profit/loss before tax 111 125 (11.8)% 27 38 (28.8)%
Assets 17,635 20,271 (13.0)% 17,635 19,751 (10.7)%
Net inferest margin (average interest-

bearing assets) 0.98% 0.74% 0.24 PP 0.95% 0.95% 0.00 PP

Return on equity before tax 16.9% 18.9% (2.1) PP 17.8% 27.6% (9.8) PP

Operating income

Net interest income in the Group Markets segment declined 8 per cent, or € 12 million, to € 136 million yearon-year, because of
a partial reclassification of new business from the banking book to the trading book. The 24 basis poinfs increase in the net inter-
est margin to 0.98 per cent was the result of a reduction in average interestbearing assets. Total assets decreased 13 per cent fo
€17.6 billion yearon-year. Risk-weighted assets (total RWA) declined 30 per cent to € 3.9 billion.

The segment's net fee and commission income decreased 9 per cent to € 110 million year-on-year, due to lower sales. This was
attributable to the decline in customer demand for fixed-income bank products, due to the low interest rate level, as well as to
lower volumes of bonds, derivative products and funds.

Net trading income in the segment increased 15 per cent, or € 12 million, to €96 million. The decline in equity and index-based
fransactions was more than offset by an improvement in interest-based transactions.

Sundry net operating income, which consists of various smaller income and expense items, improved 13 per cent, or € 3 million, to

€25 million.

General administrative expenses

General administrative expenses in the Group Markets segment declined 3 per cent to € 244 million year-on-year. Staff and
depreciation expenses allocated to the segment declined yearon-year, whereas other administrative expenses increased due to
higher legal, advisory and consulting fees arising within the course of the Asset Quality Review. The cost/income ratio improved
0.8 percentage points to 66.5 per cent.

Net provisioning for impairment losses

There was a net release of impairment losses of € 1 million in the reporting period; whereas in the previous year, there was a net
€15 million allocation fo provisions at Group head office's Financial Insfitutions & Sovereigns profit center. The ratio of non-
performing loans to fotal credit exposure in the segment was 2.2 per cent.

Other results and taxes

The segment's other results fell €32 million year-on-year from € 18 million to minus € 13 million. This was mainly affributable to
valuation results of securities and derivative financial instruments, which declined € 27 million due to interest rate developments.
Group head office's bank levy had a negative effect of € 6 million on netincome (2013: € 1 million) as this was allocated fo the
individual segments for the first time in the reporting year. The tax expense declined € 10 million to € 13 million.
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Corporate Center

in € million 2014 2013 Change Q4/2014 Q3/2014 Change
Operating income 1,125 774 45.3% 123 251 (50.9)%
General administrative expenses (2771) (329) (17.6)% (45) (73) (38.1)%
Operating result 854 445 91.9% 78 179 (56.0)%
Net provisioning for impairment losses (10) 6 - (6) 2 -
Other results (337) (389) (13.4)% (319) 84 =
Profit/loss before tax 507 62 >500.0% (247) 264 =
Assets 31,095 34,716 (10.4)% 31,095 35,599 (12.7)%

Net inferest margin (average interest-
bearing assets) = = - - - _

Return on equity before tax 19.1% 2.7% 16.3 PP - 38.0% -

As of fourth quarter 2014, disclosure of investments in cash generating units was changed. On the one hand, goodwill and im-
pairment of goodwill is assigned to the segment in which the investment is recognized, on the other, changes in carrying amount
of investments in subsidiaries are eliminated in order fo represent the Group-relevant effects in the respective segment. Till that time
they were shown under reconciliation. The previous year figures were adapted accordingly.

Operating income

The segment’s net interest income rose € 388 million or 58 per cent to € 1,053 million year-on-year. This increase was particularly
due to higher infra-Group dividend income and lower funding costs, which were achieved through an optimization of the Group's
refinancing structure. Besides income from the predominantly short-term investment of free liquidity, inferest expenses of €73 million
[2013: €60 million) for the subordinated capital of RBI AG were also reported in the segment. Assets declined 10 per cent to

€31.1 billion yearon-year, largely due fo the optimization of the liquidity position. Risk-weighted assets (total RWA| were up
12 per cent fo € 18.7 billion.

Net fee and commission income significantly improved from minus € 40 million fo minus €9 million year-on-year. This was largely
affributable to higher net fee and commission income from intra-Group securifization transactions and the acceptance of guarantees.

The segment’s net frading income declined € 64 million to minus € 54 million year-on-year, mainly as a result of valuation losses
from open foreign currency positions.

Sundry nef operating income fell €4 million to € 136 million. The majority of this income came from intra-Group service charges.
General administrative expenses

General administrative expenses fell 18 per cent, or € 58 million, to € 271 million yearon-year. Staff expenses declined

€12 million at Group head office. Other administrative expenses fell € 38 million due to lower intra-Group charges. Depreciation

expenses were down € 8 million to € 17 million, mainly at Group head office.

Net provisioning for impairment losses

Net provisioning for impairment losses generally plays a minor role in this segment due fo the intra-Group nature of its business
activities. Net provisioning for corporate customers at Group head office amounted to € 10 million in the reporting year.
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Other results and taxes

Other results increased € 52 million to minus € 337 million year-on-year. Included net income from derivatives and liabilities devel-
oped positively, improving € 353 million to € 89 million. This was mainly atiributable to net income from liabilities designated at
fair value. The included valuations for the credit spread increased € 292 million to € 166 million. In contrast, goodwill impairment
of €306 million was recognized for Group units mainly in Russia (€ 148 million), Poland (€ 101 million) and Albania (€51 mil-
lion). Net income from financial investments amounted fo minus € 31 million in the reporting year, following minus € 18 million in
the comparable period of the previous year.

The Austrian bank levy had a negative impact of €79 million on net income. In addition, net income from disposal of Group
assefs resulting from the sale of commodity trading group FJ. Elsner, Vienna, amounted to minus € 11 million.

A tax expense of € 173 million was recognized in the Corporate Center segment in the reporting year. This resulted mostly from

the € 161 million impairment on deferred tax assets at Group head office, since the tax loss carry-forwards cannot be utilized
according fo the updated medium-term tax plan.
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Statement of comprehensive income

Income statement

in € thousand Notes 2014 2013 Change
Interest income 5,615,587 6,083,730 (7.7)%
Current income from associates 0 122 -
Interest expenses (1,826,657) (2,354,913) (22.4)%
Net interest income [2] 3,788,930 3,728,939 1.6%
Net provisioning for impairment losses [3] (1,715,900) (1,149,215) 49.3%
Net interest income after provisioning 2,073,030 2,579,724 (19.6)%
Fee and commission income 2,007,250 2,012,514 (0.3)%
Fee and commission expense (421,362) (386,340) Q1%
Net fee and commission income [4] 1,585,888 1,626,167 (2.5)%
Net trading income [5] (29,744) 321,071 =
Net income from derivatives and liabilities [6] 88,253 (256,662) -
Net income from financial investments [7] 62,485 57,743 8.2%
General administrative expenses [8] (3,023,570) (3,339,500) (9.5)%
Other nef operating income [9] (723,704) (147,415) 390.9%
Net income from disposal of group assets [10] (9,755) (6,465) 50.9%
Profit/loss before tax 22,882 834,657 (97.3)%
Income taxes [171] (485,961) (231,711) 109.7%
Profit/loss after tax (463,079) 602,946 -
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests [34] (29,659) (45,611) (35.0)%
Consolidated profit/loss (492,738) 557,336 -
Earnings per share
in€ Notes 2014 2013 Change
Earnings per share [12] (1.73) 1.83 (3.56)

Eamings per share is obtained by dividing adjusted consolidated profit/loss (less dividends for participation capital) by the aver-
age number of common shares outstanding. In the fiscal year 2014, the number of common shares outstanding was 284,898

thousand compared with 194,948 thousand in the previous year.

There are no conversion rights or options outstanding, so undiluted earnings per share is equal to diluted eamings per share.
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Other comprehensive income and total comprehensive income

Total Group equity Non-controlling interests
in € thousand 2014 2013 2014 2013 2014 2013
Profit/loss after tax (463,079) 602,946 (492,738) 557,336 29,659 45,611
ltems which are not reclassified to profit and loss (9,774) 2,862 (9,774) 2,862 0 0
Remeasurements of defined benefit plans (13,033) 3,820 (13,033) 3,820 0 0
Deferred taxes on items which are not reclassified to profit and
loss 3,258 (958) 3,258 (958) 0 0
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss (1,280,800) (468,461) (1,264,199) (452,781) (16,601) (15,680)
Exchange differences (1335255)  (460,210) (1,314018)  (439,938]  (21.236)  (20.272)
Capital hedge 2,041 4,656 2,041 4,656 0 0
Hyperinflation 39,162 31,158 34,361 27,338 4,801 3,820
Net gains (losses) on derivatives hedging fluctuating cash flows (10,241) (16,364) (10,241) (16,364) 0 0
Changes in equity of companies valued at equity 0 224 0 224 0 0
Net gains (losses) on financial assets availablefor-sale 21,411 (34,552) 21,577 (35,324) (166) 772
Deferred taxes on income and expenses directly recognized in
equity 2,081 6,626 2,081 6,626 (0] 0
Other comprehensive income (1,290,575) (465,599) (1,273,973) (449,919) (16,601) (15,680)
Total comprehensive income (1,753,654) 137,347 (1,766,712) 107,416 13,058 29,931

Other comprehensive income

According o IAS 19R re-valuation of defined benefit plans are to be shown in other comprehensive income. This resulted in other
comprehensive income of minus € 13,033 thousand in the reporting year (2013: € 3,820 thousand).

Exchange differences are derived primarily from changes of the Russian rouble and Ukrainian hryvnia to Euro. In the current report-
ing and previous year, no profit or loss was reclassified to income statement.

Capital hedge comprises hedges for investments in economically independent sub-units.

In 2014, € 39,162 thousand (2013: € 31,158 thousand) was recognized directly in other comprehensive income through the
application of IAS 29 (hyperinflation accounting] in Belarus.

Cash flow hedging has been applied in two Group units to hedge the changes in interest rate risk. In the current reporting year
and previous year, no profit or loss was reclassified to income statement.

The item, net gains (losses) on financial assets availableforsale, contains net valuations of financial investments. In the current
reporting year, minus € 10 thousand {2013: € 41,752 thousand) was reclassified to income sfatement.

GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT OVERVIEW OF RBI

SEGMENT REPORTS
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The following components of retained eamings developed as follows:

Remeasure- Exchange  Capital Hyper-  Cash flow Fair value reserve  Deferred
in € thousand ments reserve differences  hedge inflation hedge (afs financial assets) taxes
Asat 1/1/2013 (6,260) (1,308,271) 72,917 113,314 (1,302) 51,595 296,352
Unrealized net gains (losses) of the period 3,820 (439,938) 4,656 27,338 (16,364) 6,429 118

hereof net gains (losses) reclassified

to income statement 0 0 0 0 0 (41,752) 5,550
Asat 31/12/2013 (2,440) (1,748,209) 77,573 140,652 (17,666) 16,271 302,020
Unrealized net gains (losses) of the period (13,003) (1,314,018) 2,041 34,361 (10,241) 21,567 5,334

hereof net gains (losses) reclassified

to income statement 0 0 0 0 0 10 (2)
Asat31/12/2014 (15,442) (3,062,227) 79,614 175,012 (27,906) 37,848 307,352

Quarterly results

in € thousand Q1/2014 Q2/2014 Q3/2014 Q4/2014
Net interest income 978,703 Q74,996 940,191 895,041
Net provisioning for impairment losses (281,364) (286,541) (514,994) (633,001)
Net interest income after provisioning 697,339 688,454 425,197 262,040
Net fee and commission income 375,512 389,173 403,814 417,388
Net trading income (19,355) 28,208 29,548 (68,1406)
Net income from derivatives and liabiliies (27,451) (15,374) 102,647 28,431
Net income from financial investments 36,585 41,660 23,075 (38,8306)
General administrative expenses (754,600) (764,077) (776,471) (728,422)
Other nef operating income (57,202) (90,311) (224,565) (351,620)
Net income from disposal of group assets (10,675) (234) 1,186 (32)
Profit/loss before tax 240,153 277,500 (15,568) (479,204)
Income taxes (67,337) (79,474) (96,245) (242,905)
Profit/loss after tax 172,817 198,026 (111,813) (722,109)
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests (12,138) (14,640) (7,121) 4,240
Consolidated profit/loss 160,679 183,386 (118,934) (717,869)
in € thousand Q1/2013 Q2/2013 Q3/2013 Q4/2013
Net interest income 864,737 Q71,526 940,159 952,517
Net provisioning for impairment losses (219,722) (249,291) (330,490) (349,711)
Net interest income after provisioning 645,015 722,234 609,669 602,806
Net fee and commission income 374,609 410,770 417,202 423,587
Net trading income 80,338 60,115 99,829 80,788
Net income from derivatives and liabilities (121,062) (66,398) (55,639) (13,563)
Net income from financial investments 87,272 (23,268) 9,154 (15,4106)
General administrative expenses (787,928) (828,941) (812,848) (209,789)
Other nef operating income (20,903) (58,331) (38,1406) (30,035)
Net income from disposal of group assets (6,487) 19 6 (3)
Profit/loss before tax 250,854 216,201 229,227 138,375
Income taxes (76,883) (78,839) (79,938 3,949
Profit/loss after tax 173,971 137,362 149,289 142,324
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests (17,267) (17,4206) (14,871) 3,953
Consolidated profit/loss 156,704 119,936 134,418 146,277
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Statement of financial position

Q5

Assets
in € thousand Notes 2014 2013 Change
Cash reserve [14, 35] 6,768,685 6,674,226 1.4%
Loans and advances to banks [15, 35, 52] 15,573,241 22,243,221 (30.0)%
Loans and advances to customers [16, 35, 52] 77,925,416 80,634,618 (3.4)%
Impairment losses on loans and advances [17,35] (6,069,233) (5,605,475) 8.3%
Trading assefs [18, 35, 52] 7,916,624 7,581,097 4.4%
Derivatives [19, 35, 52] 1,643,201 982,052 67.3%
Financial investments [20, 35, 52] 14,467,887 13,482,703 7.3%
Investments in associates [21, 35, 52] 0 5,035
Intangible fixed assets [22, 24, 35] 759,252 1,248,709 (39.2)%
Tangible fixed assets [23, 24, 35] 1,407,714 1,594,558 (11.7)%
Other assets (25,35, 52] 1.231,096 1.799,069 (31.6)%
Total assets 121,623,883 130,639,813 (6.9)%
Equity and liabilities
in € thousand Notes 2014 2013 Change
Deposits from banks [26, 35, 52] 22,408,371 30,104,866 (25.6)%
Deposits from customers [27,35, 52] 66,094,172 66,436,636 (0.5)%
Debt securities issued [28, 35, 52] 10,593,069 11,532,646 (8.1)%
Provisions for liabilities and charges [29, 35, 52] 968,913 733,116 32.2%
Trading liabilities [30, 35, 52] 6,877,407 5,203,894 32.2%
Derivatives [31, 35, 52] 778,205 384,408 102.4%
Other liabilities [32, 35, 52] 1,416,803 1,752,861 (19.2)%
Subordinated capital [33, 35, 52] 4,185,108 4,127,589 1.4%
Equity (34, 35] 8,301,835 10,363,798 (19.9)%
Consolidated equity 8,300,012 9,321,638 (11.0)%
Consolidated profit/loss (492,738) 557,336 -
Non-controlling interests 494 561 484,824 2.0%
Total equity and liabilities 121,623,883 130,639,813 (6.9)%
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Statement of changes in equity

Subscribed  Participation capital/ Capital Retained  Consolidated  Non-controlling

in € thousand capital Participation rights reserves earnings profit/loss interests Total
Equity as at 1/1/2013 594,591 2,500,000 2,574,025 3,755,442 729,692 719,143 10,872,893
Capital increases/decreases 0 0 0 0 0 9,358 9,358
Transferred to retained

earnings 0 0 0 301,603 (301,603 0 0
Dividend payments 0 0 0 0 (428,089) (56,455) (484,543)
Total comprehensive income 0 0 (0] (449,919) 557,336 29,931 137,347
Own shares/share incentive

program 0 0 1,057 0 0 0 1,057
Other changes 0 0 0 44,840 0 (217,153) (172,313)
Equity as at 31/12/2013 594,591 2,500,000 2,575,082 3,651,965 557,336 484,824 10,363,798
Capital increases/decreases 207,295 (2,500,000) 2,428,115 0 0 8,642 234,053
Transferred to retained

earnings 0 0 0 59,065 (59,005) 0 0
Dividend payments 0 0 0 0 (498,270) (41,185) (539,455)
Total comprehensive income 0 0 0 (1,273,973) (492,738) 13,058  (1,753,654)
Own shares/share incentive

program (144) 0 (4,793) 4,937 0 0 0
Other changes 0 0 (7,135) (24,993) 0 29,221 (2,907)
Equity as at 31/12/2014 891,742 0 4,991,269 2,417,002 (492,738) 494,561 8,301,835

In the current reporting year, a capital increase was carried out and participation capital was fully repaid.

As a consequence of the adaption of mapping own shares, € 4,937 thousand were reclassified fo retained eamings.

The other changes in equity are mainly due to differences between average currency rate and currency rate as at reporting date
in the course of translafing the income statement. In the previous year, other changes in equity were mainly due fo the purchase of

a 25 per cent interest in Raiffeisenbank Austria d.d., Zagreb.

Further details about the above mentioned changes are reported under note (34) Equity.
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Statement of cash flows

%

in € thousand 2014 2013

Profit/loss after tax (463,079) 602,946
Non-cash positions in profit/loss and transition to net cash from operating activities:

Write-downs/write-ups of tangible fixed assets and financial invesiments 681,632 484,022
Net provisioning for liabilities and charges and impairment losses 2,346,865 1,449,536
Gains (losses) from disposals of tangible fixed assets and financial investments (57,539) (38,015)
Profit/loss from at-equity 0] 0
Other adjustments (net) (476,113) 418,604
Subtotal 2,031,767 2,917,094
Changes in assets and liabilities arising from operating activities after corrections for non-cash positions:

Loans and advances to banks and customers 6,480,543 (422,067)
Trading assets/trading liabilities (net) 773,234 (1,638,922)
Other assets/other liabilities (net) 2,527,639 (1,073,170)
Deposits from banks and customers (5,004,994) 2,967,245

Debt securities issued (1,326,040) (1,744,247)
Net cash from operating activities 5,482,149 1,005,932

Proceeds from sale of:

Financial investments 1,375,538 1,990,337
Tangible and intangible fixed assets 110,400 64,193

Proceeds from disposal of group assets 92,786 7
Payments for purchase of:

Financial investments (5,445,145) (1,729,381)
Tangible and intangible fixed assets 415,279) (450,457)
Payments for acquisition of subsidiaries (37,800) 0

Net cash from investing activities (4,319,501) (125,302)
Capital increases 2,734,053 9,358

Payment ot participation capital (2,500,000) 0

Inflows/outflows of subordinated capital 84,985 102,913

Dividend payments (539,455) (484,543)
Change in non-controlling inferests 25 (160,627)
Net cash from financing activities (220,393) (532,899)
in € thousand 2014 2013

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of previous period 6,674,226 6,556,723

Cash from the acquisition of subsidiaries 1 0

Net cash from operating activities 5,482,149 1,005,932

Net cash from investing activities (4,319,501) (125,302)
Net cash from financing activities (220,393) (532,899)
Effect of exchange rafe changes (847,798) (230,228)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of period 6,768,685 6,674,226

Payments for taxes, interest and dividends 2014 2013

Interest received 5,280,738 6,443,169

Dividends received 19,052 5,292

Interest paid (1,762,365) (2,249,357)
Income taxes paid (226,492) (110,723)
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The statement of cash flows shows the structure and changes in cash and cash equivalents during the financial year and is broken
down into three sections:

" et cash from operating acfivities

" net cash from investing activities

" et cash from financing activities

Net cash from operating activities comprises inflows and outflows from loans and advances to banks and customers, from depos-
its from banks and customers as well as debt securities issued. Inflows and outflows from trading assets and liabilities, from deriva-
tives, as well as from other assets and other liabilities are also shown in operating activities. The interest, dividend and tax

payments from operating activities are separately stated.

Net cash from investing activities shows inflows and outflows from financial investments, tangible and intangible assets, proceeds
from disposal of Group assets, and payments for acquisition of subsidiaries.

Net cash from financing activities consists of inflows and outflows of equity and subordinated capital. This covers capital increas-
es, dividend payments, and changes in subordinated capital.

Cash and cash equivalents include the cash reserve recognized in the statement of financial position, which consists of cash in

hand and balances at central banks due at call. It does not include loans and advances to banks that are due on demand, which
belong fo operating activities.
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Segment reporting

Division of the segments
Segmentation principles

As a rule, internal management reporting af RBI is based on the current organizational structure. This matrix structure means that
each member of the Management Board is responsible both for individual countries and for specific business activities {country
and functional responsibility model). A cash generating unit within the Group is either a country or a business activity. Accordingly,
the RBI management bodies - Management Board and Supervisory Board - make key decisions that determine the resources
allocated to any given segment based on its financial strength and profitability, which is why these reporting criteria are an essen-
tial component in the decision-making process. Thus, the division into segments was also undertaken in accordance with IFRS 8.
The reconciliation contains mainly the amounts resulting from the elimination of intra-group results and consolidation between the
segments.

Markets in Central and Eastern Europe are thereby grouped together info regional segments in which countries with comparable
economic profiles and similar long-term economic growth expectations are bundled info the same segment. Business activities
outside the CEE region are divided according fo business area.

In order to achieve the maximum possible transparency and clear lines of reporting, seven segments were defined in compliance
with the IFRS 8 thresholds. IFRS 8 establishes a 10 per cent threshold for the key figures of operating income, profit after tax and
segment assets.

The following segments resulted thereof:
Central Europe

This segment encompasses the most advanced banking markets in the EU-countries in Central and Eastern Europe, namely the
Czech Republic, Hungary, Poland, Slovakia and Slovenia. They are also the markets in which RBI has been operating the longest.
In each of the countries, RBI is represented by a bank, leasing companies and other specialized financial institutions. In Poland, in
addition to the main activity of the credit business with corporate customers and small and medium-sized enterprises (also via
leasing and factoring), the focus is also on retail banking and on affluent customers. In Slovakia, RBI is likewise active in its busi-
ness divisions of Corporate and Retail Customers, including leasing, and in retail business with a multibrand strategy. In Slovenia,
the Group provides universal banking services and also leasing, with Group units concentrating in particular on local corporate
customers; a reduction of business volume is in progress. In the Czech Republic, RBI offers real estate leasing in addition to tradi-
tional banking services with corporate and retail customers. The focus is based on the extension of relations to firstclass regular
customers. In Hungary, the Group provides services to private and corporate customers via the Bank's tightly knit network and
also through leasing companies. In addition, RBl is represented in Slovakia and the Czech Republic with ifs direct bank ZUNO.

Southeastern Europe

The Southeastern Europe segment comprises Albania, Bosnia and Herzegovina, Bulgaria, Croatia, Kosovo, Romania and Serbia.
In these countries, RBI is represented by banks, leasing companies, as well as, in some markets, by separate capital management
and asset management companies and pension funds. In Albania and Bulgaria, financial services are offered across all business
divisions. In Kosovo, RBI also offers a comprehensive product range. In Bosnia and Herzegovina the emphasis is on small and
medium-sized enterprises, while also boasting a wide range of products for refail customers. In Croatia the focus is on large and
medium-sized corporate customers and also on retail customers (pension funds business). In Romania a broad range of financial
services is offered via its tightly knit branch network. Moreover, the Moldovan corporate customer market is also served from
Romania. In Serbia, the market is serviced by a universal bank and a leasing company.

Russia
Raiffeisenbank is one of the leading foreign banks in Russia and services both corporate and retail customers. The national branch
network also offers products tailored for affluent private individuals and small and medium-sized entifies. RBI takes a strong posi-

fion in the underwriting business. The product range in Russia is rounded off by leasing business. In view of the size of the banking
market and its high natural and industrial potential, the Russia segment is of great importance for RBI.
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CEE Other

This segment comprises Belarus, Kazakhstan and Ukraine. In Belarus, RBl is represented by a bank and a leasing company, whilst
in Kazakhstan it is represented in the leasing business. In Ukraine RBI is represented by a bank, a leasing and a card-processing
company and provides a full range of financial services and products via a tightly knit branch network.

Group Corporates

The Group Corporates segment covers business with Austrian and international - notably Western European - corporate cus-
tomers of the RBI AG, which are managed from Vienna and grouped within the Corporate Customers profit center. These custom-
ers include Austria's largest companies and multinational customers. The segment also comprises the large corporate business
with Cenfral and Eastern European customers as well multinationals with CEE-business, included in the Network Corporate Cus-
tomers & Support profit center. Corporate customer business in further countries is operated via the Singapore, China and Malay-
sia branches, which are also included in this segment. Financing companies in USA and Hong Kong, which focus on niche market
customers with selected products, are also allocated to this segment.

Group Markets

The Group Markets segment covers RBI AG's customer and proprietary business related to the capital market. Income from curren-
cy, inferest and securities frading as well as from frading in structured products for financial institutions is also allocated fo this seg-
ment, as is proprietary business. The same applies to proprietary trading and market maker activities in Vienna, and to the branches
in Singapore, China and london. This segment includes net income from customer business, sales of all banking products and
business relationships with banks, institutional customers, governments and local authorities too. Furthermore, income from Raiffeisen
Centrobank (equity trading and capital market financing) and from Kathrein Privatbank is also booked under this segment.

Corporate Center

The Corporate Center segment encompasses all of the services provided by Group head office in various divisions that serve to
implement the Group's overall strategy and that are allocated to this segment to ensure comparability. Therefore, this segment
includes the following areas: Liquidity management and balance sheet structure management as part of proprietary trading,
parficipation management, income from banking operations carried out by Group head office for refinancing Group units, the
Austrian fransaction and services business for financial services providers, as well as income from the holding and other compa-
nies outside the financial service provider business that do not fall directly under another segment.

Assessment of segment profit and loss

The segment reporting according to IFRS 8 shows the segment performance on the basis of internal management reporting,
supplemented with the reconciliation of the segment results to the consolidated financial statements. In principle, RBI “s manage-
ment reporting is based on IFRS. Therefore, no differences occur in the recognition and measurement principles between segment
reporting and consolidated financial statements.

The governance of the separate segments is based on key indicators, which are assembled of several parameters like profitability,

growth, efficiency, constraints and the business mix. The target values of the separate key indicators are determined according to
the specific market environment and adapted on demand.
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The performance of the CGUs is evaluated as follows:
* Profitability

The profitability is measured by the return on equity (ROE) and return on risk-adjusted capital (RORAC) based on the internal
management systems. The return on equity shows the profitability of a CGU and is calculated as the proportion between prof-
it/loss after deduction of non-controlling interests and the average consolidated capital employed. The return on equity reflects
the yield of the capital of each segment. The calculation of the RORAC indicates the risk adjusted capital, which reflects the
demand of own funds and which has to be brought forward in case of unexpected losses by the bank. In RBI this capital re-
quirement is calculated within the economic capital model for credit, market and operational risk. That ratio shows the interest
of the risk-adjusted equity (economic capital], which is no indicator according to IFRS. Within the different countries and busi-
ness lines the real earned RORAC will be compared with the predetermined minimal value for the RORAC (Hurdle), which re-
flects the market adequate yield expectations.

= Efficiency

The cost/income ratio represents the cost efficiency of the segment. The cost/income ratio shows the proportion of the admin-
istrative expenses and the operating income, meaning the sum of net interest income, net fee and commission income, nef trad-
ing income and the other net operating income (less bank levies, impairment of goodwill and any one-off effects from sundry
operating expenses).

= Constraints

In accordance with Basel lll framework, specific determining factors have to be considered. The proportion of common equity
fier 1 capital to total capital requirement (common equity tier 1 rafio) is an important indicator if the capital underlying for the
business volume is adequate. The industry sector specifics are tending to different risk weights within the calculation of risk-
weighted assets according to CRR. These factors are crucial for the calculation of the regulatory minimum own funds require-
ments. Moreover the efficient use of the available capital is calculated internally, whereby the actual usage is brought in pro-
portion fo the theoretical available risk coverage capital. The longterm liquidity ratios are additionally restrictive and they are
defined in accordance with the regulatory guidelines.

= Business Mix

The following key performance indicators are relevant for a reasonable and effective business structure, whereby the composi-
tion of the results and the indicators are significant. The structure of the prime funding basis for loans and advances to custom-
ers are measured using the loan/deposit ratio which is the proportion of loans and advances to customer to deposits from
customers (each less claims and obligations from (reverse| repurchase agreements and securities lending). The share of the re-
sult derived from the core business is relevant as well. The net inferest margin is calculated on average interestbearing assets.
The proportion of the net fee and commission income to the operating income is also a key performance indicator, which is in-
cluded in the target sefting for the business mix.

The presentation of segment performance is based on the income statement and geared to the reporting structure internally used.
Income and expenses are attributed to the country and/or business division in which they are generated. Operating income
positions are the net interest income, nef fee and commission income, net frading income and the other net operating income. The
other results include the net income from financial investments, the net income from derivatives (hedging) and liabilities, the net
income from disposal of group assets, the bank levies, the impairment of goodwill and charges resulting from the Settlement Act in
Hungary are shown in sundry operatfing expenses. The segment result is shown up until the profit/loss after deduction of non-
confrolling inferests. The segment assefs are represented by the total assefs and the risk-weighted assets. The item liabilities in-
cludes all positions of the liabilities side except the equity. The reconciliation implies mainly the amounts resulting from the elimino-
fion of infra-group results and consolidation between the segments. Finally, financial ratios - usual in the line of business - are
added to evaluate the results. The values shown in the segment reporting are retrieved from the IFRS individual financial statements
which are also used for the compilation of the consolidated financial statements. In some units profit center results are taken from
the infernal management income statement.
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Financial year 2014 Southeastern Group
in € thousand Central Europe Europe Russia CEE Other Corporates
Net interest income 1,021,540 835,356 834,581 385,818 468,780
Net fee and commission income 530,956 358,312 304,225 193,933 139,840
Net frading income 20,247 56,429 (64,976) (1171,664) 5,901

Sundry net operating income (53,430) 33,210 7,685 (16,451) 260
Operating income 1,519,314 1,283,306 1,081,515 451,637 614,780
General administrative expenses (987,326) (688,577) (476,726) (296,068) (180,073)
Operating result 531,987 594,729 604,789 155,569 434,707
Net provisioning for impairment losses (271,657) (254,145) (152,014) (542,104) (490,373)
Other resulfs (325911 7885 (16,800] 133,089 (4551)
Profit/loss before fax (65,581) 348,468 435,975 (253,446) 160,217)
[T————— (92,244) (52,435 95.750) 27,424 (87,240)
Profit/loss after tax (157,824) 296,033 340,225 (226,022) (147,457)
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests (43,448) (286) 7,468 4,887 (42)
Profit/loss after deduction of non-controlling interests (201,273) 295,747 347,693 (221,135) (147,499)
Risk-weighted assets (credit risk) 19,453,796 11,375,394 7,098,362 3,931,705 11,695,844
Risk-weighted assets (total RWA) 22,777,146 13,678,792 8,372,166 4,626,131 12,635,682

Total capital requirement 1,822,172 1,094,303 669,773 370,091 1,010,855

Assets 40,771,491 21,370,657 12,457,056 4,043,397 18,617,542

liabilities 37,107,869 18,368,424 11,051,594 3,492,229 16,712,477
Net interest margin (average interest-bearing assefs) 277% 4.27% 5.92% 8.92% 2.31%
NPL ratio 10.3% 13.2% 5.9% 33.7% 10.5%
NPL coverage ratio 68.0% 66.5% 70.5% 87.0% 53.5%
Cost/income ratio 65.0% 53.7% 441% 65.6% 29.3%
Provisioning ratio (average loans and advances to

customers) 0.94% 1.85% 1.52% 13.46% 2.42%
Average equity 3,344,516 2,090,063 1,514,759 762,640 1,887,121

Return on equity before tax - 16.7% 28.8% - -

Business outlets 784 1,087 212 769 8

As of fourth quarter 2014, disclosure of investments in cash generating units was changed. On the one hand goodwill and im-
pairment of goodwill is assigned to the segment in which the investment is recognized, on the other hand, changes in carrying
amount of investments in subsidiaries are eliminated in order fo represent the Group relevant effects in the respective segment. Til
that time they were shown under reconciliation. The previous year figures were adequately adapted.

Significant changes in profit/loss are described below:

In Central Europe, a decrease of € 131,858 thousand resulted in a loss before tax of € 65,581 thousand. This was primarily
due fo higher losses caused by a one-off effect (Sefflement Act] in Hungary. This contrasted with an improvement in net income in
Poland, the Czech Republic and Slovakia and a lower loss in Slovenia.

Profit before tax in the Southeastern Europe segment increased 26 per cent, or € 71,381 thousand, to € 348,468 thousand
year-on-year. The increase was primarily due to lower net provisioning for impairment losses in Bulgaria, Romania, and Serbia.

The Russia segment continued to make the largest regional contribution to net income with a profit before tax of € 435,975
thousand, despite being down € 178,804 thousand year-on-year. The decline was the result of a € 103,921 thousand increase
in net provisioning for impairment losses and a € 220,705 thousand lower net frading income caused by currency effects, com-
pensated by a € 112,098 thousand improvement in interest income.

In the CEE Other segment, geopolitical tensions in Ukraine led to higher net provisioning for impairment losses. In the reporting
year a loss before tax of € 253,446 thousand was posted after a profit before tax of € 216,648 thousand in the previous year.
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Financial year 2014

in € thousand Group Markets  Corporate Center Reconciliation Total
Net interest income 136,139 1,052,511 (945,795) 3,788,930
Net fee and commission income 109,669 (8,945) (42,102) 1,585,888
Net trading income 96,036 (54,492) 22,775 (29,744)
Sundry net operating income 24,955 135,754 (121,747) 10,237
Operating income 366,799 1,124,827 (1,086,868) 5,355,310
General administrative expenses (243,975) (271,011) 120,186 (3,023,570)
Operating result 122,825 853,816 (966,682) 2,331,740
Net provisioning for impairment losses 1,176 (9,713) 2,930 (1,715,900)
Other results (13.491) (336,654) (36,524 (592,958
Profit/loss before tax 110,510 507,449 (1,000,276) 22,882
Income taxes (12,965) (172,752) 0 (485,961)
Profit/loss after tax 97,546 334,697 (1,000,276) (463,079)
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests (3) (2,056) 3,820 (29,659)
Profit/loss after deduction of non-controlling interests 97,543 332,641 (996,456) (492,738)
Risk-weighted assets (credit risk) 3,102,292 16,593,453 (16,203,071) 57,047,775
Risk-weighted assets (total RWA) 3,937,155 18,737,631 (16,043,579) 68,721,124
Total capital requirement 314,972 1,499,010 (1,283,4806) 5,497,690
Assets 17,634,653 31,094,991 (24,365,903 121,623,883
Liabilifies 18,094,349 22,450,160 (13,955,054) 113,322,048
Net interest margin (average interest-bearing assets) 0.98% - - 3.24%
NPL ratio 5.5% - - 11.3%
NPL coverage ratio 76.1% - - 67.4%
Cost/income ratio 66.5% 24.09% - 56.5%
Provisioning ratio (average loans and advances to customers) (0.04)% - - 2.13%
Average equity 655,283 2,662,852 (2,027,425) 10,889,808
Return on equity before tax 16.9% 19.1% - 0.2%
Business outlets 5 1 = 2,866

In the Group Corporates segment, a € 173,761 thousand decrease from the previous year resulted in a loss before tax of
€ 60,217 thousand. This was primarily attributable to the higher need for loan loss provisions in relation to loans to large corpo-
rate customers in Asia.

The Group Markets segment’s profit before taxes fell 12 per cent, or € 14,776 thousand, to € 110,510 thousand year-on-year,
mainly due to the negative valuation result from securities and derivative financial instruments attributable to the interest rate devel-
opment.

The Corporate Center segment’s profit before tax increased € 445,517 thousand to € 507,449 thousand from € 61,932 thou-
sand in in the prior year's period. This was mainly due fo higher net inferest and dividend income, lower general administrative

expenses and a higher nef income from liabilities designated af fair value. By contrast, Group units reported goodwill impairments
of € 305,663 thousand, € 148,482 thousand thereof in Russia, € 101,354 thousand in Poland, and € 50,726 thousand in Albo-

nia.

Reconciliation comprises consolidation adjusiments to reconcile segments with Group results. The financials of the reportable
segments are shown affer elimination of intra-segment items. However, the inter-segment items are eliminated in reconciliation. The
main eliminations are dividend payments fo head office and inter-segment revenues charged and expenses carried by the head
office.
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Financial year 2013 Southeastern Group
in € thousand Central Europe Europe Russia CEE Other Corporates
Net interest income 1,067,800 861,626 722,483 422,130 478,246
Net fee and commission income 546,169 348,047 308,458 210,208 159,366
Net frading income 28,304 52,877 155,728 11,724 (16,345)
Sundry net operating income 14,482 22,409 (333) (5,937) 350
Operating income 1,656,754 1,284,959 1,186,336 638,124 621,616
General administrative expenses (1,098,363) (698,235) (552,475) (357,619) (190,937)
Operating result 558,392 586,724 633,861 280,506 430,679
Net provisioning for impairment losses (403,173) (325,8506) (48,093) (107,605) (257,999)
Other results (89,941) 16,341 29,012 43,972 1,082

Profit/loss before tax 65,278 277,209 614,779 216,873 173,761

[T————— (58.268) (29.172) (146,061) (47,017) (35731)
Profit/loss after tax 7,009 248,037 468,718 169,856 138,030
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests (28,075) (5071) (1,600) (11,882) (119)
Profit/loss after deduction of non-controlling

interests (21,065) 247,536 467,118 157,974 137,912

Risk-weighted assets [credit risk| 20,931,754 12,471,469 9,239,444 5,041,647 12,935,643

Risk-weighted assets (total RWA) 24,400,322 15,097,090 11,535,903 6,175,326 13,845,713

Total capital requirement 1,952,026 1,207,767 922,872 494,026 1,107,657
Assets 38,420,813 21,159,716 15,554,626 5,809,218 20,812,276
Liabilities 34,777,889 18,163,455 13,194,456 4,657,409 13,556,708

Net interest margin (average inferestbearing assets) 2.92% 4.37% 4.80% 7.60% 2.34%
NPL ratio 12.2% 13.9% 4.8% 24.4% 6.7%
NPL coverage ratio 64.3% 62.9% 77.8% 72.2% 47.0%

Cost/income ratio 66.3% 54.3% 46.6% 56.0% 30.7%
Provisioning ratio (average loans and advances to

customers) 1.37% 2.28% 0.48% 2.29% 1.27%
Average equity 3,233,249 2,018,441 1,590,186 831,210 1,802,980
Return on equity before tax 2.0% 13.7% 38.7% 26.1% 9.6%
Business outlets 802 1,115 195 899 Q
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Financial year 2013 Corporate

in € thousand Group Markets Center Reconciliation Total
Net interest income 148,435 664,857 (636,638) 3,728,939
Net fee and commission income 121,059 (39,937) (27,201) 1,626,167
Net trading income 83,768 9,585 (4,570) 321,071

Sundry net operating income 22,041 139,443 (139,851) 52,604
Operating income 375,303 773,948 (808,260) 5,728,780
General administrative expenses (252,695) (329,096) 139915 (3,339,500)
Operating result 122,608 444,851 (668,345) 2,389,275

Net provisioning for impairment losses (15,418) 5,626 3,304 (1,149,215)
Other results! 18,096 (388,545 (35.419) (405,402
Profit/loss before tax 125,286 61,932 (700,461) 834,657
[e——— (23,120) 108,180 (522) (231711
Profit/loss after tax 102,165 170,112 (700,983) 602,946
Profit attributable to non-controlling interests (3) (11,307) 7,876 (45,611)
Profit/loss after deduction of non-controlling interests 102,163 158,805 (693,107) 557,336
Risk-weighted assets (credit risk) 3,920,473 15,630,928 (14,837,194) 65,334,163

Risk-weighted assets (total RWA) 5,613,634 16,670,488 (13,441,951) 79,896,525

Total capital requirement 449,091 1,333,639 (1,075,3506) 6,391,722

Assets 20,271,054 34,716,289 [26,104,179) 130,639,813

Liabilifies 18,687,417 20,687,473 (12,448793) 120,276,015

Net interest margin (average interest-bearing assets) 0.74% - - 3.11%

NPL ratio 7.5% - - 10.7%

NPL coverage ratio 90.9% - - 63.1%

Cost/income ratio 67.3% 50.20% - 58.3%

Provisioning ratio (average loans and advances to customers) 0.47% - - 1.39%

Average equity 662,071 2,286,752 (1,754,291) 10,670,599

Return on equity before tax 18.9% - - 7.8%
Business outlets 4 1 = 3,025

1 Adaption of previous year figures due to different allocation.
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Notes

Principles underlying the preparation of financial statements
Reporting entity

Raiffeisen Bank International AG (RBI AG) is registered af the Vienna Commercial Court (Handelsgericht Wien) under Companies
Register number FN 122.119m. The company is domiciled at Am Stadtpark 9, 1030 Vienna. The consolidated financial state-
ments are lodged in the Companies Register in accordance with Austrian disclosure regulations and published in the official
register of the Wiener Zeitung. Raiffeisen-Landesbanken-Holding GmbH indirectly holds the majority stake in Raiffeisen Bank
International AG and therefore RBI is included in the consolidated financial statements of Raiffeisen-landesbanken-Holding
GmbH. Raiffeisen Zentralbank Osterreich Aktiengesellschaft, Vienna, is the superordinated credit institution and RBI forms part of
this credit insfitution group.

Raiffeisen Bank International (RBI) is a universal bank focusing on corporate and retail customers in Central and Easfern Europe
(CEE) and exclusively on corporate customers in Austria. In CEE, RBI consists of a closely-knit network of banks, leasing compa-
nies and numerous specialized financial service providers with 2,866 business outlets. In Austria, RBI concentrates on the top
1,000 corporate customers and is one of Ausfria's most prominent corporate finance and export and frade finance banks. Cash
and asset management, freasury operations and investment banking are further fields of activity. RBI's focus as a highly special-
ized financial engineer is on serving Austrian and foreign key accounts, multinationals and providers of financial services. RBI has
branches, subsidiaries and representative offices in the world's major financial centers and in Asia, which have selective business
with corporate customers and financial institutions.

The consolidated financial statements were signed by the Management Board on March 9, 2015 and subsequently submitted to
the Supervisory Board for review and notice.

Principles underlying the consolidated fianancial statements

The consolidated financial statements for the 2014 financial year and the comparative figures for the 2013 financial year were
prepared in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) published by the Infernational Accounting
Standards Board (IASB) insofar as they were adopted by the EU on the basis of IAS Regulation (EC) 1606,/2002. The inferpreta-
tions of the International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee ({IFRIC/SIC] that were already applicable have been
considered. All standards published by the IASB as International Accounting Standards and adopted by the EU have been ap-
plied to financial statements for 2014. The consolidated financial statements also satisfy the requirements of Section 245a of the
Austrian Commercial Code (UGB) and Section 59a of the Austrian Banking Act (BWG) regarding exempting consolidated
financial statements that comply with internationally accepted accounting principles. IAS 20, IAS 31, IAS 41 and IFRS 6 have not
been applied as there were no relevant business transactions in the Group.

The consolidated financial statements are based on the reporting packages of all fully consolidated Group members, which are
prepared according to IFRS rules and uniform Group standards. All fully consolidated companies prepare their annual financial
statements as of and for the year ended December 31. Figures in these financial statements are stated in € thousand. The follow-
ing fables may include rounding differences.

The consolidated financial statements are based on the going concern principle. A financial asset is recognized when it is proba-
ble that the future economic benefits will flow to the company and the acquisition or conversion costs or another value can be
reliably measured. A financial liability is recognized when it is probable that an oufflow of resources embodying economic bene-
fits will result from the seflement of the obligation and the amount at which the seftlement will take place can be measured reliably.
Revenue is recognized if the conditions of IAS 18 are met and if it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the Group
and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably.

Foreign currency translation

The consolidated financial statements of RBI are prepared in Euro which is the functional currency of RBI AG. The functional cur-
rency is the currency of the principal economic environment in which the company operates. Each entity within the Group deter-
mines its own functional currency taking all factors listed in IAS 21 into account.

All financial statements of fully consolidated companies prepared in another functional currency than Euro were translated into the
reporfing currency Euro in accordance with IAS 21. Equity was franslated at its historical exchange rates while all other assets,
liabilities and the notes were translated at the prevailing foreign exchange rates as of the reporting date. Differences arising from the
translation of equity (historical exchange rates| are offset against refained earnings.

Raiffeisen Bank International | Annual Report 2014



The income statement items were franslated at the average exchange rates during the year calculated on the basis of month-end
rates. Differences arising between the exchange rate as of the reporting date and the average exchange rate applied in the
income statement are offset against equity (retained earmings). In cases of significantly fluctuating currency rates, the transaction

rate is applied instead of the average rate according fo IAS 21.

Accumulated exchange differences are reclassified from other comprehensive income to income statement under net income from
disposal of group assets, in the event of disposal of a foreign business operation which leads to loss of control, joint management

or significant influence over this business operation.

In the case of four subsidiaries not headquartered in the euro-area, the US-Dollar was the reporting currency for measurement
purposes given the economic substance of the underlying transactions, as both the transactions and the refinancing were under-
taken in US-Dollars. In the case of two subsidiaries headquartered in Europe, the Russian rouble was the reporting currency for
measurement purposes given the economic substance of the underlying transactions.

The following exchange rates were used for currency translation:

2014 2013

As at Average As at Average
Rates in units per € 31/12 1/1-31/12 31/12 1/1 -31/12
Albanian lek (ALL) 140.140 139.932 140.200 140.229
Belarusian rouble (BYR) 14,380.000 13,612.308 13,080.000 11,830.000
Bosnian marka (BAM) 1.956 1.956 1.956 1.956
Bulgarian lev (BGN) 1.956 1.956 1.956 1.956
Croatian kuna (HRK) 7.658 7.634 7.627 7.577
Czech koruna (CZK) 27.735 27.542 27.427 25.960
Hungarian forint (HUF) 315.540 308.987 297.040 297.500
Kazakh tenge (KZT) 221.970 235.872 211.170 202.477
Malaysian Ringgit (MYR) 4.247 4.348 4.522 4.208
Polish zloty (PLN]) 4.273 4191 4.154 4.203
Romanian leu (RON) 4.483 4.441 4.471 4417
Russian rouble (RUB) 72337 51.424 45325 42.444
Serbian dinar [RSD) 120.958 117157 114.642 113.127
Singapore dollar (SGD) 1.606 1.682 1.741 1.663
Turkish lira (TRY) 2.832 2.899 2.961 2.551
Ukrainian hryvnia (UAH) 19.233 15.638 11.042 10.634
US-Dollar (USD) 1.214 1.326 1.379 1.330

Accounting in hyperinflationary economies - IAS 29

Since 1 January 2011, Belarus has been classified in accordance with IAS 29 (Financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies)
as a highly inflationary economy. Thus, the local activities of RBI are no longer recognized on the basis of historical acquisition and
production costs, but have been adjusted for the effects of inflation. For this purpose the local inflation index has been used.

The application of the relevant provisions in IAS 29 in connection with IFRIC 7 {Applying the restatement approach under IAS 29
Financial reporting in hyperinflationary economies) impacts the financial statements as at 31 December 2014, as well as the

financial statements of subsequent periods.

The average inflation rate in Belarus was 16.2 per cent in the reporting period (2013: 16.5 per cent).

The individual financial statements of subsidiaries in Belarus are adjusted before translation into the Group currency and before
consolidation, so that all assets and liabilties are stated with the same level of purchasing power. Amounts in the statement of
financial position which are not stated in the valid measuring unit as of the reporting date, are adjusted according to a general
price index. All non-monetary items in the statement of financial position carried at cost of acquisition or cost of acquisition less
depreciation are adjusted by changes in the index between the transaction date and the reporting date. Monetary items are not
adjusted. All components of equity are adjusted at the time of inflow according to a general price index. The gain or loss on the
neft monetary position is shown in the income statement under item net trading income, subitem currency-based transactions.
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Critical accounting judgments and key sources of estimation uncertainty

If estimates or assessments are necessary for accounting and measuring under IAS/IFRS rules, they are made in accordance with
the respective standards. They are based on past experience and other factors such as planning and expectations or forecasts of
future events that appear likely from the current perspective. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongo-
ing basis. Alterations to estimates that affect only one period will be taken into account only in that period. If the following report-
ing periods are also affected, the alterations will be taken into consideration in the current and following periods. The crifical
accounting judgments and key sources of esfimation uncertainty are as follows:

Risk provisions for loans and advances

At each reporting date, all financial assets, not measured at fair value through profit or loss, are subject to an impairment test to
defermine whether an impairment loss is fo be recognized through profit or loss. In particular, it is required to defermine whether
there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of a loss event occurring after initial recognition and to estimate the amount
and timing of future cash flows when defermining an impairment loss. Risk provisions are described in defail in note (44) Risks
arising from financial instruments, in the section on credit risk.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the price received for the sale of an asset or paid fo transfer a liability in an orderly fransaction between market
parficipants at the measurement date. This applies regardless of whether the price can be directly observed or has been estimat-
ed on the basis of a measurement method. In determining the fair value of an asset or liability, the Group takes account of certain
features of the asset or liability (e.g. condifion and location of the asset or restrictions in the sale and use of an asset) if market
parficipants would also take account of such features in determining the price for the acquisition of the respective asset or for the
transfer of the liability af the measurement date. Where the market for a financial instrument is not active, fair value is established
using a valuation technique or pricing model. For valuation methods and models, estimates are generally used depending on the
complexity of the instrument and the availability of market-based data. The inputs to these models are derived from observable
market data where possible. Under certain circumstances, valuation adjustments are necessary in order to account for model risk,
liquidity risk or credit risk. The valuation models are described in the notes in the section on financial instruments - Recognition and
measurement. In addition, the fair values of financial instruments are shown in note (42) Fair value of financial instruments.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available against
which those unused tax losses, unused tax credits or deductible temporary differences can be utilized. This assessment requires
significant management judgments and assumptions. In determining the amount of deferred tax assets, the management uses
historical tax capacity and profitability information and, if relevant, forecasted operating results based upon approved business
plans, including a review of the eligible carryforward period.

Deferred taxes are not reported separately in the income statement and statement of financial position. Details are provided in the
statement of comprehensive income and in notes (1 1) Income taxes, {25) Other assets, and (29) Provisions for liabilities and
charges.

Provisions for pensions and similar obligations

The cost of the defined benefit pension plan is determined using an actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation involves making
assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on assets, future salary increases, mortality rates and future pension
increases. The inferest rate used fo discount the Group's defined benefit obligations is determined on the basis of the yields ob-
tained in the market af the balance sheet date for top-rated fixed-income corporate bonds. Considerable discretion has to be
exercised in this connection in sefting the criteria for the selection of the corporate bonds representing the universe from which the
yield curve is derived. The main criteria for the selection of such corporate bonds are the issuance volumes of the bonds, the
quality of the bonds and the identification of outliers, which are not taken into account. Mercer’s recommendation is used to
defermine the interest rate. Assumptions and estimates used for the defined benefit obligation calculations are described in the
section on pension obligations and other termination benefits. Quantitative data for long term employee provisions are disclosed
in note (29) Provisions for liabilities and charges.
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Impairment of non-financial assets

Certain nonfinancial assets, including goodwill and other intangible assets, are subject to an annual impairment review. Goodwill
and other intangible assets are fested more frequently if events or changes in circumstances, such as an adverse change in busi-
ness climate, indicate that these assets may be impaired. The defermination of the recoverable amount requires judgments and
assumptions to be made by management. Because these estimates and assumptions could result in significant differences to the
amounts reported if underlying circumstances were fo change, the Group considers these estimates to be critical. Details concern-
ing the impairment review of non-financial assefs are disclosed in the section on business combinations. Additionally, the carrying

amounts of goodwill are presented in note (22] intangible assets.

Notes to the income statement

(1) Income statement according to measurement categories

in € thousand 2014 2013
Net gains (losses) on financial assets and liabilities held-for-trading 326,186 276,555
Financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 305,518 402,012
Interest income 232,940 354,812
Net gains (losses) on financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss 72,578 47,200
Financial assets available-for-sale (10,813) 41,806
Interest income 20,256 12,854
Net realized gains (losses) on financial assets available-for-sale 6,873 51,038
Impairment on financial assets available-for-sale (37,942) (22,0806)
Loans and advances 3,061,147 3,980,369
Interest income 4,777,047 5,129,584
Net realized gains (losses) on financial assets not measured at fair value through profit and loss 67,953 14,127
Impairment on financial assets not measured at fair value through profit and loss (1,783,853) (1,163,343)
Financial assets held-to-maturity 167,090 186,686
Interest income 162,942 183,803
Net realized gains (losses) on financial assets not measured at fair value through profit and loss 4,156 2,562
Write-ups/impairment on financial assets not measured at fair value through profit and loss (8) 321
Financial liabilities (1,823,390) (2,355,251)
Interest expenses (1,826,657) (2,354,913)
Income from repurchase of liabilities 3,267 (338)
Derivatives (hedging) 134,323 69,918
Net interest income 109,116 73,111
Net gains (losses) from hedge accounting 25,207 (3,193)
Net revaluations from exchange differences 33,960 99,658
Other operating income/expenses (2,171,141) (1,867,096)
Profit/loss before tax from continuing operations 22,882 834,657
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(2) Net interest income

The net interest income position includes interest income and expenses from items of banking business, dividend income, and fees

and commissions with interest-like characteristics.

in € thousand 2014 2013
Interest and interest-like income, total 5,615,587 6,083,730
Interest income 5,566,419 6,047,891
from balances at central banks 38,992 38,364
from loans and advances to banks 204,055 244,302
from loans and advances to customers 4,325,780 4,632,765
from financial investments 394,608 537,367
from leasing claims 180,583 192,416
from derivative financial instruments - economic hedge 313,285 329,566
from derivative financial instruments - hedge accounting 109,116 73,111
Current income 21,530 14,102
from shares and other variable-yield securities 1,274 1,248
from shares in affiliated companies 17,077 8,860
from other interests 3,179 3,094
Interestlike income 27,638 21,737
Current income from associates 0 122
Interest expenses and interest-like expenses, total (1,826,657) (2,354,913)
Interest expenses (1,784,422) (2,292,201)
on deposits from central banks (69,089) (2,815)
on deposits from banks (278,612) (416,496)
on deposits from customers (976,437) (1,308,750)
on debt securities issued (252,060) (369,226)
on subordinated capital (208,224) (194,914)
Interest-like expenses (42,234) (62,712)
Net interest income 3,788,930 3,728,939

Interest income includes interest income (unwinding] from impaired loans to customers and banks in the amount of

€ 204,653 thousand (2013: € 201,511 thousand). Interest income from impaired loans and advances to customers and banks
is recognized with the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of measuring impairment loss. The
net interest income resulting from the insurance business recognized according to IFRS 4 amounted to € 25,903 thousand

(2013: € 5,237 thousand).

(3) Net provisioning for impairment losses

Net provisioning for impairment losses on items reported on and off the statement of financial position is as follows:

in € thousand 2014 2013
Individual loan loss provisions (1,829,288) (1,215,173)
Allocation to provisions for impairment losses (2,329,833) (1,892,013)
Release of provisions for impairment losses 559,157 739,935
Direct write-downs (125,120) (140,957)
Income received on written-down claims 66,509 77,863
Portfolio-based loan loss provisions 45,434 51,830
Allocation to provisions for impairment losses (271,338) (319,217)
Release of provisions for impairment losses 316,772 371,047
Gains from loan termination or sale 67,953 14,127
Total (1,715,900) (1,149,215)

Details on risk provisions are shown under note (17) Impairment losses on loans and advances.
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(4) Net fee and commission income

in € thousand 2014 2013
Payment transfer business 711,871 731,402
Loan and guarantee business 209,884 249,662
Securities business 127,242 148,136
Foreign currency, notes/coins, and precious metals business 392,811 354,377
Management of investment and pension funds 38,328 26,887
Sale of own and third party products 49,424 42,136
Credit derivatives business 0 (69)
Other banking services 56,328 73,637
Total 1,585,888 1,626,167

(5) Net trading income

The position net trading income includes interest and dividend income, refinancing costs, commissions and any changes in fair
value of trading portfolios.

in € thousand 2014 2013
Interest-based transactions 15,093 35,334
Currency-based transactions (50,857) 261,739
Equity-/index-based fransactions 48,580 29,419
Credit derivatives business (635) (6,375)
Other transactions (41,925) 953
Total (29,744) 321,071

A change of default probability for the counterparty risk led to a net result of minus € 9,620 thousand in income from interest-
based transactions (2013: net result of minus € 8,960 thousand).

Currency-based transactions mainly contained valuation losses from deriviative financial instruments and open currency positions
due fo currency devaluations in Russia and Ukraine. Moreover, it included an effect due to the application of hyperinflation in
Belarus amounting to minus € 29,139 thousand {201 3: minus € 22,024 thousand).

(6) Net income from derivatives and liabilities

in € thousand 2014 2013
Net income from hedge accounting 25,207 (3,193)
Net income from credit derivatives 386 125
Net income from other derivatives 76,220 (274,549)
Net income from liabilities designated af fair value (16,827) 21,293
Income from repurchase of liabilities 3,267 (338)
Total 88,253 (256,662)

Net income from hedge accounting includes on the one hand, a valuation result from derivatives in fair value hedges of plus
€ 399,401 thousand (2013: minus € 129,138 thousand|] and on the other hand, changes in the carrying amount of the fair value
hedged items of minus € 374,195 thousand [2013: plus € 125,946 thousand).

Net income from other derivatives includes valuation results from those derivatives, which are held to hedge against market risks
(except trading assets/liabilities). They are based on a non-homogeneous portfolio and do not satisfy the requirements for hedge
accounting according to IAS 39.

Net income from liabilities designated at fair value comprises a profit from changes in own credit risk amounting to € 166,210

thousand (2013: loss of € 125,528 thousand| and a negative effect from changes in market interest rates totalling € 183,037
thousand (2013: positive effect of € 146,821 thousand).
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(7) Net income from financial investments

The position net income from financial investments comprises valuation results and net proceeds from securities of the financial
investment portfolio (held-fo-maturity), from securities at fair value through profit and loss, and equity parficipations which include

shares in affiliated companies and other companies.

in € thousand 2014 2013
Net income from securities held-to-maturity 4,148 2,883
Net valuations of securities (8) 321
Net proceeds from sales of securities 4,156 2,562
Net income from equity participations (32,790) 28,941
Net valuations of equity participations (37,711) (22,08¢)
Net proceeds from sales of equity participations 4,921 51,027
Net income from securities at fair value through profit and loss 89,405 25,908
Net valuations of securities 37,716 7011
Net proceeds from sales of securities 51,689 18,897
Net income from available-for-sale securities 1,721 11
Total 62,485 57,743

Net proceeds from sales of securities held+to-maturity resulted exclusively from sales of bonds which are shortly before maturity.

(8) General administrative expenses

in € thousand 2014 2013
Staff expenses (1,449,627) (1,631,667)
Wages and salaries (1,097,245) (1,243,347)
Social security costs and staff-related taxes (270,438) (302,054)
Other voluntary social expenses (40,056) (41,515)
Expenses for defined contribution pension plans (10,9306) (10,719)
Expenses/income for defined benefit pension plans 3,085 (576)
Expenses for other post-employment benefits (8,746) (9,465)
Expenses for other long-term employee benefits (5,445) (3,529)
Termination benefits (1,961) (2,140)
Expenses on share incentive program (SIP) (927) (1,057)
Deferred bonus payments according to Section 39b BWG (16,958) (17,264)
Other administrative expenses (1,192,813) (1,276,926)
Office space expenses (312,203) (347,045)
IT expenses (253,551) (268,644)
Communication expenses (75,012) (81,276)
Legal, advisory and consulting expenses (105,253) (108,555)
Advertising, PR and promotional expenses (109,285) (121,134)
Deposit insurance fees (104,465) (95,762)
Office supplies (33,511) (34,016)
Car expenses (19,682) (22,195)
Security expenses (49,673) (44,584)
Traveling expenses (18,192) (24,163)
Training expenses for staff (17,546) (19,738)
Sundry administrative expenses (94,440) (109,814)
Depreciation of tangible and intangible fixed assets (381,130) (430,912)
Tangible fixed assets (173,277) (177,923)
Intangible fixed assets (178,418) (219,365)
Lleased assets (operating lease) (29,441) (33,624)
Total (3,023,570) (3,339,506)
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Legal, advisory and consulting expenses include audit fees of the RBI AG and its subsidiaries which comprise expenses for the audit
of financial statements amounting to € 6,742 thousand (2013: € 8,801 thousand) and tax advisory as well as other additional
consulting services provided by the auditors amounting to € 4,462 thousand (2013: € 4,840 thousand). Thereof, € 1,914 thousand
(2013: € 2,556 thousand) relates to the Group auditor for the audit of the financial statements and € 792 thousand {2013:

€ 1,222 thousand) account for the other consulting services.

Amortization of intangible fixed assefs capitalized in the course of initial consolidation amounted to € 3,204 thousand (2013:
€ 3,916 thousand] which relates to scheduled amortization of customer relationship intangibles.

The depreciation of tangible and intangible fixed assets includes an impairment of € 49,090 thousand {2013: € 69,894 thousand)
mainly for the brand and customer relationships in Ukraine and land in Romania.

Expenses on severance payments and retirement benefits

in € thousand 2014 2013
Members of the management board and senior staff 5773 4,450
Other employees 26,276 15,421
Total 32,049 19,871

The same regulations for employees are in principle valid for the members of the Management Board. These regulations provide
a basic contribution to a pension fund from the company and an additional contribution if the employee pays own contributions of
the same amount. Three members of the Management Board additionally have individual retirement benefits, which are funded by
a reinsurance policy.

In the event of termination of function or employment contract and refirement from the company, two members of the Management
Board are enfifled to severance payments according to the Salaried Employees Act [Angestelliengesefz) or Bank Collective
Agreement (Bankenkollektivvertrag), one member of the Management Board according fo contractual agreements and three
members of the Management Board according to the Company Refirement Plan Act (Betrieblichen Mitarbeitervorsorgegesetz).
The entitlement to receive severance payments according to the Salaried Employee Act or according to contractual agreements
lapses in case of termination by the employee.

Moreover, protection against the risk of occupational invalidity exists which is covered by a pension fund and/or by individual
pension agreements secured through reinsurance. The contracts of the members of the Management Board are concluded for the
functional duration or limited to a maximum of five years. The severance payments in case of premature termination of functfion
without good cause amounts fo a maximum of two years tofal remuneration.

(?) Other net operating income

in € thousand 2014 2013
Net income arising from non-banking activities 27,336 27,696

Sales revenues from non-banking activities 428,541 553,992

Expenses arising from non-banking activities (401,205) (526,2906)
Net income from additional leasing services (4,215) (281)

Revenues from additional leasing services 56,647 69,656

Expenses from additional leasing services (60,863) (69,937)
Rental income from operating lease (vehicles and equipment) 31,002 31,753
Rental income from investment property incl. operating lease (real estate) 35,684 34,086
Net proceeds from disposal of tangible and intangible fixed assets (5,179) (15,574)
Other taxes (262,415) (266,113)

hereof bank levies (176,970) (197,071)
Impairment of goodwiill (305,663) (2,948)
Income from release of negative goodwill 5,394 0
Net expense from allocation and release of other provisions (24,702) 4,195
Negative interest (363) (33)
Expenses from FX-loans (Seftlement Act) (251,308) 0
Sundry operating income 115,162 91,488
Sundry operating expenses (84,437) (51,685)
Total (723,704) (147,415)
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The other net operating income includes impairment of goodwill amounting to € 305,663 thousand which were made by Group
unifs in Russia, Poland and Albania. In the previous year, impairment of goodwill totaling € 2,948 thousand for Group units from
the Czech Republic, Hungary and Belarus were included.

The expenses from FX loans are derived from the provisions for the Seftlement Act in Hungary. The law related to FX margins which
can be applied to foreign currency loan disbursements and installments, as well as unilateral rate changes on consumer loans.

(10) Net income from disposal of group assets

In the reporting period, eleven subsidiaries were excluded from the consolidated group due to materiality reasons. Moreover, five
subsidiaries were excluded due to sale, and respectively one due to end of operations and one due fo liquidiation. Net income
from this disposal of group assets amounted to minus € 9,755 thousand (2013: minus € 6,465 thousand).

(11) Income taxes

in € thousand 2014 2013
Current income taxes (303,335) (263,512)
Austria (31,610) 20,239
Foreign (271,725) (283,751)
Deferred taxes (182,6206) 31,801
Total (485,961) (231,711)

RBI AG and 13 of its domestic subsidiaries are members of a joint tax entity headed by Raiffeisen Zentralbank Osterreich Ak-
tiengesellschaft.

The following reconciliation shows the relation between profit before tax and the effective tax burden:

in € thousand 2014 2013
Profit/loss before tax 22,882 834,657
Theoretical income tax expense in the financial year based on the domestic income tax rate of 25 per cent (5,721) (208,664)
Effect of divergent foreign tax rates 79,759 101,195
Tax decrease because of tax-exempted income from equity participations and other income 42,095 45,391
Tax increase because of non-deductible expenses (198,981) (99,737)
Impairment on loss carryforwards (196,370) 0
Other changes (206,743) (69,8906)
Effective tax burden (485,961) (231,711)
Tax rate in per cent - 27.8

Other tax deductions and tax increases mainly result from tax losses which are not recognized as deferred tax assets. Moreover,
impairment on deferred tax assets from tax loss carryforwards amounting to € 196,370 thousand was carried out because the tax
losses cannot be used based on the current medium-term tax planning.

(12) Earnings per share

in € thousand 2014 2013
Consolidated profit/loss (492,738) 557,336
Less dividend for participation capital 0 [200,000)
Adapted consolidated profit/loss (492,738) 357,336
Average number of ordinary shares outstanding in thousand 284,898 194,948
Earnings per share in € (1.73) 1.83

There are no conversion or option rights outstanding, so undiluted earnings per share is equal to diluted earnings per share.
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Notes to the statement
of financial position

(13) Statement of financial position according
to measurement categories

Assets according o measurement categories

in € thousand 2014 2013

Cash reserve 6,768,685 6,674,226
Trading assets 8,618,064 7,990,145
Positive fair values of derivative financial instruments 5,169,950 3,628,264
Shares and other variable-yield securities 347,823 407,571

Bonds, notes and other fixed-interest securities 3,100,291 3,954,310
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 3,853,910 8,439,503
Shares and other variable-yield securities 7745 150,068
Bonds, notes and other fixed-interest securities 3,846,165 8,289,435
Investments in associates 0 5,035
Financial assets available-for-sale’ 2,365,617 823,393
Investments in other affiliated companies 340,398 404,105
Other interests 89,191 66,252
Bonds, notes and other fixed-interest securities! 1,935,420 353,036
Shares and other variable-yield securifies 608 0
Loans and advances 88,660,519 99,071,433

Loans and advances to banks 15,573,241 22,243,221

Loans and advances to customers 77,925,416 80,634,618

Other non-derivative financial assets 1,231,096 1,799,069
Impairment losses on loans and advances (6,069,233) (5,605,475)
Financial assets held-to-maturity 8,248,360 4,219,807
Bonds, notes and other fixed-interest securities 8,248,360 4,219,807
Derivatives (hedging) 941,762 573,004
Positive fair values of derivatives (hedging) 941,762 573,004
Other assets 2,166,966 2,843,266
Intangible and tangible fixed assets 2,166,966 2,843,266
Total assets 121,623,883 130,639,813

1 Adaption of previous year figures regarding the measurement category financial assets availablefor-sale versus financial assets at fair value through profit and loss.

Positive fair values of derivatives not designated as hedging instruments according to IAS 39 hedge accounting are reported in
the measurement category trading assets. The measurement category financial assets available-for-sale comprises other offiliated
companies, other equity participations as well as non fixed-interest and fixed-interest securities. Loans and advances are reported

on a net basis after provisions for impairment losses. Other assets comprise intangible and tangible fixed assets.
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Equity and liabilities according to measurement categories

in € thousand 2014 2013
Trading liabilities 7,455,063 5,455,766
Negative fair values of other derivative financial instruments 6,264,124 4,278,676
Shortselling of trading assets 498,071 551,459
Certificates issued 692,868 625,631
Financial liabilities 102,101,840 111,342,320
Deposits from banks 22,408,371 30,104,866
Deposits from customers 66,094,172 66,436,636
Debt securities issued 8,463,040 Q411,146
Subordinated capital 3,719,455 3,636,812
Other non-derivative financial liabilities 1,416,803 1,752,861
Liabilities at fair value through profit and loss 2,595,682 2,612,277
Debt securities issued 2,130,029 2,121,500
Subordinated capital 465,653 490,777
Derivatives (hedging) 200,549 132,536
Negative fair values of derivatives (hedging) 200,549 132,536
Provisions for liabilities and charges 968,913 733,116
Equity 8,301,835 10,363,798
Total equity and liabilities 121,623,883 130,639,813

Negative fair values of derivatives not designated as hedging instruments according to IAS 39 hedge accounting are reported in
the measurement category trading liabilities.

(14) Cash reserve

in € thousand 2014 2013
Cash in hand 3,025,233 2,508,670
Balances at central banks 3,743,452 4,165,556
Total 6,768,685 6,674,226

(15) Loans and advances to banks

in € thousand 2014 2013
Giro and clearing business 2,068,822 2,563,784
Money market business 10,922,086 16,627,131
Loans to banks 2,074,561 2,623,960
Purchased loans 290,807 192,588
Leasing claims 78 175
Claims evidenced by paper 216,888 235,584
Total 15,573,241 22,243,221

The purchased loans amounting to € 290,807 thousand are fully assigned to the measurement category loans and advances

(2013: € 192,588 thousand).

Loans and advances to banks classified regionally (counterparty’s seat] are as follows:

in € thousand 2014 2013
Austria 3,453,186 8,297,340
Foreign 12,120,056 13,945,881
Total 15,573,241 22,243,221
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(16) Loans and advances to customers

in € thousand 2014 2013
Credit business 51,361,301 51,926,456
Money market business 3,661,924 4,408,067
Mortgage loans 17,102,794 19,114,884
Purchased loans 1,805,454 1,442,344
Leasing claims 3,100,548 2,933,520
Claims evidenced by paper 893,394 814,347
Total 77,925,416 80,634,618

Purchased loans amounting to € 1,805,454 thousand (2013: € 1,442,344 thousand) are assigned to the measurement category

loans and advances.

in € thousand 2014 2013
Sovereigns 1,451,165 1,647,511
Corporate customers - large corporates 48,581,806 49,319,989
Corporate customers - mid market 2,957,576 3,089,211
Retail customers - private individuals 22,316,947 23,755,815
Retail customers - small and medium-sized entities 2,617,921 2,822,092
Total 77,925,416 80,634,618
Loans and advances to customers classified regionally (counterparty’s seat) are as follows:
in € thousand 2014 2013
Austria 6,945,074 7,224,427
Foreign 70,980,342 73,410,191
Total 77,925,416 80,634,618

(17) Impairment losses on loans and advances

Provisions for impairment losses are formed in accordance with uniform Group standards and cover all recognizable credit risks. A
table with the development of the impairment losses on loans and advances can be found in the risk report. Provisions for impair-

ment losses are allocated fo the following asset classes:

in € thousand 2014 2013
Banks 114,621 118,162
Sovereigns 789 6,146
Corporate customers - large corporates 3,583,039 2,836,613
Corporate customers - mid market 305,253 531,049
Refail customers - private individuals 1,810,936 1,776,866
Retail customers - small and medium-sized entities 254,596 336,639
Total 6,069,233 5,605,475
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Lloans and advances and loan loss provisions according asset classes are shown in the following table:

Individually Portfolio-based
2014 Carrying impaired  Individual loan loan loss Net carrying
in € thousand Fair value amount assets  loss provisions provisions amount
Banks 15,572,292 15,573,241 128,379 111,768 2,853 15,458,620
Sovereigns 1,475,715 1,451,165 361 34 755 1,450,376
Corporate customers - large corporates 44,005,863 48,581,806 5,807,018 3,388,297 194,742 44,998,767
Corporate customers - mid market 2,617,603 2,957,576 456,321 292,077 13,177 2,652,323
Retail customers - private individuals 20,276,431 22,316,947 2,167,138 1,640,373 170,562 20,506,011
Retail customers - small and medium-sized
entities 2,419,920 2,617,921 335,537 224,830 29,766 2,363,326
Total 86,367,824 93,498,657 8,894,754 5,657,378 411,856 87,429,423

Individually Portfolio-based
2013 Carrying impaired  Individual loan loan loss Net carrying
in € thousand Fair value amount assets  loss provisions provisions amount
Banks 22,167,673 22,243,221 148,678 111,447 6,715 22,125,059
Sovereigns 1,504,727 1,647,511 27,903 5115 1,031 1,641,365
Corporate customers - large corporates 44,830,968 49299772 4,814,452 2,579,769 257,065 46,462,937
Corporate customers - mid market 2,582,349 3,089,211 556,252 497748 33,301 2,558,162
Retail customers - private individuals 22,587,996 23,776,034 2,341,968 1,617,694 159,172 21,999,167
Retail customers - small and medium-sized
entities 2,518,638 2,822,092 462,536 309,813 26,604 2,485,675
Total 96,192,351 102,877,841 8,351,789 5,121,587 483,889 97,272,366

Impaired financial assets
Impairments and collateral according asset classes are shown in the following table:

Individually impaired Collateral for Interest on
2014 Individually  Individual loan assets after individually individually
in € thousand impaired assets  loss provisions deduction of ILLP impaired assets impaired assets
Banks 128,379 111,768 16,612 11,983 165
Sovereigns 361 34 327 103 55
Corporate customers - large corporates 5,807,018 3,388,297 2,418,726 1,940,132 102,372
Corporate customers - mid market 456,321 292,077 164,244 211,907 21,293
Retail customers - private individuals 2,167,138 1,640,373 526,764 570,725 70,956
Retail customers - small and medium-sized
entities 335,537 224,830 10,704 149,203 9811
Total 8,894,754 5,657,377 3,237,377 2,884,053 204,653

ILLP individual loan loss provisions
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Individually impaired Collateral for Interest on

2013 Individually  Individual loan assets after individually individually
in € thousand impaired assets  loss provisions deduction of ILLP impaired assets impaired assets
Banks 148,678 111,447 37,231 25,283 228
Sovereigns 27,903 5115 22,788 22,380 1,721
Corporate customers - large corporates 4,814,452 2,579,769 2,234,683 1,392,743 98,182
Corporate customers - mid market 556,252 497,748 58,504 292,795 18,849
Refail customers - private individuals 2,341,968 1,617,694 724,274 587,888 74,766
Refail customers - small and medium-sized

entities 462,536 309,813 152,723 64,127 7,765
Total 8,351,789 5,121,587 3,230,203 2,385,215 201,511
ILLP individual loan loss provisions

(18) Trading assets

in € thousand 2014 2013
Bonds, notes and other fixed-interest securities 3,100,291 3,954,310
Treasury bills and bills of public authorities eligible for refinancing 1,658,097 1,321,466
Other securities issued by the public sector 349,213 605,762
Bonds and notes of non-public issuers 1,092,980 2,027,082
Shares and other variable-yield securities 347,823 407,571
Shares 320,670 382,840
Mutual funds 27,144 21,163
Other variable-yield securities 9 3,568
Positive fair values of derivative financial instruments 4,468,510 3,219,217
Interest-based transactions 3,320,065 2,559,487
Currency-based transactions 1,064,940 579,790
Equity-/index-based fransactions 63,599 59,334
Credit derivatives business 18,087 10,274
Other transactions 1,820 10,332
Total 7,916,624 7,581,097

Pledged securities ready to be sold or repledged by transferee shown under trading assets amounted to € 679,017 thousand.

(19) Derivatives

in € thousand 2014 2013
Positive fair values of derivatives in fair value hedges (IAS 39) 941,453 543,598
Interest-based transactions Q41,266 543,598
Currency-based transactions 187 0
Positive fair values of derivatives in cash flow hedges (IAS 39) 309 6,305
Interest-based transactions 0 593
Currency-based transactions 309 5712
Positive fair values of derivatives in net investment hedge (IAS 39) 0 23,101
Currency-based transactions 0 23,101
Positive fair values of credit derivatives 23 51
Positive fair values of other derivatives 701,417 408,996
Interest-based transactions 270,276 269,346
Currency-based transactions 430,939 139,651
Equity-/index-based fransactions 202 0
Total 1,643,201 982,052

As long as the condifions for hedge accounting, according to IAS 39, are fulfilled, derivative financial instruments are measured at
their fair values (dirty prices) in their function as hedging instruments. The hedged items in connection with fair value hedges are
loans and advances to customers, loans and advances to banks and debt securities issued which are to be hedged against
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interest rafe risks. The changes in carrying amount of the hedged underlying transactions in IAS 39 fair value hedges are included
in the respective items of the statement of financial position.

This item also includes the positive fair values of derivative financial instruments which are used for hedging against market risks
(excluding trading assets and trading liabilities) for a non-homogeneous portfolio. These derivatives do not meet the conditions for
IAS 39 hedge accounting.

The table below shows the expected hedged cash flows from assets in their fime periods affecting the statement of comprehensive
income:

in € thousand 2014 2013
1 year 380,276 386,155
More than 1 year, up to 5 years 1,174,058 1,424,405
More than 5 years 3,190,637 3,414,260

(20) Financial investments

This position consists of securities available-for-sale, financial assets af fair value through profit or loss, and securities held-to-
maturity as well as strategic equity participations held on a long-term basis.

in € thousand 2014 2013
Bonds, notes and other fixed-interest securities 14,029,945 12,862,278
Treasury bills and bills of public authorities eligible for refinancing 7,192,257 7,453,473
Other securities issued by the public sector 5,725,443 3,214,637
Bonds and notes of non-public issuers 1,091,882 2,173,835
Money market instruments 0 0
Other 20,363 20,333
Shares and other variable-yield securities 8,353 150,068
Shares 4,085 27,924
Mutual funds 2,792 118,858
Other variable-yield securities 1,477 3,287
Equity participations 429,589 470,357
Interest in affiliated companies 340,398 404,105
Other interests 89,191 66,252
Total 14,467,887 13,482,703

Pledged securities ready to be sold or repledged by the transferee shown under financial investments amounted to € 351,868
thousand.

The carrying amount of the securities reclassified info the category held-to-maturity amounted at the date of reclassifications to

€ 452,188 thousand. Thereof, reclassifications in 2008 amounted to € 371,686 thousand and in 2011 € 80,502 thousand. As
of 31 December 2014, the carrying amount totaled € 39,883 thousand and the fair value totaled € 42,286 thousand. In 2014,
a result from the reclassified securities of € 1,414 thousand (2013: € 7,470 thousand) was shown in the income statement. If the
reclassification had not been made, a loss of € 1 thousand (2013: loss of € 345 thousand) would have arisen.

The carrying amount of the securities reclassified info the category loans and advances amounted to € 1,559,682 thousand at
the date of reclassification in 2008. As of 31 December 2014, the carrying amount amounted to € 17,928 (2013: € 89,006

thousand).

Equity participations valued at amortized cost for which fair values could not be measured reliably amounted to

€ 85,714 thousand (2013: € 61,850 thousand).
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(21) Investments in associates

in € thousand

2014 2013

Investments in associates

0 5,035

The entity valued atequity in the previous years was disclosed under the category availablefor-sale assets and valued according

to IAS 39 as it became immaterial.

(22) Intangible fixed assets

in € thousand 2014 2013
Goodwill 140,396 544,163
Software 531,198 545,326
Other intangible fixed assets 87,657 159,220

hereof brand 61,966 111,447

hereof customer relationships 22,472 35,280
Total 759,252 1,248,709

The item software comprises acquired software amounting to € 422,154 thousand (2013: € 464,773 thousand) and developed
software amounting to € 109,044 thousand (2013: € 80,553 thousand).

Goodwill

The following overview shows the development of the book value of goodwill, gross amounts and cumulative impairments of
goodwill by cash generating units. Main goodwill positions are reported in the following cash generating units: Raiffeisenbank

a.s., Prague (RBCZ), Raiffeisen Bank Polska S.A., Warsaw (RBPL).

Development of goodwill

2014

in € thousand AVAL RBAL RBCZ RBPL RBRU Other Total
Asat 1/1 0 50,628 37,323 198,323 236,974 21,028 544,163
Additions 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Impairment 0 (50,726) 0 (101,354) (148,482) (5,101) (305,663)
Exchange rate changes 0 Q7 (414) (3,566) (88,492) (5,842) (98,104)
Asat31/12 0 0 36,908 93,403 0 10,085 140,396
Gross amount 129,791 56,428 36,908 192,826 148,482 39,515 603,950
Cumulative \'mpc]\'rmem1 (129,791) (56,428) 0 (99,423) (148,482) (29,431) (463,554)
1 Calculated with period-end exchange rate

AVAL: Raiffeisen Bank Aval JSC, Kiev (UA)

RBAL: Raiffeisen Bank Sh.a., Tirana (AL)

RBCZ: Raiffeisenbank a.s., Prague (CZ)

RBPL: Raiffeisen Bank Polska S.A., Warsaw (PL)

RBRU: AO Raiffeisenbank, Moscow (RU)

2013

in € thousand AVAL RBAL RBCZ RBPL RBRU Other Total
As at 1/1 0 50,850 40,700 175,052 266,325 24,680 557,607
Additions 0 0 0 25,600 0 1,173 26,773
Impairment 0 0 0 0 0 (2,948) (2,948)
Exchange rate changes 0 (2271) (3,377) (2,329) (29,351) (1,990) (37,269)
Asat 31/12 0 50,628 37,323 198,323 236,974 20,915 544,163
Gross amount 226,079 56,403 87,323 198,323 236,974 41,242 796,344
Cumulative \'mpcn’rmem1 (226,079) (5,775) 0 0 0 (20,3206) (252,181)

1 Calculated with average exchange rate
AVAL: Raiffeisen Bank Aval JSC, Kiev (UA)
RBAL: Raiffeisen Bank Sh.a., Tirana (AL)

RBCZ: Raiffeisenbank a.s., Prague (CZ)

RBPL: Raiffeisen Bank Polska S.A., Warsaw (PL)
RBRU: AO Raiffeisenbank, Moscow (RU)

Raiffeisen Bank International | Annual Report 2014

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS SEGMENT REPORTS GROUP MANAGEMENT REPORT OVERVIEW OF RBI

SERVICE



122

In the financial year 2014, impairment of goodwill on group view amounted to € 305,663 thousand (2013: € 2,948 thousand).
The highest impairment on goodwill (€ 148,482 thousand) was made for AO Raiffeisenbank, Moscow (RBRU) due to reductions
of growth assumptions and an increase of the discount rate for the bank resulting from the worsening in the Russian economy. The
increase of the discount rate mainly derived from higher inflation rates and a rafing deterioration of Russia. The business plan for
Raiffeisen Bank Polska S.A. Warsaw (RBPL) was revised and takes into account smaller interest margins and lower fee and com-
mission income due fo keen competition. The new business plan assumes cost reduction and stable expenses whereby partly
lower eamings are compensated. The impairment of goodwill of Raiffeisen Bank Polska S.A., Warsaw, amounted to € 101,354
thousand. Moreover, the impairment of goodwill for Raiffeisen Bank Sh.a., Tirane (RBAL) amounting to € 50,726 thousand result-
ed from higher discount rafes.

Impairment test for goodwill

At the end of each financial year, goodwill is revieved by comparing the recoverable value of each cash generating unit showing
goodwill with the carrying value. The carrying value is equal to net assets considering goodwill and other infangible assets which
are recognized within the framework of business combinations. In line with IAS 36, impairment tests for goodwill are carried out
during the year in case a reason for impairment occurs.

Recoverable value

In the course of impairment testing the carrying amount of each cash generating unit (CGU) is compared with the recoverable
amount. If the recoverable amount of a cash generating unit is below its carrying amount, the difference is recognized as impair-
ment in the income statement under other net operating income.

RBI generally identifies the recoverable amount of cash generating units on the basis of the "value-in-use" concept using a divi-
dend discount model. The dividend discount model reflects the characteristics of the banking business including the regulatory
framework. The present value of estimated future dividends that can be distributed to shareholders after taking into account rele-
vant regulatory capital requirements represents the recoverable value.

The calculation of the recoverable amount is based on a five -year detailed planning period. The sustainable future growth is
shown by the use of the terminal value, in the majority of cases country nominal growth rates of earnings are assumed, which are
based on the longferm expected rate of inflation. For companies that have a significant overcapitalization an interim period of
five years is defined, but without extending the defailed planning phase. Within this period, it is possible for these CGUs to make
full payments without violating the capital adequacy requirements. In the future growth period related profit refention to comply
with the capital requirements is imperative. If, however, zero growth is adopted in the future phase no profit retention is required.

In the future phase the model is based on @ normal economically sustainable earings situation, whereby approximation of ex-
pected refurn on equity and cost of equity is assumed (assumption of convergence).

Key assumptions

The following table shows key assumptions that have been made for the individual cash generating units:

2014

Cash generating units RBCZ RBPL
Discount rates (after tax) Q1% -9.7% 9.2% - 10.7%
Growth rates in phase | and Il 26.8% 21.3%
Growth rates in phase 11 3.0% 3.4%
Planning period 5 years 5 years

RBCZ: Raiffeisenbank a.s., Prague (CZ)
RBPL: Raiffeisen Bank Polska S.A., Warsaw (PL)
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In the previous year, RBI used the following parameters:

2013

Cash generating units RBAL RBCZ RBPL RBRU
Discount rates (after tax) 14.7% - 17.6% 10.0% - 10.6% 10.7% - 12.3% 13.7% - 16.4%
Growth rates in phase | and Il 7.8% n.a. n.a. 15.1%
Growth rates in phase Il 5.9% 3.3% 5.5% 6.9%
Planning period 5 years 5 years 5 years 5 years

RBAL: Raiffeisen Bank Sh.a., Tirana (AL)

RBCZ: Raiffeisenbank a.s., Prague (CZ)

RBPL: Raiffeisen Bank Polska S.A., Warsaw (PL)
RBRU: AO Raiffeisenbank, Moscow (RU)

The use value of a cash generating unit is sensitive to various parameters: primarily to the level and development of future divi-
dends, to the discount rates as well as the nominal growth rate in the steadying phase. The applied discount rates have been
calculated using the capital asset pricing model: they are composed of a riskfree interest rate and a risk premium for entrepreneur-
ial risk taking. The risk premium is calculated as the market risk premium that varies according to the country in which the unit is
registered multiplied by the befa factor for the indebted company. The values for the riskfree interest rate and the market risk
premium are defined using accessible external market data sources. The risk measure beta factor has been derived from a peer
group of financial insfitutions operating in Western and Eastern Europe. The above-mentioned interest rate parameters represent
market assessments; therefore they are not stable and could in case of a change affect the discount rates.

The following table provides a summary of significant planning assumptions per cash generating unit and a description of the
management approach to identify the values that are assigned to each significant assumption under consideration of a risk as-
sessment.

Cash generating unit Significant assumptions Management approach Risk assumption

RBCZ  Czech Republic is a core market for the Group  The assumptions are based on internal as well as Weakening of the macroeconomic environment.
where selective growth strategy is pursued. external sources. Macroeconomic assumptions of Possible negative effects of changed local
Improvement through increased use of alternative ~ the research department were compared with capifal requirements. Pressure on inferest margins
distribution channels and additional consulting  external data sources and the 5-year plans were  through greater competition.
services. Stable costs are assumed. presented to the Management Board. Moreover,

the detail planning phase was approved by the
Supervisory Board.

RBPL  Poland is an important market for the Group. The assumptions are based on internal as well as Weakening of the macroeconomic environment.
After the merger with Polbank EFG S. A. external sources. Macroeconomic assumptions of Possible negative effects of changed local
(Polbank], establishment as a strong universal the research department were compared with capital requirements. Pressure on inferest margins
bank on the Polish market. Strict cost external data sources and the 5-year plans were  through greater competition.
management to make the merged bank more presented to the Management Board. Moreover,
efficient. the detail planning phase was approved by the

Supervisory Board.

RBCZ: Raiffeisenbank a.s., Prague
RBPL: Raiffeisen Bank Polska S.A., Warsaw

Sensitivity analysis

A sensifivity analysis was carried out based on the above-mentioned assumptions in order to test the stability of the impairment test
for goodwill. From a number of options for this analysis, two parameters were selected, namely, the cost of equity and the reduc-
tion of the growth rate. The following overview demonstrates to what extent an increase in the cost of equity or a reduction in the
long-term growth rate could be made without the value in use of cash generating units declining below the respective carrying
value (equity capital plus goodwill).

2014

Maximum sensitiviiy] RBCZ RBPL
Increase in discount rate 0.7 PP n.a.
Reduction of the growth rates in phase Il n.a. n.a.

1 The respective maximum sensitivity refers to the change of the perpetuity.
RBCZ: Raiffeisenbank a.s., Prague (CZ)
RBPL: Raiffeisen Bank Polska S.A., Warsaw (PL)

The reference values for 2013 are as follows:
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2013

Maximum sensitivity] RBAL RBCZ RBPL RBRU
Increase in discount rate 0.3 PP 2.2 PP 0.8 PP 7.9 PP
Reduction of the growth rates in phase Il 1.3 PP 3.8 PP 1.2 PP 17.0 PP

1 The respective maximum sensitivity refers to the chonge of the perpetuity.
RBAL: Raiffeisen Bank Sh.a., Tirana (AL)

RBCZ: Raiffeisenbank a.s., Prague (CZ)

RBPL: Raiffeisen Bank Polska S.A., Warsaw (PL)

RBRU: AO Raiffeisenbank, Moscow (RU)

The recoverable values of all other units have been either higher than the respective book values or are immaterial.
Brand

Group companies use brands to differentiate their services from the competition. According to IFRS 3, brands of acquired compa-
nies have been recognized separately under the item “intangible fixed assets”. Brands have an indeterminable useful life and are
therefore not subject to scheduled amortization. Brands are tested annually in the course of the impairment test of goodwill per
cash generating unit and additionally whenever indications of impairment arise.

Brand rights are only recognized for Raiffeisen Bank Polska S.A., Warsaw (RBPL) and for Raiffeisen Bank Aval JSC, Kiev [AVAL).
The carrying values of the brands as well as gross amounts and cumulative impairment losses have developed as shown below:

2014

in € thousand AVAL RBPL Total
As at 1/1 66,715 44,733 111,447
Additions 0 0 0
Impairment! (28,456) 0 (28,456)
Exchange differences (23,096) 2,070 (21,025)
Asat31/12 15,163 46,803 61,966
Gross amount 38,300 46,803 85,104
Cumulative impairment? (23,137) 0 (23,137)

1 Calculated with average exchange rate

2 Calculated with period-end exchange rate
RBPL: Raiffeisen Bank Polska S.A., Warsaw (PL)
AVAL: Raiffeisen Bank Aval JSC, Kiev (UA)

2013

in € thousand AVAL RBPL Total
Asat 1/1 69,907 49,092 118,999
Additions 0 0 0
Impoirmem] 0 0 0
Exchange differences (3,193) (4,359) (7,552)
Asat31/12 66,715 44,733 111,447
Gross amount 66,715 44,733 111,447
Cumulative in’wpoﬂm’vem2 0 0 0

1 Calculated with average exchange rate

2 Calculated with period-end exchange rate
RBPL: Raiffeisen Bank Polska S.A., Warsaw (PL)
AVAL: Raiffeisen Bank Aval JSC, Kiev (UA)

According fo IAS 36.9 at the end of each reporting period, an entfity is required fo assess whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired based on a list of external and internal indicators of impairment. In the third quarter, there were such indi-
cators due to the ongoing poliical and economic problems in Ukraine. As a result, impairment of € 28,456 thousand was made
for the brand of Raiffeisen Bank Aval.

The brand value of the Raiffeisen Bank Aval JSC, Kiev [AVAL], was defermined using the comparable historical cost approach,
because neither immediately comparable transctions nor a market with observable prices was available at the fime of purchase

price allocation. Documentation of brand-related markefing expenses in the previous years was taken as the data base for the
historical cost approach.

The value of the Polbank brand was determined using the relief from royalty method, because neither immediately comparable
transactions nor a market with observable prices was available at the fime of purchase price allocation. Underlying premise of this
method is that the brand has a fair value equal to the present value of the royalty income aftributable to it. In 2014, impairment
tests showed no impairment of the brand.
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Customer relationships

It customer contracts and associated customer relationships are acquired in a business combination, they must be recognized
separately from goodwill, if they are based on confractual or other rights. The acquired companies meet the criteria for a separate
recognifion of non-contractual customer relationships for existing customers. The custfomer base is valued using the multi-period
excess eamnings method based on projected future income and expenses allocable to the respective customer base. The projec-
tions are based on planning figures for the corresponding years.

The Group has customer relationship intangibles activated af Raiffeisen Bank Polska S.A., Warsaw (RBPL) and Raiffeisen Bank
Aval JSC, Kiev [AVAL). In the reportfing year the book values of the customer relationships as well as the gross amount and cumu-
lative impairments have developed as follows:

2014

in € thousand AVAL RBPL Total
Asat 1/1 22,159 13,122 35,280
Additions 0 0 0
Depreciation (1,239) (1,647) (2,887)
Impairment! (1,092) 0 (1,092)
Exchange differences (9,437) 607 (8,830)
Asat 31/12 10,390 12,082 22,472
Gross amount 24,784 16,475 41,258
Cumulative \'mpoirmemz (14,394) (4,393) (18,787)
1 Calculated with average exchange rate

2 Calculated with period-end exchange rate

RBPL: Raiffeisen Bank Polska S.A., Warsaw (PL)

AVAL: Raiffeisen Bank Aval JSC, Kiev (UA)

2013

in € thousand AVAL RBPL Total
Asat 1/1 25,481 16,128 41,609
Additions 0 0 0
Depreciation (2,159) (1,675) (3,834)
\mpoirmem] 0 0 0
Exchange differences (1,164) (1,332) (2,495)
Asat31/12 22,159 13,122 35,280
Gross amount 43,170 15,746 58916
Cumulative \'mpcn'rmem2 (21,011) (2,624) (23,636)

1 Calculated with average exchange rate

2 Calculated with period-end exchange rate
RBPL: Raiffeisen Bank Polska S.A., Warsaw (PL)
AVAL: Raiffeisen Bank Aval JSC, Kiev (UA)

The impairment test of customer relationships
customers at the date of initial consolidation, identified an impairment loss of € 1,092 thousand in 2014.

of Raiffeisenbank Aval JSC, Kiev [AVAL), recognized for the business division retail

The impairment test of customer relationships of Raiffeisen Bank Polska S.A., Warsaw (RBPL), identified no impairment need in 2014.
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(23) Tangible fixed assets

in € thousand 2014 2013
Land and buildings used by the Group for own purpose 568,482 711,804
Other land and buildings (investment property) 275,245 207,531
Office furniture, equipment and other tangible fixed assets 298,202 398,679
Lleased assets (operating lease) 265,785 276,544
Total 1,407,714 1,594,558
The fair value of investment property totaled € 276,658 thousand (2013: € 209,414 thousand).
(24) Development of fixed assets
Cost of acquisition or conversion
Change in
As at  consolidated Exchange As at
in € thousand 1/1/2014 group differences Additions Disposals Transfers  31/12/2014
Intangible fixed assets 2,471,602 (913) (338,603) 176,036 (76,187) (207) 2,231,728
Goodwill 796,344 (1,527) (190,867) 0 0 0 603,950
Software 1,473,212 678 (96,463] 175,727 175,470) (88) 1,477,596
Other intangible fixed assets 202,046 (64) (51,273) 309 (717) (119) 150,182
Tangible fixed assets 2,849,002 140,862 (420,807) 239,244 (198,010) 207 2,610,498
Land and buildings used by the Group

for own purpose 968,421 13,642 (161,963) 37,215 (20,134) (3,035) 834,146
Other land and buildings 237,673 130,417 (43,948 20,152 (36,675) 2,596 310,215

of which land value of developed
land 13,445 1,060 (2,343) 190 0 0 12,352

Office furniture, equipment and other
tangiblelfixad|asssts 1274129 (3,197) (185,361 92,287 (90,389 (574) 1,086,895
Lleased assets (operating lease) 368,779 0 (29,5306) 89,590 (50,812) 1,221 379,242
Total 5,320,604 139,949 (759,410) 415,280 (274,197) 0 4,842,226
Werite-ups, amortization, depreciation, impairment Carrying
amount
hereof hereof as at
in € thousand Cumulative Write-ups Depreciation  31/12/2014
Intangible fixed assets (1,443,728) 987 (484,081) 759,252
Gl (434,806] 0 (305,663 140,396
S (946,398 087 (140,634) 531,198
Other intangible fixed assets (62,525) 0 (37,784) 87,657
Tangible fixed assets (1,202,784) 6,202 (202,712) 1,407,714
Land and buildings used by the Group for own purpose [265,664) 2,685 (48,944) 568,482
Other land and buildings (34,970) 0 (19,445) 275,245
of which land value of developed land (3) 0 0 12,349
Office furniture, equipment and other tangible fixed assets (788,693) 3,338 (104,882) 298,202
Lleased assets (operating lease) (113,457) 179 (29,441) 265,785
Total (2,646,512) 7,189 (686,793) 2,166,966

In the reporting year, additions to intangible and tangible fixed assets include single investments exceeding € 10,000 thousand in

Group head office.
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Cost of acquisition or conversion

Change in
As at  consolidated Exchange As at
in € thousand 1/1/2013 group differences Additions Disposals Transfers  31/12/2013
Intangible fixed assets 2,440,828 41 (90,318) 225,030 (103,863) (116) 2,471,602
Goodwill 817,113 0 (47,542) 26,773 0 0 796,344
Software 1,357,852 41 (34,113) 193,461 (103,233) 59,204 1,473,212
Other intangible fixed assets 265,863 0 (8,663) 4,796 (630) (59,320) 202,046
Tangible fixed assets 2,787,165 91,058 (110,754) 252,200 (170,785) 116 2,849,000
Land and buildings used by the Group

for own purpose 960,386 17,371 (40,758) 47,694 (23,688) 7,416 068,421
Other land and buildings 173,727 72,314 (11,648) 25,503 (4,204) (18,019) 237,673

of which land value of developed
land 13,542 0 (258) 161 0 0 13,445

Office furniture, equipment and other
tangible fixed assets 1,269,830 1,373 (48,723) 136,048 (84,485) 84 1,274,127
Lleased assets (operating lease) 383,222 0 (9,625) 42,955 (58,408) 10,635 368,779
Total 5,227,993 91,099 (201,072) 477,230 (274,648) 0 5,320,602
Werite-ups, amortization, depreciation, impairment Carrying
amount
hereof hereof as at
in € thousand Cumulative Write-ups Depreciation 31/12/2013
Intangible fixed assets (1,222,893) 154 (222,313) 1,248,709
Goodwill (252,181) 0 (2,948) 544,163
S — (927,886 154 (214.175) 545,326
Other intangible fixed assets (42,8206) 0 (5,190) 159,220
Tangible fixed assets (1,254,444) 13,857 (211,547) 1,594,558
Land and buildings used by the Group for own purpose (256,617) 1,421 (40,859) 711,804
Other land and buildings (30,142) 2,608 (4,377) 207,531
of which land value of developed land (6) 0 0 13,439
Office furniture, equipment and other tangible fixed assefs (875,450) 9,828 (132,687) 398,679
Lleased assets (operating lease) (92,235) 0 (33,624) 276,544
Total (2,477,338) 14,011 (433,860) 2,843,266

In the previous year, additions to infangible and tangible assets include single invesiments exceeding € 10,000 thousand in Russia

and in Group head office.

(25) Other assets

in € thousand 2014 2013
Tax assets 365,232 601,338

Current tax assets 80,670 112,379

Deferred tax assets 284,562 488,959
Receivables arising from non-banking activities 63,202 92,742
Prepayments and other deferrals 248,726 231,729
Clearing claims from securities and payment transfer business 256,314 387,532
Lease in progress 29,971 79,699
Assets held for sale (IFRS 5) 89,519 55,536
Inventories 40,747 146,937
Valuation fair value hedge portfolio 29,157 15,734
Any other business 108,226 187,822
Total 1,231,096 1,799,069

Assets held for sale derived from the scheduled sale of trading subsidiaries of Raiffeisen Centrobank AG, Vienna, amounting to

€ 40,915 thousand.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities after offsetting:

in € thousand 2014 2013
Deferred tax assets 284,562 488,959
Provisions for deferred taxes (46,063) (28,601)
Net deferred taxes 238,499 460,358

The net deferred taxes result from the following items:

in € thousand 2014 2013
Loans and advances to customers 131,842 135,478
Impairment losses on loans and advances 154,627 172,214
Tangible and intangible fixed assets 11,966 12,895
Other assets 4,098 10,144
Provisions for liabilities and charges 61,538 64,586
Trading liabilities 93,832 13,508
Other liabilities 146,508 64,583
Tax loss carryforwards 35,947 189,493
Other items of the statement of financial position 7175 194,901
Deferred tax assets 647,534 857,802
Loans and advances to banks 422 7
Loans and advances to customers 39,363 35,990
Impairment losses on loans and advances 47,774 68,418
Trading assefs 84,691 4,839
Tangible and intangible fixed assets 77,205 83,074
Deposits from customers 458 467
Provisions for liabilities and charges 80 28
Other liabilities 3,479 3,058
Other items of the statement of financial position 155,562 200,663
Deferred tax liabilities 409,035 397,444
Net deferred taxes 238,499 460,358

In the consolidated financial statements, deferred tax assets are recognized for unused tax loss carry-forwards which amounted
to € 35,947 thousand (2013: € 189,493 thousand). The reduction is driven by impairment of deferred tax assefs of €196,370
Thousand, because the tax loss carryforwards cannot be used based on the current medium+erm tax planning. The tax loss
carryforwards are mainly without any time limit. The Group did not recognize deferred tax assets of € 379,427 thousand
[2013: € 155,766 thousand) because from a current point of view there is no prospect of realizing them within a reasonable
period of fime.

(26) Deposits from banks

in € thousand 2014 2013
Giro and clearing business 5,407,236 3,558,755
Money market business 10,115,946 20,104,115
Long-term refinancing 6,885,189 6,441,996
Total 22,408,371 30,104,866

The Group refinances itself periodically with international commercial banks and multinational development banks. These credit
contracts contain ownership clauses normally used in business. These clauses give permission to an exceptional termination in the
case of change in direct or indirect control over RBI AG, e.g. if Raiffeisen Zentralbank Osterreich Aktiengesellschaft loses the
majority shareholding in RBI AG. This can lead to increased refinancing costs for the Group in the future.
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Deposits from banks classified regionally {counterparty’s seat) break down as follows:

in € thousand 2014 2013
Austria 8,765,167 16,775,156
Foreign 13,643,204 13,329,710
Total 22,408,371 30,104,866
(27) Deposits from customers
in € thousand 2014 2013
Sight deposits 33,347,793 32,390,300
Time deposits 29,942 895 31,223,158
Savings deposits 2,803,483 2,823,178
Total 66,094,172 66,436,636
Deposits from customers break down as follows:
in € thousand 2014 2013
Sovereigns 1,150,609 820,198
Corporate customers - large corporates 30,739,814 31,439,453
Corporate customers - mid market 2,729,038 2,418,526
Refail customers - private individuals 26,785,780 27,058,857
Retail customers - small and medium-sized entities 4,139,835 4,279,701
Other 549,095 419,901
Total 66,094,172 66,436,636
Deposits from customers classified regionally (counterparty’s seat) are as follows:
in € thousand 2014 2013
Austria 6,493,008 5,619,030
Foreign 59,601,164 60,817,606
Total 66,094,172 66,436,636
(28) Debt securities issued
in € thousand 2014 2013
Bonds and notes issued 10,059,300 11,060,732
Money market instruments issued 516,859 427,950
Other debt securities issued 16,910 43,963
Total 10,593,069 11,532,646

The following table contains debt securities issued amounting to or exceeding € 200,000 thousand nominal value:

Nominal value in €

Issuer ISIN Type Currency thousand Coupon Due
RBI AG XS0803117612 senior public placements EUR 750,000 2.8% 10/7/2017
RBIAG X50989620694 senior public placements EUR 500,000 1.9% 8/11/2018
RBI AG XS0753479525 senior public placements EUR 499,200 2.9% 6/3/2015
RBIAG XS0903449865 senior public placements EUR 250,000 0.6% 19/3/2015
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(29) Provisions for liabilities and charges

Change in Transfers,
As at consolidated exchange As at

in € thousand 1/1/2014 group Allocation Release Usage differences 31/12/2014
Severance
payments and other 68,654 17 12,755 (33) (1,479) 1,463 81,377
Retirement benefits 25,302 (353) 8,022 0 0 (442) 33,429
Taxes 92,868 (13,862) 127,905 (16,743) (43,949) (16,995) 129,225

Qe 64,268 (12.522) 108,331 (16.514) (43.300) (17.102) 83,162

Demes 28,601 (1,340) 19,574 (229) (649) 107 46,063
Contingent liabilities
and commitments 119,182 10 50,359 (55,674) (13,400) [2,730) Q7,748
Pending legal issues 53,691 0 58,271 (9,203) (6,462) (2,012) 94,285
Overdive veealien 57.132 (294) 8,758 (5.745) (131) (9,064) 50,656
Bonus payments 230,737 27 131,844 (51,672) (132,133) (24,801) 154,003
Restructuring 8,831 0 10,269 (754) (3,790) (1,899) 12,658
Setflement Act
Hungary 0 0 251,308 0 0 0 251,308
Other 76,717 (4.974) 76,912 (34,468 (41.102) (8,861 64,224
Total 733,116 (19,429) 737,305 (174,293 (242,446) (65,340) 968,913

Severance and similar payments include provisions for anniversary bonuses and other payments in the amount of € 21,191 thou-
sand (2013: € 16,954 thousand| and obligations from other benefits due to termination of employment according fo IAS T9R
amounting fo € 60,186 thousand (2013: € 51,700 thousand).

RBI is involved in pending legal issues, which may occur in the banking business. RBI does not expect that these legal cases will
have a material impact on the financial position of the Group. As of 31 December 2014, Group-wide provisions for pending
legal issues amounted fo € 94,285 thousand (2013: € 53,691 thousand). Single cases exceeding € 10,000 thousand occurred
in Austria, Slovakia and Ukraine (2013: in Austria, Slovakia and Ukraine).

Pension obligations and other termination benefits

The Group contributes to the following defined benefit pension plans and other postemployment benefits:

= Defined benefit pension plans in Austria and other countries

= Other postemployment benefits in Austria and other countries

» These defined benefit plans and other postemployment benefits expose RBI to actuarial risks, such as
longevity risk, currency risk, interest rate risk and market (investment] risk.

Funding
For pensions there are different plans: unfunded, partly funded and fully funded. The partly and fully funded plans are all placed
by the Valida Pension AG. Valida Pension AG is a pension fund, and is subject in particular to the provisions of the PKG (Pension

Act) and BPG {Company Pension Act).

RBI expects fo pay € 408 thousand in contributions fo its defined benefit plans in 2015 (2014: € 452 thousand).
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Pension obligations/defined benefit pension plans

Financial status

in € thousand 2014 2013
Defined benefit obligation (DBO) 48117 38,206
Plan assets at fair value (14,687) (12,904)
Net liability/asset 33,430 25,302
The defined benefit obligations developed as follows:
in € thousand 2014 2013
DBO asat 1/1 38,206 40,876
Change in consolidated group 0 o]
FX differences DBO 0 0
Current service cost 1,146 1,217
Interest cost 1,297 1,433
Payments (815) (1,515)
Transfer 675 (443)
Remeasurement 7,607 (3,362)
DBO asat 31/12 48,117 38,206
Plan assets developed as follows:
in € thousand 2014 2013
Plan assets at fair value as at 1/1 12,904 13,314
Change in consolidated group 0 o]
FX differences plan asssets 0 0
Interest income 452 468
Contributions fo plan assets 329 493
Payments from fund (169) (1,023)
Transfer 600 (407)
Refurn on plan assets excluding interest income 572 59
Plan assets at fair value as at 31/12 14,687 12,904

The return on plan assets for 2014 was € 1,023 thousand (2013: € 526,670 thousand). For 2014, the fair value of rights to

reimbursement recognized as an asset was € 17,210 thousand (2013: € 1

Structure of plan assets

Plan assets broke down as follows:

2,537 thousand).

Per cent 2014 2013
Bonds 57 53
Shares 33 35
Alternative Investments 1 4
Property 4
Cash 5 4
Total 100 100

hereof own financial instruments 1 6

hereof property occupied or other assets used by the Group or other related parties 0 o]

In the reporting year, most of the plan assets were quoted on an acfive market, less than 10 per cent were not quoted on an

active market.
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Asset Liability Matching

The pension provider Valida established an asset/risk management process [ARM process). According to this process, the risk-
bearing capacity of each fund is evaluated once a year based on the liability structure of investment and risk associations. Based
on this risk-bearing capacity, the investment structure of the fund is derived. When defining the investment folerance of the custom-
er, defined and documented requirements are also taken info account.

The defined investment structure will be implemented in the two funds named “60" and “7”, in which the accrued amounts for
RZB/RBI are invested with an investment concept. The weighting of predefined asset classes move between a bandwidth accord-

ing fo objective criteria, which can be derived from market trends. In times of stress, hedges of the equity component are made.

Actuarial assumptions

The following table shows the actuarial assumptions used to calculate the net defined benefit obligation:

Per cent 2014 2013
Discount rate 2.0 3.5
Future pension basis increase 3.0 3.0
Future pension increase 2.0 2.0

The following table shows the longevity assumptions used to calculate the net defined benefit obligation.

Years 2014 2013
Longevity at age 65 for current pensioners - males 20.8 20.7
Longevity at age 65 for current pensioners - females 24.4 24.2
Longevity at age 65 for current members aged 45 - males 23.4 23.1
Longevity at age 65 for current members aged 45 - females 26.6 26.4

The weighted average duration of the net defined benefit obligation was 17.0 years (2013: 16.0 years).
Sensitivity analysis

Changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions constant, would have
affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below:

2014
in € thousand Addition Decrease
Discount rate (1 per cent change) (7,019) 8,705
Future salary growth (0.5 per cent change) 679 [650)
Future pension increase (0.25 per cent change) 1,666 (1,588)
Remaining life expactency (change 1 year) 1,910 (2,203)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an
approximation of the sensitivity of the assumptions shown.
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Other termination benefits

The other termination benefits developed as follows:

in € thousand 2014 2013
DBOasat 1/1 51,700 50,153
Changes in consolidated group 0 o]
FX differences DBO 0 0
Current service cost 3,548 3,146
Interest cost 1,662 1,656
Payments (2,874) (2,736)
Loss/(gain) on DBO due to past service cost (25) (31)
Transfer 177 (89)
Remeasurement 5097 (400)
DBO as at 31/12 60,186 51,700

Actuarial assumptions

The following table shows the actuarial assumptions used to calculate the other termination benefits:
Per cent 2014 2013
Discount rate 2.0 8.5
Additional future salary increase for employees 3.0 3.0

Sensitivity analysis

Reasonably possible changes af the reporting date o one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other assumptions con-
stant, would have affected the defined benefit obligation by the amounts shown below.

2014
in € thousand Addition Decrease
Discount rate (1 per cent change) 6,527) 7,729
Future salary growth (0.5 per cent change) 3,638 (3,362)

Although the analysis does not take account of the full distribution of cash flows expected under the plan, it does provide an

approximation of the sensifivity of the assumptions shown.

Employee benefit expenses

For details of employee benefit expenses (expenses for defined benefit pension plans, other benefits due to termination of em-

ployment) are stated under note (8) General administrative expenses.

(30) Trading liabilities

in € thousand 2014 2013
Negative fair values of derivative financial instruments 5,686,468 4,026,804
Interest-based transactions 3,078,848 2452611
Currency-based transactions 1,444,607 591,954
Equity-/index-based fransactions 1,017,912 840,545
Credit derivatives business 17,372 8,442
Other transactions 127,730 133,252
Short-selling of trading assets 498,071 551,459
Certificates issued 692,868 625,631
Total 6,877,407 5,203,894
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(31) Derivatives

in € thousand 2014 2013
Negative fair values of derivatives in fair value hedges (IAS 39) 137,379 104,123
Interest-based transactions 137,379 104,123
Negative fair values of derivatives in cash flow hedges (IAS 39) 63,171 28,413
Interest-based transactions (0] 1,478
Currency-based transactions 63,171 26,935
Negative fair values of credit derivatives 23 279
Negative fair values of other derivative financial instruments 577,633 251,593
Interest-based transactions 272,281 214,910
Currency-based transactions 305,290 36,581
Equity-/index-based transactions 62 o]
Other transactions 0 102
Total 778,205 384,408

As long as the conditions for hedge accounting according to I1AS 39 are fulfilled, derivative financial instruments are measured at
their fair values (dirty prices) in their function as hedging instruments. The hedged items in connection with fair value hedges are
loans and advances to customers, deposits from banks and debt securities issued, which are taken to hedge against interest rate

risk.

The table below shows the expected hedged cash flows from liabilties in their time periods affecting the statement of comprehen-
sive income:

in € thousand 2014 2013
1 year 3,166,513 2,119,904
More than 1 year, up to 5 years 0 22,864
More than 5 years 0 33,366

Net losses of € 10,241 thousand (2013: loss € 16,364 thousand) relating to the effective portion of cash flow hedges were
recognized in other comprehensive income.

(32) Other liabilities

in € thousand 2014 2013
Liabilities from non-banking activities 51,872 08,465
Liabilities from insurance contracts 202,337 320,343
Accruals and deferred items 224,935 266,530
liabilities from dividends 835 778
Clearing claims from securities and payment transfer business 413,960 551,721
Valuation fair value hedge portfolio 143,605 39,393
liabilities held for Sale IFRS 5 11,503 0
Other liabilities 367,755 475,632
Total 1,416,803 1,752,861

Insurance contracts
The Group's insurance business consists of pension products in Russia. Due to the existence of mortfality risk and discretionary
parficipation features in these products it is necessary to apply IFRS 4 for the accounting of the resulting liabilities. All assets relat-

ed fo the provision of pensions products are accounted for under IAS 39.

The table below presents an analysis of the change in insurance contract liabilities:
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in € thousand 2014 2013
Carrying amount as at 1/1 320,343 196,973
Additions 124 135,487
Usage (303) (6,143)
Other changes (16) 0
Exchange rate changes (119,624) (21,708)
Investment return 1,813 15,734
Impact of liability adequacy fest 0 0
Carrying amount as at 31/12 202,337 320,343

Insurance contract liabilities must be regularly reviewed and subjected to a liability adequacy test. The adequacy test defermines,
on the basis of a comparison with estimated future cash flows, whether the carrying amount of insurance liabilities needs to be
increased. In 2014, there was no charge related fo the liability adequacy test.

Presentation of risks in the insurance business

Mortality risks - The pension products expose RBI Group to insurance risk through the risk of unpredictable losses resulting from
longevity of the policyholder. A stable improvement of medical services and social conditions, which increase longevity, is the

most important factor for increasing longevity in Russia.

Discretionary participation feature - The pension products include a discrefionary participation feature which may result in
RBI Group paying customers more than the contfractual minimum.

Other risks - Based on federal demography statistics data annuity rates are determined by Russian legislation and therefore
subject to a degree of uncertainty. Market risk, liquidity risk and credit risk are not material in relafion fo insurance contracts.

Sensitivity analysis (insurance contracts only)

The following table presents the effect on RBI Group's profit before tax resulting from the change in mortality of the insuree:

Change in profit before tax
in € thousand

2014 2013

Mortality (deterioration of 50%)

36,258 23,300

A change of 50 per cent to the mortality assumption is equal to a change in expected outstanding life-ime after retirement period
of three to seven years, depending on the sex-age characteristics of each group.

(33) Subordinated capital

in € thousand 2014 2013
Hybrid tier 1 capital 396,725 451,413
Subordinated liabilities and supplementary capital 3,788,383 3,676,176
Total 4,185,108 4,127,589

The following table contains subordinated borrowings that exceed 10 per cent of the subordinated capital:

Issuer ISIN Type Currency Nominal value in € thousand Coupon' Due
RBI AG XS0619437147 Subordinated capital EUR 500,000 6.625% 18/5/2021
RBIAG XS0981632804 Subordinated capital EUR 500,000 6.000% 16/10/2023
RBI AG XS1034950672 Subordinated capital EUR 500,000 4.500% 21.02.2025

1 Current inferest rate, inferest clauses are agreed.

In the reporting period, expenses on subordinated capital totaled € 209,135 thousand (2013: € 194,914 thousand).
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(34) Equity

in € thousand 2014 2013
Consolidated equity 8,300,012 9,321,638
Subscribed capital 891,742 594,591
Participation capital 0 2,500,000
Capital reserves] 4,991,269 2,575,082
Retained earings' 2,417,002 3,651,965
Consolidated profit/loss (492,738) 557,336
Non-controlling interests 494,561 484,824
Total 8,301,835 10,363,798

1 Adaption of previous year figures regarding capital reserves and refained earnings.

The development of equity is shown under the chapter statement of changes in equity.
Subscribed capital

As of 31 December 2014, the subscribed capital of RBI AG as defined by the articles of incorporation amounted to € 893,586
thousand. The subscribed capital consists of 292,979,038 non-par bearer shares. The subscribed capital was increased through
the issuance of 97,473,914 new non-par bearer shares in the course of a capital increase carried out af the beginning of 2014
by € 297,295 thousand. The net increase in capital reserves amounted to € 2,427,421 thousand after deduction of issuance
costs of € 52,596 thousand [company tax and several additional costs, e.g. consulting expenses|. After deduction of own shares
of 604,517, the stated subscribed capital totaled € 891,742 thousand.

Participation capital

In June, the Austrian regulatory authorities granted approval for a redemption of participation capital. On this basis, RBI fully
repaid € 1,750,000 thousand of the participation capital subscribed by the Republic of Austria on ¢ June. Participation capital of
€ 750,000 thousand subscribed by private investors was repaid on 10 September.

Own shares

The Annual General Meeting held on 4 June 2014 authorized the Management Board to acquire own shares, pursuant to Sec-
tion 65 (1), item 4 and 8 of the Austrian Joint Stock Companies Act (AkiG), during a period of 30 months as of the date of the
resolution (i.e. by 3 December 2016), up to 10 per cent of the subscribed capital of the company and to withdraw if applicable.
This authorization may be exercised in full or in part or also in several installments and for one or more purposes - with the excep-
tion of securities frading - by the company, by affiliated companies or, for their account, by third parties. The acquisition price for
repurchasing the shares may be no lower than € 1.00 per share and no higher than 10 per cent above the average unweighted
closing price over the 10 trading days prior to exercising this authorization. The Management Board was further authorized
pursuant fo Section 65 (1b) of the Austrian Joint Stock companies Act, to decide, with the approval of the Supervisory Board, on
the sale of own shares by means other than the stock exchange or a public tender, to the full or partial exclusion of shareholders’
subscription rights. This authorization applies for a period of five years from the date of the resolution (i.e. until 3 June 2019).
Shareholders’ subscription rights may only be excluded if the own shares are used to pay for a contribution in kind, to acquire
enterprises, businesses or branches of activity of one or several companies in Austria or abroad, or for the purpose of implement-
ing the company's Share Incentive Program (SIP] for executives and members of the Management Boards of the company and
affiliated enterprises. In addition, if convertible bonds are issued in accordance with the Annual General Meeting resolution of 26
June 2013, shareholders’ subscription rights may also be excluded in order to issue (own) shares to the holders of these converti-
ble bonds who exercise the conversion or subscription rights granted them under the terms of the convertible bonds to shares of
the company. This authorization replaces the authorization to purchase and use own shares that was granted in the Annual Gen-
eral Meeting of 20 June 2012. No own shares have been bought since the authorization was issued in June 2014.

The acquisition of own shares mainly serves to cover the obligation of RBI within the framework of the share incentive program
[SIP) towards the members of the Management Board and executive employees. These bonus payments are carried out in the
form of company shares.

The Annual General Meeting held on 4 June 2014 also authorized the Management Board, in acc